
     Ffôn/Tel: 01656 643643                                                   Facs/Fax: 01656 668126          Ebost/Email: talktous@bridgend.gov.uk                                                                                 
     Negeseuon SMS/ SMS Messaging: 07581 157014           Twitter@bridgendCBC              Gwefan/Website: www.bridgend.gov.uk

Cyfnewid testun: Rhowch 18001 o flaen unrhyw un o’n rhifau ffon ar gyfer y gwasanaeth trosglwyddo testun
Text relay: Put 18001 before any of our phone numbers for the text relay service

Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn y Gymraeg. Rhowch wybod i ni os yw eich dewis iaith yw’r Gymraeg 
We welcome correspondence in Welsh. Please let us know if your language choice is Welsh

Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg. 
Rhowch wybod i ni os mai Cymraeg yw eich 

dewis iaith.
We welcome correspondence in Welsh. Please 
let us know if your language choice is Welsh.

Cyfarwyddiaeth y Prif Weithredwr / Chief 
Executive’s Directorate 
Deialu uniongyrchol / Direct line /: (01656) 
643147/643148/643696
Gofynnwch am / Ask for:  Andrew Rees

Ein cyf / Our ref:      
Eich cyf / Your ref:      

Dyddiad/Date: Dydd Mercher, 11 Gorffennaf 2018

Annwyl Cynghorydd, 

CABINET

Cynhelir Cyfarfod  Cabinet yn Ystafelloedd Pwyllgor 1/2/3 - Swyddfeydd Dinesig, Stryd yr Angel, 
Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr CF31 4WB ar Dydd Mawrth, 17 Gorffennaf 2018 am 14:30.

AGENDA

1. Ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb  
Derbyn ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb gan Aelodau.

2. Datganiadau o fuddiant  
Derbyn datganiadau o ddiddordeb personol a rhagfarnol (os o gwbl) gan Aelodau / 
Swyddogion yn unol â darpariaethau'r Cod Ymddygiad Aelodau a fabwysiadwyd gan y 
Cyngor o 1 Medi 2008. 

3. Cymeradwyaeth Cofnodion  3 - 24
I dderbyn am gymeradwyaeth y Cofnodion cyfarfod y 15/05/18 a 19/06/18  

4. Monitro'r Gyllideb - Chwarter 1 2018-19 25 - 56

5. Ymgynghoriad Gorchymyn Diogelu Mannau Cyhoeddus i Warchod Cwn 57 - 62

6. Y Strategaeth Ddiwydiannol Yn Ymlaen o'r Chwyldro Ynni 63 - 90

7. Penodi Llywodraethwyr yr Awdurdod Lleol 91 - 104

8. Blaenraglen Waith 105 - 118

9. Adroddiadau Gwybodaeth i'w Nodi 119 - 156

10. Materion Brys  
I ystyried unrhyw eitemau o fusnes y, oherwydd amgylchiadau arbennig y cadeirydd o'r farn 
y dylid eu hystyried yn y cyfarfod fel mater o frys yn unol â pharagraff 2.4 (e) o'r Rheolau 
Trefn y Cabinet yn y Cyfansoddiad.

Public Document Pack

mailto:talktous@bridgend.gov.uk
http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/


11. Gwahardd y Cyhoedd  
Nid oedd yr eitem canlynol yn cael eu cyhoeddi, gan fod eu bod yn cynnwys gwybodaeth 
eithriedig fel y'i diffinnir ym Mharagraffau 14 a 16 o Ran 4 a Pharagraff 21 o Ran 5, Atodlen 
12A, Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972, fel y'i newidiwyd gan Orchymyn Llywodraeth Leol 
(Cymru) 2007 (Mynediad at Wybodaeth) (Amrywio).

Os, yn dilyn cymhwyso'r prawf budd y cyhoedd yn y Cabinet yn penderfynu yn unol â'r 
Ddeddf i ystyried yr eitem hon yn breifat, bydd y cyhoedd yn cael eu gwahardd o'r cyfarfod 
yn ystod ystyriaeth o'r fath. 

12. Cymeradwyaeth Cofnodion wedi’u Eithrio  157 - 160
I dderbyn am gymeradwyaeth y Cofnodion gwahardd cyfarfod y 19/06/18 

Yn ddiffuant
K Watson
Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Rheoleiddiol

Dosbarthiad:

Cynghowrwyr Cynghorwyr Cynghorwyr
HJ David
CE Smith

PJ White
HM Williams

D Patel
RE Young



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 15 MAI 2018

1

COFNODION CYFARFOD Y CABINET A GYNHALIWYD YN YSTAFELLOEDD PWYLLGOR 
1/2/3 - SWYDDFEYDD DINESIG, STRYD YR ANGEL, PEN-Y-BONT AR OGWR CF31 4WB 
DYDD MAWRTH, 15 MAI 2018, AM 14:30

Presennol

Y Cynghorydd HJ David – Cadeirydd 

CE Smith PJ White HM Williams D Patel
RE Young

Ymddiheuriadau am Absenoldeb

Swyddogion:

Gill Lewis Pennaeth Cyllid a Swyddog 151 Dros Dro
Kelly Watson Rheolwr Grŵp Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Democrataidd
Mark Shephard Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Cymunedau
Susan Cooper Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Lles
Andrew Rees Uwch Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd - Pwyllgorau
Lindsay Harvey Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol – Addysg a Chymorth i Deuluoedd 

(Dros Dro)

201. DATGAN BUDDIANNAU

Dim.

202. CYMERADWYO COFNODION

PENDERFYNWYD:     Cymeradwyo cofnodion cyfarfod y Cabinet a gynhaliwyd ar 24 
Ebrill 2018 fel rhai gwir a chywir.    

203. SWYDDOG EIDDO GWAG

Cyflwynodd y Cynghorydd N Clarke argymhellion Pwyllgor Trosolwg Testun a Chraffu 3 
mewn perthynas â recriwtio Swyddog Eiddo Gwag a ystyriwyd gan y Pwyllgor yn ei 
gyfarfod ar 21 Mawrth 2018. Nododd bod yr adroddiad a ystyriwyd gan y Pwyllgor 
Trosolwg a Chraffu’n trafod rôl y Gweithgor Eiddo Gwag ac yn benodol y buddion o greu 
Swyddog Eiddo Gwag a pha gylch gwaith fyddai’n berthnasol i’r swydd.  

Rhoddodd y Cynghorydd Clarke wybod i’r Cabinet ym mis Rhagfyr 2017 roedd 1233 o 
eiddo preswyl sector preifat oedd wedi bod yn wag ers 6 mis neu hirach, roedd 50% o’r 
eiddo hyn wedi bod yn wag ers 6 i 12 mis, fodd bynnag, roedd 31% i’r eiddo wedi bod yn 
wag ers o leiaf 2 flynedd.  Rhoddodd y Cynghorydd Clarke wybod i’r Cabinet bod 18 o 
gapeli ac eglwysi adfeiliedig ledled y bwrdeistref sirol, ac mae’r rhan fwyaf (72%) yn y 
dyffrynnoedd a gellid eu hystyried ar gyfer trosi’n llety preswyl.  

Diolchodd yr Arweinydd i Bwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu Testun 3 am y gwaith yr oedd 
wedi’i wneud wrth gyflwyno argymhellion ar y broses o recriwtio Swyddog Eiddo Gwag, 
a rhoddodd wybod y byddai’r Cabinet yn ystyried yr argymhellion maes o law.  Nododd y 
byddai angen ystyried lle mae’r adnodd Swyddog Eiddo Gwag yn ffitio orau gan ei fod 
yn un fydd yn berthnasol i bob Cyfarwyddiaeth.  Nododd y Dirprwy Arweinydd hefyd y 
byddai’r Cabinet yn ystyried yr argymhellion a bod taclo eiddo gwag yn rhan o 
faniffesto’r Cabinet a’r Grŵp Llafur.  Nododd nad oedd y broblem o eiddo gwag yn y 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 15 MAI 2018

2

Bwrdeistref hwn yn unig, ond yn hytrach yr oedd ledled y rhanbarth gyda dulliau 
gwahanol i daclo’r broblem, ac roedd angen edrych i mewn i arfer gorau mewn lleoedd 
eraill yn y rhanbarth.                

PENDERFYNWYD:      Y byddai’r Cabinet yn ystyried argymhellion y Pwyllgor Trosolwg 
a Chraffu 3 a derbyn adroddiad pellach gan swyddogion ar yr 
argymhellion canlynol:

(1) recriwtio Swyddog Eiddo Gwag dynodedig i fynd ar ôl y 
problemau o ran Tai Gwag ym Mwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont 
ar Ogwr;

(2) ar ei benodiad, y dylai’r Swyddog Eiddo Gwag ddod yn 
gydlynydd ar y Gweithgor Eiddo Gwag.    

204. RHESYMOLI GWASANAETHAU BWS A GEFNOGIR 2018/2019

Rhoddodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Cymunedau wybodaeth am ganlyniad yr 
ymgynghoriad cyhoeddus a gynhaliwyd i leihau cymhorthdal y Cyngor ar gyfer 
gwasanaethau bws gan £188,000 fel y'i cytunwyd yn y Strategaeth Ariannol Tymor 
Canolig.  Ceisiodd farn y Cabinet i weld a ddylid gwneud unrhyw newidiadau i'r cynnig 
gwreiddiol ar sail yr ymgynghoriad cyhoeddus a sylwadau'r Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu 
Corfforaethol.     

Nododd bod y Cyngor a Llywodraeth Cymru’n cefnogi’r ddarpariaeth o wasanaethau 
bysus rhanbarthol a lleol drwy gymorthdalu llwybrau nad ydynt yn hyfyw’n fasnachol.  
Mae’r gwasanaethau hyn yn gweithio ar lwybrau sy’n galluogi preswylwyr i gael 
mynediad at gyflogaeth, addysg, gofal iechyd a gweithgareddau cymdeithasol.    
Rhoddodd wybod i’r Cabinet bod targed arbedion o £188,000 yn 2018/19 wedi’i 
adnabod yn Strategaeth Ariannol Tymor Canolig, fyddai’n gadael £130,000 i 
wasanaethau bws a gefnogir.

Amlinellodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Cymunedau dabl oedd yn amlygu llwybrau 
bysus y cynhigir y dylid canslo eu cymhorthdal ariannol. Y rhain oedd yn sail i'r 
ymgynghoriad.  Rydym wedi cynnal ymgynghoriad ar y gostyngiadau arfaethedig i’r 
gwasanaeth er mwyn casglu barn pobl ar effaith bosibl y gostyngiadau er mwyn cwrdd 
â’r gostyngiad arfaethedig yn y gyllideb sef £188,000 yn 2018/19, yn rhan o Strategaeth 
Ariannol Tymor Canolig y Cyngor.  Amlygodd yr ymatebion a dderbyniwyd i’r 
ymgynghoriad gan nodi ei bod hi’n glir bod y rhan fwyaf o ymatebwyr yn credu bod colli 
gwasanaethau bws lleol yn bryder i gymunedau.  Rhoddodd wybod i’r Cabinet nad oedd 
yn amlwg ar hyn o bryd pe byddai elfen fasnachol y gwasanaethau bws yn dal i 
weithredu ar y llwybrau a ariennir yn rhannol, neu pe byddai’r elfen fasnachol yn cael ei 
hehangu i'r gwasanaethau sydd wedi'u cymhorthdalu ar hyn o bryd.  Nid oedd yn 
wybyddus chwaith a fyddai’r gweithredwr Trafnidiaeth Gymunedol presennol yn gallu 
disodli unrhyw un neu bob un o’r llwybrau bws arfaethedig ar gyfer eu diddymu.  Bydd 
swyddogion yn dal i weithio a chysylltu â’r gweithredwr Trafnidiaeth Gymunedol i 
ganolbwyntio ar yr ardaloedd ym Mhen-y-bont ar Ogwr sydd wedi derbyn gwasanaethau 
bws lleol gostyngedig ac wedi ceisio sicrhau bod y gwasanaeth trafnidiaeth gymunedol a 
ddarperir mor effeithiol â phosibl.  Cafodd yr ymgynghoriad ei ystyried gan y Pwyllgor 
Trosolwg a Chraffu ac amlygodd y materion a godwyd gan y Pwyllgor a’r ymatebion gan 
swyddogion i’r pwyntiau hynny er ystyriaeth y Cabinet.  

Rhoddodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Cymunedau wybod i’r Cabinet pe na byddai 
lefel llawn yr arbediad ar gyfer £188,000 a gymeradwywyd yn y MTFS o ganlyniad i'r 
cynnig i waredu cymhorthdaliadau ar gyfer y llwybrau a nodwyd, byddai angen ei fodloni 
drwy ryw ffordd arall, un ai o arbedion ychwanegol rhywle arall yn y Gyfarwyddiaeth 

Page 4



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 15 MAI 2018

3

Cymunedau neu i fantoli drwy ddynodi cyllid o'r gyllideb fychan sydd heb ei ddynodi o 
ganlyniad i gynyddu'r Dreth Gyngor o 4.2% i 4.5%.  

Diolchodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Gymunedau i ddinasyddion y Bwrdeistref am 
ymgysylltu yn y broses ymgynghori a bod y cyfarfodydd cyhoeddus a fynychodd ef 
wedi'u cynnal yn dda ac yn bwyllog.  Roedd o’r farn bod sgôp i gynnal y cymhorthdal ar 
gyfer y 3 gwasanaeth oedd wedi sgorio uchaf yn asesiad y swyddogion, yn bennaf 
gwasanaethau 51, 803 a 61 am flwyddyn yn unig, i alluogi swyddogion i ymgysylltu â 
gweithredwyr bysus ac i ymgysylltu â Chynghorau Tref a Chymuned.  Rhoddodd wybod 
i’r Cabinet bod llawer o awdurdodau lleol wedi gwaredu pob cymhorthdal o lwybrau 
bysus lleol, gan ofyn bod gweithredwyr bysus yn gweithio gyda'r Cyngor i gadw 
gwasanaethau.  

Nododd y Dirprwy Arweinydd nad oedd y Cyngor yn torri unrhyw lwybrau bysus, ond 
roedd yn gwaredu cymhorthdaliadau o lwybrau ac yn annog y cyhoedd i ddefnyddio 
trafnidiaeth gyhoeddus.  Nododd hefyd bod dyletswydd ar y Cyngor i ddefnyddio cyllid 
cyhoeddus yn gall ac y gellid cynnal trafodaethau gyda'r Bwrdd Iechyd a Chynghorau 
Tref a Chymuned er mwyn cyfrannu at gymhorthdal llwybrau i gynorthwyo'r cyhoedd 
wrth gael mynediad at ofal iechyd a chyfleusterau cymunedol.  Nododd yr Aelod Cabinet 
dros Addysg ac Adfywio yr angen i gynnal gwasanaethau ac i weithio gyda gweithredwyr 
bysus, yn enwedig y llwybrau hynny sydd â hanes hir, sy’n cael eu defnyddio’n aml ac 
sy’n strategol bwysig.   

Nododd yr Arweinydd bod angen i’r Cyngor wneud arbedion o £32m dros y 4 blynedd 
nesaf ac roedd yn bwysig bod y Cabinet yn ymateb i’r ymgynghoriad er mwyn ceisio 
cynnal rhai o’r gwasanaethau hyn.  Nododd y byddai swyddogion yn gweithio gyda 
datblygwyr tai newydd i geisio cyfraniadau er mwyn cynnal llwybrau bysus lle bo’n 
bosibl.      
                   
PENDERFYNWYD:            Y byddai’r Cabinet:

(1) Yn ystyried cynnwys yr adroddiad ymgynghoriad a’r 
Asesiad o’r Effaith ar Gydraddoldeb, ynghyd â’r sylwadau 
a wnaed gan y Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu Corfforaethol;

(2) Yn nodi ei fod yn dymuno cynnal y cymhorthdal i’r 3 
gwasanaeth wnaeth sgorio’n uwch yn asesiad y 
swyddogion, yn bennaf gwasanaethau 51, 803 a 61 ar 
gyfer blwyddyn, a chymeradwyodd y byddai cyllid heb ei 
ddyrannu’n o'r cynnydd yn y Dreth Gyngor yn cael ei roi i 
un ochr i fantoli unrhyw ostyngiad yn yr arbediad 
cymeradwy yn MTFS, sef £188,000;    

(3) Swyddogion ag awdurdod i drafod a negodi â gweithredwyr 
bysus i gynnal gwasanaethau eraill, pwnc y cymhorthdal.

205. CAPITA GLAMORGAN CONSULTANCY LIMITED

Ceisiodd Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Cymunedau gymeradwyaeth i newid Cyfarwyddwr 
enwebedig y Cyngor ar y Bwrdd Menter ar y Cyd; rhoi pŵer i'r Prif Weithredwr i gytuno a 
gweithredu newidiadau arfaethedig i Erthyglau Cymdeithasu'r Cwmni ac i fynd i mewn i 
Gytundeb Amrywiad a phwerau i gytuno a gweithredu unrhyw ddiwygiadau i'r dyfodol i 
Erthyglau Cymdeithasu ac i fynd i mewn i unrhyw Gytundebau Amrywio i'r dyfodol ar y 
cyd â Phennaeth Cyllid; dirprwyo unrhyw hawliau rhanddeiliaid (gan gynnwys hawliau 
pleidleisio) i'r Cyngor a phwerau rheoli eraill sydd ar gael i'r Cyngor fel rhanddeiliad y 
cwmni a rhoi awdurdod i'r Prif Weithredwr ar y cyd â Phennaeth Cyllid lle bydd gan 

Page 5



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 15 MAI 2018

4

unrhyw ganiatâd o’r fath oblygiadau ariannol i’r Cyngor i roi unrhyw ganiatâd sydd ei 
angen gan y Cyngor i sicrhau unrhyw gydymffurfiaeth statudol gan y Cwmni.

Adroddodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Cymunedau bod Capita Joint Venture yn 
arddangos cydweithio partneriaeth rhwng awdurdodau lleol a'r sector preifat wrth 
ddatblygu a chyflawni gwasanaethau.  Mae hefyd yn cefnogi blaenoriaeth y Cyngor o 
ran cefnogi economi llwyddiannus drwy gadw swyddi o safon yn yr ardal a bod â’r 
arbenigedd ar gael yn lleol i daclo projectau priffyrdd, trafnidiaeth ac adfywio yn y 
rhanbarth.    

Adroddodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Cymunedau bod Ymgynghoriaeth Capita 
Morgannwg yn Gwmni Cyd-fenter rhwng Capita Symonds Limited (51% o'r cyfrannau), 
Cyngor RhCT (28% o’r cyfrannau), Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr (15% 
o'r cyfrannau) a Chyngor Merthyr Tudful (6% o'r cyfrannau).  Dechreuodd y Cwmni JV 
fasnachu ar 1 Medi 2008 a bellach mae'n masnachu dan yr enw brand 'Redstart' ers 
2017.  

Nododd ym mis Chwefror 2016, cytunwyd bod angen newid yr Erthyglau Cymdeithasu, 
roedd y diwygiadau eisoes wedi’u negodi a’u cytuno, oedd hefyd wedi arwain at 
ddiwygiadau i’r Cytundeb Menter ar y Cyd a'r Cytundeb Gwasanaethau.  Cadarnhaodd 
hefyd bod dyrannu’r pwerau’n digwydd yn unol â’r ffordd y mae awdurdodau lleol eraill 
yn gweithredu.               

PENDERFYNWYD:            Y byddai’r Cabinet:

1. yn cymeradwyo penodiad deiliad y swydd Pennaeth 
Gwasanaeth Gofal Cymdeithasol Oedolion i ddisodli 
Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Cymunedau yn Gyfarwyddwr y 
Cwmni, i’w gadarnhau yng nghyfarfod Bwrdd nesaf y Cwmni.

2. yn dirprwyo’r pwerau i’r Prif Swyddog Gweithredol i gytuno a 
gweithredu’r diwygiadau arfaethedig i Erthyglau 
Cymdeithasu’r Cwmni ar y cyd â’r Pennaeth Cyllid ar ran y 
Cyngor, ac i fynd i mewn i Gytundeb Diwygiad i newid y 
Cytundeb Menter ar y Cyd a’r Cytundeb Gwasanaethau.

3. dirprwyo pwerau i’r Prif Swyddog Gweithredol i gytuno a 
dyrannu unrhyw ddiwygiadau i’r dyfodol i Erthyglau 
Cymdeithasu’r Cwmni ar y cyd â Phennaeth Cyllid ar ran y 
Cyngor ac i fynd i mewn i unrhyw Gytundebau Diwygio i’r 
dyfodol i ddiwygio darpariaethau'r ddogfennaeth gyfreithiol 
fydd yn berthnasol i'r Cyngor mewn perthynas â sefydlu 
Cwmni Cydfenter a phan fydd y Prif Swyddog Gweithredol yn 
meddwl ei bod hi'n angenrheidiol, bydd y Prif Swyddog 
Gweithredol yn adrodd i'r Cabinet ar ddiwygiadau o'r fath i'r 
Erthyglau Cymdeithasu neu Gytundebau Amrywiad.

4. dirprwyo unrhyw hawliau rhanddeiliaid (gan gynnwys hawliau 
pleidleisio) y Cyngor a phwerau rheoli eraill sydd ar gael i'r 
Cyngor fel rhanddeiliad y Cwmni fel y'i nodir yn y Cytundeb 
Cydfenter a (Erthyglau Cymdeithasu) lle nad ydynt wedi'u 
nodi yn y gytundeb fel eu bod nhw'n berthnasol gan 
Gyfarwyddwr penodedig y Cyngor i'r Prif Swyddog 
Gweithredol ar y cyd â Phennaeth Cyllid, gan gynnwys yr 
hawliau rhanddeiliaid hynny a gyfeirir atynt megis hawliau 
Amddiffyn Rhanddeiliaid yn y Cytundeb Cydfenter.

Page 6



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 15 MAI 2018

5

5. rhoi awdurdod i’r Prif Swyddog Gweithredol ar y cyd â 
Phennaeth Cyllid pan fydd gan unrhyw ganiatadau o’r fath 
oblygiadau ariannol i’r Cyngor i roi unrhyw ganiatâd sydd ei 
angen gan y Cyngor i sicrhau unrhyw gydymffurfiaeth 
statudol gan y Cwmni.     

206. ADOLYGIAD PARCIO

Adroddodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Cymunedau ar gynigion i’r Cabinet i ystyried 
rheolaeth parcio ym Mwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont ac opsiynau a strategaethau i’r 
dyfodol.  

Rhoddodd wybod i’r Cabinet bod y Cyngor yn gyfrifol am 28 o feysydd parcio oddi ar y 
stryd, caiff 10 o’r rheiny eu rhedeg fel meysydd parcio talu ac arddangos, mae 10 
ohonynt yn rhai arhosiad byr, 2 yn arhosiad byr a hir a 5 yn arhosiad hir.  Nododd bod y 
Cyngor wedi derbyn llawer o geisiadau am reolaeth parcio preswyl ond oherwydd 
materion yn ymwneud â gorfodaeth a'r gost, nid yw wedi gallu bwrw ymlaen a 
gweithredu ceisiadau o'r fath.  Yn ei gyfarfod ar 1 Ebrill 2014 cytunodd y Cabinet ar 
argymhellion ar strategaeth i gyflwyno parcio i breswylwyr.  Gwnaeth y Cyngor hefyd 
gomisiynu adolygiad o feysydd parcio cyhoeddus ynghyd â’r cynllun parcio ceir i staff / 
aelodau.  Fodd bynnag, cafodd hyn ei ohirio oherwydd datblygiad y Rhiw a symudiadau 
staff o ganlyniad i gau adeilad Sunnyside.  

Nododd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Cymunedau nad yw'r strwythur tariff presennol ar 
gyfer meysydd oddi ar strydoedd wedi newid ers 2007. Nododd gan fod maes parcio 
Rhiw wedi dod yn ôl i ddefnydd ar ôl ail-ddatblygu, roedd yn briodol i ailsefydlu'r 
adolygiad rheolaeth parcio i gynnwys nifer o faterion eraill oedd wedi dod i'r amlwg i 
swyddogion.  

Amlinellodd yn fanwl y cynigion ynghyd ag argymhellion ar bob un o’r materion a ganlyn:

 Tariffau presennol ar gyfer bob un o feysydd Parcio Talu ac Arddangos y Cyngor 
a Pharcio i Staff.

  Parcio i Breswylwyr yn Nhref Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr 
 Parcio Aros Cyfyngedig ar gyfer Parcio ar y Stryd, Porthcawl
 Posibilrwydd o ddefnyddwyr yn talu mewn meysydd parcio eraill yn y Bwrdeistref 

Sirol
 Darparu pwyntiau gwefru trydanol ym maes parcio'r Rhiw
 Dulliau talu ar beiriannau talu ac arddangos presennol
 Peiriannau Talu ac Arddangos yn cydymffurfio â’r Safonau
 Codi tâl am drwyddedau gollyngiad i Gontractwyr yng Nghanol Tref Pen-y-bont
 Diogelwch – Agor a chloi meysydd parcio a galw allan
 Trosglwyddo Asedau Cymunedol
 Gwydnwch strwythurol pob maes parcio ym Mhen-y-bont

Adroddodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Cymunedau na ddisgwylir y byddai’r 
newidiadau mewn tariffau parcio yn achosi llawer o newid na gwarediad o ddefnyddwyr 
presennol yn y meysydd parcio, er bod hyn yn dal i fod yn risg. Nodwyd bod symleiddio’r 
strwythur tariffau'n cael ei ystyried fel ei fod yn cefnogi ymwelwyr i ganol y dref, a gallai 
annof arhosiad hirach.  Roedd wedi’i rhagweld ar hyn o bryd, er nad oedd yn 
warantedig, y byddai’r newidiadau arfaethedig yn creu gweddill dros y drefn codi tâl ar 
hyn o bryd tua £50,000, fyddai'n cael ei ddefnyddio i leihau'r diffyg ar y gyllideb a 
gwneud gwaith trwsio cyffredinol i feysydd parcio presennol lle bo'n bosibl.  Rhoddodd 
wybod i’r Cabinet y disgwylir i’r newid mewn prisiau ym Maes Parcio Rest Bay greu 

Page 7



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 15 MAI 2018

6

gweddill o dua £20,000; fodd bynnag byddai’n rhaid ailfuddsoddi unrhyw gynnydd yn 
Locks Common.  Nododd bod dyraniad cyfalaf o £128,000 er mwyn cyflwyno parcio i 
breswylwyr yn nhref Pen-y-bont fyddai'n cael ei ddefnyddio i gyflwyno'r cynllun 
arfaethedig.  Byddai cyflwyno Gorchymyn Traffig Aros Cyfyngedig ger y môr ym 
Mhorthcawl yn costio £40,000, a byddai cyflwyno pwyntiau gwefru trydanol ym Maes 
Parcio’r Rhiw yn costio £20,000. Fodd bynnag, ni fyddant yn cael eu cyflwyno nes bod 
cyllid ar gael, ac yn achos y cynnig parcio ym Mhorthcawl, nid oedd unrhyw ymgynghori 
wedi'i gynnal hyd yma.  Nododd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Cymunedau bod cyllideb o 
£110,000 ar gyfer mesurau adferol i feysydd parcio yn y rhaglen gyfalaf a byddai gwaith 
yn ymwneud â gwydnwch strwythurol maes parcio Brackla 1 yn cael ei ddefnyddio i 
ymgymryd â mân waith.

Croesawodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Gymunedau yr ymgynghoriad ar y cynigion parcio 
ym Mhorthcawl ac ar gyfer symleiddio tariffau parcio ac y byddai'n ddiddorol gweld sut 
byddai cyflwyno seilwaith gwefru Cerbydau Allyriadau Isel Iawn (ULEV) yn datblygu.  
Wrth gymeradwyo’r cynigion, diolchodd i’r swyddogion am greu’r adroddiad oedd wedi 
bod yn llawn adnoddau.  Nododd yr Arweinydd bod y cynigion yn ystod y cam hwn yn 
destun ymgynghoriad, ac anogodd y cyhoedd i gymryd.  Nododd nad oedd unrhyw 
gyfeiriad yn y cynigion at gyflwyno pwyntiau gwefru i ddeiliaid bathodynnau glas, ac 
ymrwymodd i sicrhau bod hynny’n parhau.    

Rhoddodd y Pennaeth Cabinet dros dro wybod i’r Cabinet bod cynnal a chadw meysydd 
parcio’n costio mwy na'r incwm sy'n dod o gostau meysydd parcio.  Nododd y byddai’n 
rhaid i bob Cyngor ystyried codi costau’n rhan o’r broses gyllidebol ac y byddai Ymchwil 
Cyllidebol a’r Panel Gwerthuso'n ystyried incwm a chostau a greir.          
                    
PENDERFYNWYD:            (1) Y byddai'r Cabinet yn rhoi'r awdurdod i'r Cyfarwyddwr 

Corfforaethol - Cymunedau:

Argymhelliad 1: Ymgynghori ar y cynnig i symleiddio tariffau parcio ym mhob 
maes parcio arhosiad byr, ac os yw’n briodol, ei weithredu

Argymhelliad 2: Ymgynghori ar y cynnig i symleiddio’r tariffau ym mhob maes 
parcio arhosiad hir heblaw am Rest Bay a Brackla 1 aml-lawr 
(gyferbyn ag Asda) ac os yw’n briodol, ei weithredu

Argymhelliad 3: Ymgynghori ar y cynnig i safoni amseroedd Brackla 1 
(gyferbyn ag Asda) i fod yr un peth â meysydd parcio 
arhosiad hir eraill, ac hefyd i symleiddio’r tariffau fel eu bod yr 
un fath â meysydd parcio arhosiad hir eraill ac os yw'n 
briodol, ei weithredu

Argymhelliad 4: Ymgynghori ar y cynnig i newid amseroedd gwefru ym Maes 
Parcio Rest Bay i rhoi’r cyfle i ddefnyddwyr gael mwy o 
ddewis a hyblygrwydd, ac hefyd i symleiddio’r tariffau ac os 
yw’n briodol ei weithredu

Argymhelliad 6: Ymgynghori ar y cynnig i drosi pob rhan o Faes Parcio Bowls 
a Maes Parcio Tremains yn fannau arhosiad hir i symleiddio'r 
profiad parcio.

Argymhelliad 7: Ymgynghori ar y ddarpariaeth aros Cyfyngedig ar hyd Ffrynt 
Porthcawl (gan gynnwys Promenâd y Dwyrain) ac os yw'n 
briodol, cyflwyno cyfyngiadau newydd.

Page 8



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 15 MAI 2018

7

Argymhelliad 8: Gweithredu cyflwyniad cynllun peilot yn y Rhiw i gyflwyno 
peiriannau gwefru seilwaith gwefru ULEV yn amodol ar gael 
cyllid.

Argymhelliad 9: Bwrw ymlaen â diweddaru peiriannau talu ac arddangos 
presennol.

Argymhelliad 10:             Ymchwilio i, ac os yw’n briodol cyflwyno, cost gweinyddol ar 
gyfer trwyddedau i gerbydau barcio ar y stryd.

Argymhelliad 11:             Yr Awdurdod i ymchwilio a gweithredu os yw'n briodol, y 
costau rhyddhau allan o oriau ar gyfer meysydd parcio sy'n 
eiddo i'r cyngor.

 (2) Y dylai'r Cabinet nodi'r canlynol:

Argymhelliad 5: Y dylai trwyddedau parcio staff/aelodau etholedig gael eu 
hadolygu’n flynyddol ac y dylai staff ac aelodau etholedig 
sydd â pharthau/mannau parcio penodol fod â mwy o 
wahaniaeth o £5 y mis. Bydd pob trwydded hefyd yn cynnwys 
dyddiau Sadwrn i hybu'r defnydd o feysydd parcio canol y 
dref ar benwythnosau. 

Argymhelliad 12:             Bod y Swyddog CAT yn ymchwilio i Drosglwyddiadau Ased 
Cymunedol o feysydd parcio nad oes modd codi tâl ynddynt.

207. STRATEGAETH PRESENOLDEB YSGOL

Ceisiodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Dros Dro Addysg a Chymorth Teulu 
gymeradwyaeth y Strategaeth Presenoldeb Ysgol ar gyfer 2018-2021.  

Rhoddodd wybod i’r Cabinet bod cysylltiad amlwg rhwng cyrhaeddiad addysgol da a 
lefelau uchel o bresenoldeb, tra bod presenoldeb gwael a chyrraedd yr ysgol yn hwyr yn 
cael effaith andwyol ar addysg plentyn, a gall gael effaith sylweddol ar ei lesiant.  
Nododd bod y strategaeth presenoldeb ysgol wedi’i adolygu a’i ddiweddaru i ystyried 
canllawiau cenedlaethol ac arfer da.  

Nododd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Dros Dro Addysg a Chymorth Teulu bod graddau 
presenoldeb ysgol wedi gweld cynnydd cyffredinol dros y blynyddoedd academaidd 
2013-2016.  Gwelwyd mân ostyngiad yn 2016-2017, gyda phresenoldeb ysgolion 
cynradd yn 95.1% a chyda sgôr 5ed yng Nghymru, tra bod presenoldeb ysgolion 
uwchradd ar gyfer yr un cyfnod yn 94.2% ac yn 7ed yng Nghymru.  Roedd y mân 
ostyngiad mewn presenoldeb yn dal i fod yn uwch na chyfartaledd Cymru a 
Chonsortiwm Canol y De.  Rhoddodd wybod i’r Cabinet bod cymorth a chanllawiau ar 
gael i bob ysgol gan y Gwasanaeth Lles Addysg ac asiantau cymorth eraill, a bod pnaeli 
presenoldeb yn dal i gael eu gweithredu er mwyn rhannu arfer da mewn ysgolion, er fod 
angen gwaith pellach i sicrhau cysondeb ledled ysgolion yr awdurdod.             

Wrth gymeradwyo’r Strategaeth Presenoldeb Ysgolion nododd yr Aelod Cabinet dros 
Addysg ac Adfywio ei fod yn barhad o’r strategaeth flaenorol.  Roedd yn bryderus am 
ddefnydd Hysbysiadau Cosb Benodedig gan rhai awdurdodau lleol, ond cafodd sicrwydd 
gan y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Dros Dro Addysg a Chymorth Teulu bod y rhain yn 
cael eu defnyddio fel cosb olaf yn unig.  Rhoddodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Dros 
Dro Addysg a Chymorth Teulu wybod i'r Cabinet bod yr awdurdod wedi cyflwyno 40 o 
Hysbysiadau Cosb Benodedig yn y 5 mlynedd diwethaf am beidio â mynychu’r ysgol.    

Page 9



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 15 MAI 2018

8

PENDERFYNWYD:       Y byddai'r Cabinet yn ffurfiol yn cymeradwyo ac yn mabwysiadu 
polisi presenoldeb ysgol yr awdurdod lleol ar gyfer 2018-2021.     

208. EITEMAU BRYS

Nid oedd dim materion brys.  

Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 15:44

Page 10



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 19 MEHEFIN 2018

1

COFNODION CYFARFOD Y CABINET A GYNHALIWYD YN YSTAFELLOEDD PWYLLGOR 
1/2/3 - SWYDDFEYDD DINESIG, STRYD YR ANGEL, PEN-Y-BONT AR OGWR CF31 4WB 
AR DYDD MAWRTH, 19 MEHEFIN 2018 AM 14:30

Presennol

Y Cynghorydd HJ David – Cadeirydd

PJ White D Patel

Ymddiheuriadau am Absenoldeb

CE Smith, HM Williams a/ac RE Young 

Swyddogion:

Gill Lewis Pennaeth Cyllid a Swyddog 151 Dros Dro
Kelly Watson Rheolwr Grŵp Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Democrataidd
Darren Mepham Prif Weithredwr
Mark Shephard Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Cymunedau
Susan Cooper Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Lles
Mark Galvin Uwch Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd - Pwyllgorau
Lindsay Harvey Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol – Addysg a Chymorth i Deuluoedd 

(Dros Dro)

209. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANT

Dim.

210. PERFFORMIAD ARIANNOL 2017-18

Cyflwynodd y Pennaeth Cyllid Interim adroddiad a diben yr adroddiad rhoi'r diweddaraf 
i'r Cabinet ar berfformiad ariannol y Cyngor am y flwyddyn a ddaeth i ben ar 31 Mawrth 
2018.

Rhoddodd yr adroddiad beth gwybodaeth gefndir, gan gadarnhau bod y Cyngor ar 1 
Mawrth 2017 wedi cymeradwyo cyllideb refeniw net o £258.093m ar gyfer 2017-18, 
ynghyd â rhaglen gyfalaf ar gyfer y flwyddyn o £63.854m, oedd wedi ei diweddaru yn 
ystod y flwyddyn ariannol er mwyn ystyried cymeradwyaethau newydd a llithriant 
cynlluniau i 2018-19.

Gwnaeth adran nesaf yr adroddiad, amlinellu yn Nhabl 1 gymhariaeth o gyllideb yn 
erbyn alldro gwirioneddol ar 31 Mawrth 2018, gan gadarnhau bod yr alldro cyffredinol ar 
y dyddiad uchod yn danwariant o £387k sydd wedi ei drosglwyddo i Gronfa’r Cyngor.

Roedd Tabl 2 yn yr adran nesaf yr adroddiad, yn cynnwys Trosglwyddiadau ac 
addasiadau technegol a broseswyd yn ystod Chwarter 4, ac roedd paragraff 4.2 o’r 
adroddiad yn tynnu sylw at Ostyngiadau Cyllideb ar gyfer 2016-17 a 2017-18 a monitro 
parhaus y rhain gan y Prif Weithredwr a’r Cyfarwyddwyr.

Roedd adran nesaf yr adroddiad yn rhoi sylwadaeth ar sefyllfa ariannol prif feysydd 
gwasanaeth yr Awdurdod (gweler Atodiad 3 am ragor o fanylion), yn gystal â sylwadau 
ar yr amrywiadau mwyaf arwyddocaol ym mhob un o wahanol feysydd 
Cyfarwyddiaethau’r Cyngor.

Page 11



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 19 MEHEFIN 2018

2

Yna rhoddodd paragraff 4.4 o’r adroddiad ddiweddariad i’r Cabinet ar Raglen Gyfalaf y 
Cyngor ar gyfer 2017-18, gan gynnwys cymeradwyaethau newydd sydd nail ai’n cael eu 
cyllido gan grant neu’n ymwneud â chynlluniau a ariannwyd gan refeniw ond sydd wedi 
eu hail ddosbarthu fel gwariant cyfalaf, yn unol â gofynion cyfrifo, er enghraifft offer 
TGCh (£151k) a mân waith. Dangosodd paragraff 4.4.3 fanylion am y prif gynlluniau lle 
roedd angen llithriant, a’r rhesymau dros y llithriant.

Roedd Atodiad 4.4.4 wedyn yn amlinellu manylion y cynlluniau unigol yn y Rhaglen 
Gyfalaf, gan ddangos y gyllideb oedd ar gael yn 2017-18 o gymharu â’r gwariant 
gwirioneddol. Cadarnhaodd y Pennaeth Cyllid Interim mai cyfanswm y gwariant ar 31 
Mawrth 2018 oedd £36.584 miliwn, a arweiniodd at danwariant bach o £39k ar 
adnoddau Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr (CBSP), a fyddai’n cael ei 
ddychwelyd i’r gronfa derbyniadau cyfalaf.

Cyfeiriodd yr adroddiad wedyn at Gronfeydd wrth gefn wedi eu Clustnodi’r Cyngor, gan 
gynnwys yr arian a dynnwyd i lawr o’r rhain yn ystod 2017-18. Roedd tabl 6 yn yr 
adroddiad yn rhoi symudiad manwl pellach ar y rhain ar gyfer y cyfnod uchod. 
Darparwyd manylion llawn am y sefyllfa’n ymwneud â Chronfeydd wrth gefn a 
Glustnodwyd yn Atodiad 5 i’r adroddiad.

Yn olaf, dangosodd Tabl 7 yn 4.5.3 o’r adroddiad y Dyraniadau Net i/o Gronfeydd wrth 
gefn wedi eu Clustnodi yn ystod Chwarter 4.

Cyfeiriodd aelod at dudalen 12 o’r adroddiad a thynnu sylw at y ffaith bod  £1.183m o 
orwariant ym maes Plant sy'n Derbyn Gofal (LAC) yn ystod y 3 blynedd diwethaf, a 
gofynnodd hi a oedd y sefyllfa yma yn gwella.

Cynghorodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Llesiant fod 
niferoedd y Plant sy'n Derbyn Gofal yn amrywio ond hefyd yn dangos arwyddion eu bod 
yn lleihau, felly byddai gorwario yn y maes gwasanaeth hwn, gobeithio, yn parhau i wella 
yn y dyfodol.

Nododd aelod hefyd fod y cynnydd yn niferoedd y plant mewn ysgolion cynradd ac 
uwchradd yn arwain at y Cyngor yn gorfod darparu mwy o Drafnidiaeth o’r Cartref i’r 
Ysgol yn ogystal â cheisio darparu cynnydd o ran Llwybrau Diogel i Ysgolion. 

Cadarnhaodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Interim - Addysg a Chymorth i Deuluoedd 
mai dyma oedd yr achos, a bod hyn yn waith parhaus, ac y byddai ef yn rhoi gwybod i’r 
Cabinet am ddiweddariadau ar yr uchod maes o law, pan fyddai'r darnau hyn o waith 
wedi cael eu cwblhau.

Daeth yr Arweinydd â’r drafodaeth ar yr eitem hon i ben, drwy gynghori bod y Cyngor 
wedi lleihau £400k o’r gorwariant, o ganlyniad i’r defnydd o Ofalwyr Maeth Mewnol o 
gymharu â’r Gofalwyr Maeth Annibynnol mwy drud.

PENDERFYNWYD:         Bod y Cabinet yn nodi'r sefyllfa Alldro Refeniw a Chyfalaf 
gwirioneddol ar gyfer 2017-18.

211. CYNNIG I GYNNWYS Y GWASANAETH ARCHWILIO MEWNOL A RENNIR (RIASS) 
MEWN GWASANAETH MWY A GYNHELIR GAN GYNGOR BRO MORGANNWG I 
GYNNWYS DAU GYNGOR YCHWANEGOL

Cyflwynodd y Pennaeth Cyllid Interim a Swyddog S151 adroddiad, oedd yn nodi cynnig 
ar gyfer Gwasanaeth Archwilio Mewnol y Cyngor sydd eisoes yn rhan o'r Cydwasanaeth 
Archwilio Mewnol Rhanbarthol (RIASS) a gynhelir gan Gyngor Bro Morgannwg, i ddod 
yn rhan o gydweithrediad mwy.

Page 12



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 19 MEHEFIN 2018

3

Tynnodd cefndir i’r adroddiad sylw at drefniant sydd wedi bodoli ers 2012, lle roedd gan 
CBSP a Cyngor Bro Morgannwg drefniant partneriaeth yn ei le o ran darparu 
Cydwasanaeth Archwilio Mewnol.

Cynghorodd y Pennaeth Cyllid Interim a Swyddog S151 fod, fel roedd yr adroddiad yn 
awgrymu, cynnig bellach i ymestyn y bartneriaeth hon er mwyn cynnwys dau awdurdod 
lleol arall,  h.y. Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Rhondda Cynon Taf a Merthyr Tudful. Byddai 
hyn yn cynorthwyo’r Gwasanaeth i allu darparu’r Cynllun Archwilio, drwy lenwi swyddi 
gwag a oedd ar hyn o bryd yn rhy anodd recriwtio ar eu cyfer.

Eglurodd y byddai ymestyn y cydweithio hwn hefyd yn gwella gwydnwch y gwasanaeth 
ymhellach drwy gael tîm mwy o staff, o gymharu â'r drefn bresennol o dimau llai ar 
wahân ar draws llai o awdurdodau. 

Cadarnhaodd y Pennaeth Cyllid Interim a Swyddog S151 mai Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol 
Bro Morgannwg fyddai’n parhau i fod yr awdurdod cyflogi unigol ar gyfer staff, ac y 
byddai staff priodol yn y ddau Awdurdod newydd fyddai’n ehangu’r Gwasanaeth yn 
agored i drefniadau TUPE ac yn cael eu trosglwyddo i’r Awdurdod cynnal. Fodd bynnag, 
ni fyddai hyn yn effeithio ar staff CBSP, ychwanegodd.

Cynghorodd yr Arweinydd bod hwn yn enghraifft ardderchog o awdurdodau lleol yn 
cymryd yr awenau er mwyn gweithio gyda’i gilydd drwy drefniant cydweithredol, o 
gymharu â chael ei arwain gan Lywodraeth Cymru.

PENDERFYNWYD:               Bod y Cabinet yn:

(1) Cymeradwyo’r cynnig i’r RIASS ehangu i gynnwys RhCT a Merthyr gyda Chyngor 
Bro Morgannwg yn parhau i weithredu fel yr awdurdod cynnal; 

(2)   Awdurdodi’r Pennaeth Cyllid Interim a Swyddog Adran 151, mewn ymgynghoriad 
â’r Swyddog Monitro, i wneud y trefniadau angenrheidiol er mwyn i Gyngor 
Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr ddod yn rhan o RIASS estynedig yn amodol ar 
Drefniant a Chytundeb Partneriaeth; 

(3)  Nodi y byddai’r adroddiad hwn, yn amodol ar ei gymeradwyo, yn cael ei gyflwyno i 
Bwyllgor Archwilio’r Cyngor ac y byddai’r Pwyllgor yn derbyn o dasg o oruchwylio’r 
trefniadau gweithredu sydd eu hangen yn ystod 2018/19. 

212. CYFRADDAU ANNOMESTIG: RHYDDHAD DEWISOL: CYNLLUN RHYDDHAD 
ARDRETHI STRYD 2018-19

Cyflwynodd y Pennaeth Cyllid a Swyddog S151 adroddiad, yn ceisio cymeradwyaeth y 
Cabinet i fabwysiadu Cynllun Rhyddhad Ardrethi Stryd Fawr Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer 
2018/19.

Cadarnhaodd bod Llywodraeth Cymru wedi cyhoeddi y byddai’r fenter hon ar gael ar 
gyfer 2018-19 i gynorthwyo busnesau yn y sector manwerthu yng Nghymru. Roedd y 
cynllun yn gosod allan y categorïau gwahanol o safleoedd fyddai’n cael budd o Ryddhad 
a chafodd y rhain eu nodi mewn manylder yn Atodiad A i’r adroddiad. 

Cadarnhaodd ymhellach y byddai’r Cyngor yn ariannu cost gychwynnol y Cynllun, ond 
yna byddai’n derbyn ad-daliad yn unol â hynny gan Lywodraeth Cymru.

Page 13



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 19 MEHEFIN 2018

4

Cadarnhaodd y Pennaeth Cyllid a Swyddog S151 y byddai angen, er mwyn gweithredu’r 
Cynllun, rhoi dirprwyaeth i’r Prif Weithredwr o dan Gynllun Dirprwyo’r Cyngor, ar hyd y 
llinellau a ddangosir ym mharagraff 4.3 yr adroddiad.

Wedi i’r cynllun gael ei fabwysiadu, byddai’r Cyngor yn gorfod cydymffurfio â rheolau 
Llywodraeth Cymru wrth ddefnyddio’r Cynllun, ychwanegodd.

 Roedd yr Aelod Cabinet dros y Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Chymorth Cynnar yn 
teimlo bod hon yn fenter dda, y gallai tua 391 o fanwerthwyr elwa ohoni, a gofynnodd a 
fyddai’r Cyngor yn ysgrifennu at y manwerthwyr i’w hysbysu am y Cynllun, neu a 
fyddai’n rhaid iddyn nhw fynd at y Cyngor er mwyn elwa ohono.

Cadarnhaodd y Pennaeth Cyllid a Swyddog S151 ei bod yn siŵr y byddai’r Cyngor yn 
hysbysu busnesau lleol am y cynllun, yn hytrach na'u bod nhw yn mynd at y Cyngor eu 
hunain, er y byddai hi’n gwirio mai dyma oedd y broses. 

Mewn ymateb i gwestiwn pellach, ychwanegodd fod y Cynllun hefyd yn rhoi gwybod i 
berchnogion busnes os ydynt yn cyfranogi yn y Cynllun, na ddylent dorri Rheolau 
Cymorth Gwladwriaethol.

Cynghorodd yr Arweinydd ei bod yn gobeithio bod modd mabwysiadu’r Cynllun cyn 
gynted â phosibl fel bod busnesau lleol yn gallu elwa ohono heb oedi.

Cynghorodd y Pennaeth Cyllid a Swyddog S151 y byddai hi’n sicrhau mai dyma fyddai’r 
achos, ond ychwanegodd na fyddai awdurdodau lleol yn gwybod a fyddai’r Cynllun yn 
digwydd yn fynych tan fis Ebrill 2019.

PENDERFYNWYD: Bod y Cabinet yn:

(1) Mabwysiadu’r Cynllun Rhyddhad Ardrethi Annomestig Stryd Fawr fel y gwelir yn 
Atodiad A i’r adroddiad.

(2) Cymeradwyo’r diwygiad i’r Cynllun Dirprwyo Swyddogaethau fel y nodir ym 
mharagraff 4.3 o’r adroddiad.  

213. POLISI RHEOLI COED CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL PEN-Y-BONT AR OGWR

Cynghorodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Cymunedau mai pwrpas yr adroddiad oedd 
tynnu sylw at werth poblogaeth Coed Trefol Sir Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr a gwneud gwaith 
rheoli coed sy’n flaenoriaeth a chymeradwyo Polisi Rheoli Coed hirdymor CBSP.

Eglurodd fod y gwaith yn digwydd yn erbyn cefndir o ystyried iechyd a diogelwch, yn 
ogystal ag arfer gorau mewn perthynas â chadwraeth a gwella amgylcheddol.

Cadarnhaodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Cymunedau fod CBSP yn 2005 wedi llunio 
polisi corfforaethol i ddelio â chwynion a dderbynnir yng nghyd-destun coed ar dir sy’n 
eiddo i’r Cyngor, ac eithrio coed sy’n effeithio ar y briffordd. Ers hyn, mae protocol a 
rhestr wirio coed wedi eu paratoi a’u defnyddio fel asesiad coed cychwynnol.

Roedd paragraffau 3.8 a 3.9 o’r adroddiad wedyn yn tynnu sylw at wybodaeth ystadegol 
benodol yn ymwneud a choed a leolir yn y Fwrdeistref Sirol a sut yr oedd y rhain yn 
cynorthwyo'r amgylchedd.

Yna cadarnhaodd fod Gweithgor ar draws Cyfarwyddiaethau wedi ei sefydlu yn sgil hyn, 
er mwyn ystyried opsiynau ar gyfer dull yn y dyfodol tuag at reoli coed ar dir sy’n eiddo i 
CBSP. Y ffocws yma oedd adolygu dull presennol y Cyngor o ran rheoli coed a chreu 

Page 14



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 19 MEHEFIN 2018

5

Cynllun Polisi, Gweithdrefnau a Rheoli newydd gyda ffocws deuol ar elfennau iechyd a 
diogelwch a chadwraeth a gwella amgylcheddol.  Cafodd yr opsiynau hyn eu cynnwys 
ym mharagraff 4.2 o’r adroddiad.

Yna cyfeiriodd yr Aelodau at baragraff 4.7 o’r adroddiad, ble roedd yn cadarnhau bod 
Polisi Rheoli Coed newydd wedi ei ddatblygu, a oedd ynghlwm yn Atodiad 1 i’r 
adroddiad.

Cynghorodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Cymunedau fod CBSP wedi derbyn nifer 
mawr o geisiadau gan y cyhoedd i wneud gwaith ar goed a ystyrir yn ddianghenraid. 
Ychwanegodd na fyddai gwaith a ystyrir felly yn digwydd yn y Polisi hwn.

Ychwanegodd ymhellach fod y Polisi Rheoli Coed yn nodi y byddai CBSP yn ceisio 
arwain drwy enghraifft ar safleoedd o fewn ei reolaeth, drwy blannu a lle y bo’n ymarferol 
bosibl, ceisio annog plannu coed a choetiroedd ar safleoedd nad ydynt yn eiddo i CBSP.

Yn achos goblygiadau ariannol yr adroddiad, cynghorodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - 
Cymunedau fod swm o £70k ar gael drwy gronfa wrth gefn a glustnodwyd i ymgymryd â 
rhannau (a), (b), (d) ac € a amlinellir ym mharagraff 4.2 o’r adroddiad. Gwariwyd 
£21,355 yn 2017/18 a £13,615 pellach yn 2018/19. Roedd yn hyn gadael £35,030 i 
weithredu ar y coed mwyaf peryglus (ar gael yn y gronfa wrth gefn a glustnodwyd).

Cymeradwywyd yr adroddiad gan Aelodau'r Cabinet.
     
PENDERFYNWYD: Bod y Cabinet yn:

(1) Nodi canfyddiadau’r adroddiad Gwerthuso Coed Trefol.

(2) Nodi’r cynnydd a wnaed i sefydlu dull newydd tuag at reoli coed presennol CBSP a 
chymeradwyo’r dull o ran plannu coed.

(3) Cymeradwyo Polisi Rheoli Coed newydd CBSP.

214. DARPARU CYFLEUSTERAU CYHOEDDUS

Cyflwynodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Cymunedau adroddiad, i geisio 
cymeradwyaeth y Cabinet ar ddarparu cyfleusterau cyhoeddus ledled y Fwrdeistref Sirol 
fel y nodwyd yng nghorff yr adroddiad.

Eglurodd fod arbedion y cytunwyd arnynt wedi eu neilltuo fel rhan o gynigion y 
Strategaeth Ariannol Tymor Canolig, mewn perthynas yn achos darparu toiledau a 
berchnogir ac a weithredir gan y Cyngor.

Ar gyfer gwybodaeth gefndirol, atgoffodd ef y Cabinet wedyn bod y Cyngor wedi cysylltu 
yn 2015 â’r cyhoedd ynglŷn â’r ddarpariaeth o gyfleusterau cyhoeddus, ac yn dilyn hyn, 
lleihawyd nifer y toiledau yng nghanol trefi’r Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol o 9 i 6 a 
digomisiynwyd y troethfeydd i ddynion yn unig. 

Dangosodd paragraff 4.1 o’r adroddiad ar ffurf tabl wedyn leoliad y toiledau cyhoeddus 
yn y Fwrdeistref Sirol a’u hamserau agor, tra bod paragraff 4.2 yn cynghori am arolwg 
ymgynghori cyhoeddus a wnaed dros gyfnod o 8 wythnos rhwng mis Chwefror a mis 
Ebrill 2018, ac roedd adrannau nesaf yr adroddiad yn amlinellu manylion am 
ganfyddiadau a chasgliadau hyn. Cadarnhaodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - 
Cymunedau, tra bod adborth yn cael ei ystyried, roedd rhaid ystyried rhai gweithredoedd 
o ran cau cyfleusterau cyhoeddus er mwyn gwneud yr arbedion a amlinellir yn y 
Strategaeth Ariannol Tymor Canolig.

Page 15



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 19 MEHEFIN 2018

6

Roedd manylion llawn yr ymgynghoriad cyhoeddus a’i ganfyddiadau wedi eu cyplysu i 
Atodiad A i’r adroddiad, tra bod paragraff 4.21 yn cynnwys manylion am ddarpariaeth 
cyfleusterau cyhoeddus presennol sydd wedi'i chynllunio a threfniadau gweithredu ar 
gyfer toiledau a weithredir gan y Cyngor ym Maesteg, Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr a Phorthcawl 
gan gynnwys argymhellion ar gyfer gweithredu'r rhain yn y dyfodol.

Gorffennodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Cymunedau ei gyflwyniad drwy gynghori 
aelodau ynghylch goblygiadau ariannol yr adroddiad.

Cynghorodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros y Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Chymorth Cynnar 
ei bod yn gadarnhaol gweld rhai Cynghorau Tref/Cymuned yn ymrwymo i gefnogi rhai 
cyfleusterau cyhoeddus mewn ymdrech i’w cadw mewn gweithrediad, trwy CAT ac ati.

Gorffennodd yr Arweinydd y drafodaeth drwy ddiolch i Trosolwg a Chraffu am eu 
mewnbwn ac am yr argymhellion yr oeddent  wedi eu cyflwyno’n flaenorol yng nghyd-
destun y mater hwn.

PENDERFYNWYD: Bod y Cabinet yn:

(1) Cymeradwyo’r trywydd gweithredu arfaethedig a ddisgrifir yn yr 
adroddiad, yn benodol y gweithredoedd a gyflwynir yn adran 4.21 
yr adroddiad.

(2) Cymeradwyo rhoi arwyddion ar y toiledau yn nerbynfa’r 
Swyddfeydd Dinesig er mwyn iddynt gael eu defnyddio gan y 
cyhoedd (i’w ariannu gan gyllideb refeniw strydlun), fel yr 
argymhellwyd gan yr aelodau Craffu yn adran 4.22 yr adroddiad.

215. MARCHNAD PEN-Y-BONT AR OGWR - CYNLLUN GWELLA

Cyflwynodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Cymunedau adroddiad, i argymell i’r Cabinet 
gymeradwyo a gweithredu Cynllun Gwella Rheoli i Farchnad Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr.

Cadarnhaodd fod nifer o fasnachwyr wedi dyfynnu’r costau rhentu cymharol uchel (o 
gymharu ag unedau manwerthu yng nghanol tref Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr a’r rhai hynny 
mewn marchnadoedd tebyg yng Nghymru) a’r niferoedd uchel o unedau gwag fel eu prif 
resymau dros adael y farchnad.

Roedd yr adroddiad hefyd yn cynghori bod Watts and Morgan wedi cynghori bod 
unedau gwag yn y farchnad ar gael ac nad oeddent yn cael eu llenwi, gan fod y rhent ar 
gyfer y rhain yn cael ei osod yn rhy uchel. Roedd y ffactor hwn hefyd yn cael effaith ar 
faint o rent yr oedd CBSP yn ei gasglu, nad oedd mor dda ag y gallai fod pe byddai 
lefelau rhent ar gyfer lleoedd yn cael eu lleihau i lefel fwy rhesymol fyddai’n cynyddu 
diddordeb masnachwyr i’w cymryd. Byddai hyn hefyd wedyn yn cynorthwyo wrth 
gynyddu nifer yr ymwelwyr yng nghanol tref Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr, ychwanegodd.

Roedd adran nesaf yr adroddiad wedyn yn cyfeirio at gynigion marchnata ar gyfer y 
Farchnad Dan Do ynghyd â rhai cynigion yn ymwneud â thelerau prydlesi ar gyfer y 
dyfodol.

O ystyried goblygiadau ariannol yr adroddiad, cynghorodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - 
Cymunedau y byddai gostyngiad parhaol yn rhent masnachwyr presennol o 25% yn cael 
ei rewi tan Ebrill 2020, yn cynyddu diffyg o ran rhent yn y farchnad o £43,500 y flwyddyn. 
Cafodd gostyngiad rhent ar gyfer masnachwyr newydd ei gynnig er mwyn eu denu i’r 
farchnad. Bydd y gostyngiad hwn yn arwain at lai o incwm ar sail stondin unigol, o 

Page 16



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 19 MEHEFIN 2018

7

gyfraddau presennol, ond gyda’i gilydd efallai na fydd hyn yn arwain at ostyngiad 
cyffredinol dramatig o ran incwm os yw nifer y stondinau a gaiff eu rhentu ac yn y 
pendraw y rhent yn cynyddu.

Gorffennodd y swyddog drwy nodi y byddai’r newidiadau arfaethedig yn arwain at ddiffyg 
o ran cyllideb yr eir i’r afael ag ef yn gorfforaethol drwy adnoddau wrth gefn a 
glustnodwyd yn 2018/19. Fodd bynnag, bydd angen datblygu ateb tymor hwy wedi i’r 
adnoddau wrth gefn a glustnodwyd gael eu defnyddio.

Cynghorodd yr arweinydd fod Canolfan Siopa’r Rhiw, Cyngor Tref Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr a 
Rhanbarth Gwella Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr wedi bod yn gweithio gyda’r Cabinet ac Aelodau 
lleol er mwyn cefnogi cynigion yr adroddiad, yn ogystal â masnachwyr hefyd yn cael 
mewnbwn mawr, gyda’r bwriad o wella’r sefyllfa bresennol. Ychwanegodd ymhellach ei 
bod yn bwysig fod y cyhoedd yn ymwybodol bod CBSP yn prydlesu yn hytrach nag yn 
berchen ar y Farchnad Dan Do ar gost o £120k y flwyddyn.

PENDERFYNWYD:                   Cytunodd y Cabinet ar y canlynol: 

(1) Cyflwyno gostyngiad parhaol yn rhent Marchnad Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr i fasnachwyr 
presennol o 25%, yn weithredol o 1 Gorffennaf 2018, a bod pob rhent yn cael ei rewi 
tan fis Ebrill 2020.

(2) Lleihau rhent gofyn a ddyfynnwyd gan Watts & Morgan. Byddai unrhyw rent newydd 
yn ddibynnol ar faint y stondin unigol ac yn adlewyrchu cyngor Watts & Morgan.

(3) Caniadau tenantiaeth masnachwyr newydd a fyddai’n cynnig amodau defnyddio mwy 
hyblyg. Rhagwelir y bydd y newidiadau penodol hyn yn cynyddu nifer y prydlesau ac 
yn y pendraw yn gwella egni a deiliadaeth marchnad Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr. 

(4) Dechrau rhaglen o farchnata a mentrau buddsoddi cyfalaf, o fewn cyllidebau 
presennol ac mewn partneriaeth â pherchnogion Canolfan Siopa’r Rhiw er mwyn 
gwella arwyddion, arddangosfeydd, amgylchedd a defnydd o’r Farchnad gan 
gynnwys ‘Sgwâr Marchnad Ganolog agored newydd.

(5) Awdurdodi’r Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol – Cymunedau, mewn ymgynghoriad â’r 
Pennaeth Cyllid er mwyn gweithredu’r newidiadau hyn.

(6) Nodi gweithredoedd Partneriaeth Marchnad Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr mewn 
cydweithrediad â phartïon sydd â diddordeb er mwyn ceisio gweithredu’r newid 
effeithiol i Farchnad Pen-y-bont yn y tymor hir.

216. CRONFA YMGYSYLLTU TWRISTIAETH RANBARTHOL CROESO CYMRU, 
PROSIECT MORLUN PORTHCAWL (DARGANFOD PORTHCAWL)

Cyflwynodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Cymunedau adroddiad i roi'r diweddaraf i'r 
Cabinet ynglŷn â chais ar gyfer cyllid i Gronfa Ymgysylltu Ranbarthol Croeso Cymru 
(RTEF) a gofyn am gymeradwyaeth y Cabinet i gael gwneud cytundebau gyda’r 
partneriaid cyflwyno Credu Charity Ltd (Cwmni Harbourside Community Interest (CIC) 
gynt) ac Ymddiriedolaeth Ddiwylliannol Awen i gefnogi cyflwyno Prosiect Morlun 
Porthcawl.   

Cadarnhaodd fod gan CBSP hanes cryf o gyflwyno prosiectau partneriaeth trwy RTEF, 
yn ogystal â deall gwerth twristiaeth ym Mwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr, nid o 
fewn yr ardaloedd arfordirol yn unig ond mewn rhannau eraill o’r Fwrdeistref hefyd.

Page 17



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 19 MEHEFIN 2018

8

Cynghorodd fod y Cyngor wedi bod yn llwyddiannus gyda chais, ac wedi derbyn £78k 
tuag at gyfanswm cost prosiect o 90k ar gyfer yr uchod. Roedd y prosiect hefyd yn cael 
ei ariannu gan eraill fel y dangosir ym mharagraff 4.6 o’r adroddiad, tra bod paragraffau 
4.4 a 4.5 yn amlinellu’r math o weithgareddau a phrofiadau y byddai’r prosiect yn eu 
creu.

Yn olaf, cynghorodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Cymunedau mai CBSP fyddai’r prif 
sefydliad wrth gydlynu a chefnogi Prosiect Morlun Porthcawl, a bod cyfraniad CBSP o 
£12k wedi ei sicrhau o fewn cyllideb y Gyfarwyddiaeth ar gyfer 2018/19.

PENDERFYNWYD: Bod y Cabinet yn:

(1) Nodi cymeradwyo cyllido drwy RTEF ar gyfer cyflwyno Prosiect Morlun 
Porthcawl.

(2) Awdurdodi’r Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Cymunedau mewn 
ymgynghoriad â’r Cyfreithiwr ar gyfer y Cyngor (a'r Swyddog Monitro), i 
ymrwymo i gytundebau gyda Credu Charity Ltd ac Ymddiriedolaeth 
Ddiwylliannol Awen, er mwyn cyflwyno’u hagweddau nhw o’r prosiect.

217. DARPARIAETH I DDISGYBLION AG ANGHENION DYSGU YCHWANEGOL:- 
SEFYDLU CANOLFAN ADNODDAU DYSGU I DDISGYBLION SYDD AG 
ANHWYLDER SBECTRWM AWTISTIG YN YSGOL GYNRADD PENCOED - 
ADRODDIAD GWRTHWYNEBIADAU

Cyflwynodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Interim - Addysg a Chymorth i Deuluoedd 
adroddiad oedd yn hysbysu’r Cabinet am ganlyniad y broses gwrthwynebu statudol a 
gynhaliwyd gan CBSP yn achos y cynnig i sefydlu ASD LRC yn Ysgol Gynradd 
Pencoed.

Cadarnhaodd i’r Aelodau, er mwyn datblygu cynnig i sefydlu hyn o 1 Medi 2018, gwnaed 
ymarferion ymgynghori rhwng 9 Chwefror a 23 Mawrth 2018, gyda staff, llywodraethwyr, 
rhieni a disgyblion Ysgol Gynradd Pencoed, yn ogystal â’r gymuned ehangach yn unol â 
Chod Trefniadaeth Ysgolion 2013.

Cadarnhaodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Interim – Addysg a Chymorth i Deuluoedd na 
dderbyniwyd unrhyw wrthwynebiadau yn ystod y cyfnod hysbysiad cyhoeddus hwn.

 Roedd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Genedlaethau’r Dyfodol a Llesiant yn falch o weld y bydd 
mwy o blant gydag Anghenion Dysgu Ychwanegol yn cael cymorth i barhau mewn 
ysgolion prif ffrwd.

PENDERFYNWYD: Bod y Cabinet yn:

(1) Nodi na dderbyniwyd unrhyw wrthwynebiadau i’r uchod yn ystod cyfnod 
yr hysbysiad cyhoeddus, ac o ganlyniad.

(2) Yn cymeradwyo gweithredu’r cais.  

218. PROSIECT CYFALAF YSGOL GYNRADD CWMFELIN

Cyflwynodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Interim - Addysg a Chymorth i Deuluoedd 
adroddiad ar y cyd i geisio cael cymeradwyaeth gan y Cabinet i argymhell i’r Cyngor 
ddiwygiad i’r Rhaglen Gyfalaf 2018 i 2028, i gynnwys cyllideb o £165k i adeiladu ystafell 
ddosbarth newydd yn Ysgol Gynradd Cwmfelin.

Page 18



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 19 MEHEFIN 2018

9

Cynghorodd fod cymeradwyaeth y Cabinet wedi ei derbyn ar 3 Mawrth 2015 er mwyn i’r 
Cyngor fabwysiadu egwyddorion diwygiedig fel fframwaith ar gyfer trefnu ysgolion ym 
Mhen-y-bont ar Ogwr, a gosodwyd 5 prif egwyddor er mwyn hysbysu’r sefydliad a 
moderneiddio ysgolion, fel y nodwyd ym mharagraff 3.1 o’r adroddiad.

Eglurodd fod set o egwyddorion oedd yn berthnasol i ysgolion cynradd, er mwyn sicrhau 
eu bod yn ddigon mawr i bwrpas, ac ar gyfer effeithiolrwydd ac effeithlonrwydd o ran 
disgyblion yn dysgu, ac addysgu. Roedd y sefyllfa o ran meintiau annigonol y 
dosbarthiadau yn yr ysgol benodol hon yn rhoi pwysau ar addysgu a dysgu’r rhain, ac fe 
gadarnhaodd darpariaethau’r adroddiad sut y byddai hyn yn cael ei gyflawni yn y 
dyfodol.

Cadarnhaodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Interim - Addysg a Chymorth i Deuluoedd 
mai’r amcangyfrif o gost y prosiect, h.y. darparu gofod dosbarth newydd sbon ar gyfer 
20 disgybl yw £165k, ac roedd cronfa wrth gefn a glustnodwyd o £150k ar gyfer hwn.

Ychwanegodd y byddai’r diwygio yn cael ei ddarparu ar y cyd gan y Gyfarwyddiaeth 
Cymorth Ysgol, Addysg a Theulu ar sail 1 50:50.

 Nododd yr Aelod Cabinet dros y Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Chymorth Cynnar 
argymhellion yr adroddiad, a gofynnodd a oedd y gofod ychwanegol arfaethedig oedd yn 
cael ei ddarparu gan yr Ysgol wedi ei seilio ar y niferoedd arfaethedig o ddisgyblion ar 
gyfer y dyfodol; a oedd hyn yn briodol, ac os felly am ba hyd.

Cadarnhaodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Interim – Addysg a Chymorth i Deuluoedd 
fod gofod ychwanegol wedi ei ystyried ar sail y twf a amcangyfrifir ar gyfer y dyfodol yn 
yr ardal ynghyd ag ystyried hefyd ddemograffeg yr ardal lle mae’r ysgol wedi'i lleoli.

PENDERFYNWYD: Bod y Cabinet yn cymeradwyo cyflwyno adroddiad i’r Cyngor ar 
gyfer cymeradwyaeth i ddiwygio’r Rhaglen Gyfalaf er mwyn 
cynnwys cyllideb o £165k i ariannu’r gofod dosbarth newydd sbon 
yn Ysgol Gynradd Cwmfelin, gan ddefnyddio adnoddau wrth gefn 
wedi eu clustnodi a chyllidebau'r ysgol a'r Gyfarwyddiaeth Addysg 
a Chymorth i Deuluoedd.

219. AILDDYRANNU CYNLLUN DIRPRWYO'R CYNGOR O SWYDDOGAETHAU SY'N 
YMWNEUD Â'R GYFARWYDDIAETH GWASANAETHAU GWEITHREDOL A 
PHARTNERIAETHOL

Cyflwynodd y Swyddog Monitro adroddiad, gan geisio cymeradwyaeth y Cabinet am 
drosglwyddo swyddogaethau Gweithredol yn y Cynllun Dirprwyo Swyddogaethau sydd 
wedi'u dyrannu i'r Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol – Gwasanaethau Gweithredol a 
Phartneriaethol ar hyn o bryd.

Cynghorodd yr adroddiad, er mwyn cynnal prosesau gwneud penderfyniadau effeithiol 
cynigiwyd bod yr holl Swyddogaethau Gweithredol yng Nghynlluniau B1 a B2 o'r Cynllun 
yn cael eu dyrannu o'r swydd uchod nad yw'n bodoli mwyach, i'r Swyddog Monitro, ac 
eithrio'r swyddogaethau hynny a amlinellwyd ym mharagraff 4.2 o'r adroddiad yn 
ymwneud â Swyddogaethau Tai, a gaiff eu hailddyrannu i'r Prif Weithredwr.

Cynghorodd y Cyfreithiwr i'r Cyngor a'r Swyddog Monitor wrth y Cabinet y byddai 
adroddiad yn cael ei gyflwyno i'r Cyngor yfory gan gynnig newidiadau tebyg i'r Cynllun 
Dirprwyo Swyddogaethau ar gyfer y Cyngor (yn hytrach na'r Cabinet) o fewn Cynlluniau 
B1 a B2.

PENDERFYNWYD:               Bod y Cabinet yn:

Page 19



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 19 MEHEFIN 2018

10

(1) Cymeradwyo trosglwyddo swyddogaethau Gweithredol yng Nghynllun Dirprwyo 
Swyddogaethau'r Cyngor o'r Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Gwasanaethau 
Gweithredol a Phartneriaethol i'r Swyddog Monitro.

     (2) Cymeradwyo trosglwyddo swyddogaethau'r Gweithredol a amlinellwyd ym 
mharagraff 4.2 o'r adroddiad o'r Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Gwasanaethau 
Gweithredol a Phartneriaethol i'r Prif Weithredwr.

     (3) Nodi y caiff adroddiad ei gyflwyno i'r Cyngor yn cynnig newid tebyg i'r Cynllun 
Dirprwyo Swyddogaethau ar gyfer penderfyniadau'r Cyngor.

220. RHEOLAU GWEITHDREFNAU CONTRACTAU (CPR) DIWYGIEDIG

Cyflwynodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol – Gwasanaethau Gweithredol a 
Phartneriaethol adroddiad, a oedd yn ceisio cymeradwyaeth gan y Cabinet:

 I'r Rheolau Gweithdrefnau Contractau diwygiedig ddod i rym o 1 Awst;
 I'r Cynllun Dirprwyo mewn perthynas â Swyddogaethau Gweithredol gael ei 

ddiwygio yn unol â pharagraff 4.8 o'r adroddiad; a
 Nodi y caiff adroddiad ei gymryd i'r Cyngor i ddiwygio'r Cyfansoddiad i 

ymgorffori'r diwygiadau i'r CPR

Gwnaeth y Cyfreithiwr i'r Cyngor a'r Swyddog Monitro gadarnhau drwy wybodaeth 
gefndir, fod y Cyngor yn y broses o adolygiad corfforaethol ac fel rhan o hyn, roedd y 
CPR wedi'u hadolygu a'u diweddaru.

Aeth ymlaen drwy gynghori bod nifer o newidiadau wedi'u gwneud i'r CPR presennol er 
mwyn sicrhau bod cydymffurfio â darpariaethau'r Rheoliadau Contractau Cyhoeddus 
2015, ac i foderneiddio'r ffordd mae'r Cyngor yn caffael nwyddau, gwasanaethau a 
gwaith. Cafodd copi o'r CPR ei atodi i'r adroddiad yn Atodiad 5.

Cafodd y newidiadau i'r rhai eu cynnwys ym mharagraffau 4.2 i 4.21 o'r adroddiad.

PENDERFYNWYD: Bod y Cabinet yn:

(1)  Cymeradwyo'r Rheolau Gweithdrefnau Contractau diwygiedig a atodir yn 
Atodiad 5 i ddod i rym o 1 Awst 2018.

(2) Cymeradwyo bod y Cynllun Dirprwyo mewn perthynas â Swyddogaethau 
Gweithredol yn cael ei ddiwygio yn unol â pharagraff 4.8 o'r adroddiad.

(3) Nodi y caiff adroddiad ei gymryd i'r Cyngor i ddiwygio'r Cyfansoddiad i 
ymgorffori'r diwygiadau i'r CPR.

221. BLAENRAGLEN WAITH Y CABINET

Rhoddodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol – Gwasanaethau Gweithredol a Phartneriaethol 
adroddiad, a diben yr adroddiad oedd ceisio cymeradwyaeth y Cabinet ar gyfer eitemau 
i'w cynnwys ar y Flaenraglen Waith ar gyfer y cyfnod 1 Gorffennaf tan 31 Hydref 2018.

Yn unol â darpariaeth o Gyfansoddiad y Cyngor bydd y Flaenraglen Waith yn cwmpasu 
cyfnod o bedwar mis, ac yn cynnwys materion y mae'r Pwyllgorau Cabinet, Trosolwg a 
Chraffu a'r Cyngor yn debygol o'u hystyried, ar ffurf cynlluniau, polisïau a strategaethau 
sy'n ffurfio rhan o Fframwaith Polisi'r Awdurdod.

Caiff y Flaenraglen Waith ei hystyried yn chwarterol gan y Cabinet a'i chyhoeddi ar y 
dyddiadau a ddangosir ym mharagraff 4.1 o'r adroddiad.

Page 20



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 19 MEHEFIN 2018

11

Cafodd y Flaenraglen Waith ar gyfer y Cabinet ar gyfer y cyfnod a nodwyd uchod ei 
hatodi yn Atodiad 1 i'r adroddiad, a gwnaeth Atodiadau 2 a 3 amlinellu Blaenraglen 
Waith y Cynfor ar gyfer yr un cyfnod a'r Flaenraglen Waith Trosolwg a Chraffu, yn y 
drefn honno.

PENDERFYNWYD: Bod y Cabinet yn:

(1) Cymeradwyo Blaenraglen Waith y Cabinet ar gyfer y cyfnod 1 Gorffennaf tan 31 
Hydref 2018, fel y dangosir yn Atodiad 1 i'r adroddiad.

(2) Nodi Blaenraglen Waith y Cyngor a Chraffu fel y dangosir yn Atodiad 2 a 3 i'r 
adroddiad, yn y drefn honno.  

222. CYNRYCHIOLAETH AR GYRFF ALLANOL A CHYDBWYLLGORAU

Cyflwynodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol – Gwasanaethau Gweithredol a 
Phartneriaethol a'r Swyddog Monitro adroddiad, a geisiodd gymeradwyaeth y Cabinet ar 
gyfer penodi Aelodau i'r Cydbwyllgorau a Chyrff Allanol.

Roedd rhestr o'r rhain wedi'i hatodi i'r adroddiad yn Atodiad 1.

Cadarnhaodd y Cyfreithiwr i'r Cyngor a'r Swyddog Monitro, y cynigiwyd bod penodiadau 
Aelodau am dymor o un flwyddyn, ac eithrio lle mae dirymu penodiad cynharach o 
benodiad yn briodol.

Nododd yr Arweinydd mae'r enwebiad a gynigir ar gyfer Ymddiriedolaeth Neuadd y Dref 
oedd y Cynghorydd Charles Smith nid y Cynghorydd Stephen Smith fel y nodir yn yr 
adroddiad.

PENDERFYNWYD:   Bod y Cabinet yn penodi'r nifer gofynnol o Aelodau i'r 
Cydbwyllgorau a Chyrff Allanol eraill fel y rhestrir yn Atodiad 1 i'r 
adroddiad.

223. ADRODDIADAU GWYBODAETH I'W NODI

Cyflwynodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol – Gwasanaethau Gweithredol a 
Phartneriaethol adroddiad, a diben yr adroddiad oedd hysbysu'r Cabinet am yr 
Adroddiadau Gwybod i'w nodi sydd wedi'u cyhoeddi ers y cyfarfod diwethaf.

Rhoddwyd manylion am yr Adroddiadau Gwybodaeth ym mharagraff 4.1 o'r adroddiad.

PENDERFYNWYD: Cydnabu'r Cabinet gyhoeddi'r dogfennau a restrwyd yn yr 
adroddiad cwmpasu.

224. CAFFAEL GWASANAETHAU RHEOLI GWASTRAFF A DDARPERIR YN Y 
GANOLFAN ADFER DEUNYDDIAU AC YNNI (MREC) YN NHWYNI CRYMLYN, 
CASTELL-NEDD PORT TALBOT

Cyflwynodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol – Cymunedau a Phennaeth Cyllid Interim a 
Swyddog S151 adroddiad ar y cyd mewn perthynas â'r mater uchod.

Cynghorodd fod gan y Cyngor sefyllfa gytundebol bresennol a hirsefydlog gyda Chyngor 
Castell-nedd Port Talbot (“CNPT”) o ran y Ganolfan Adfer Deunyddiau ac Ynni 
(“MREC”) a leolir ym Mwrdeistref Sirol Castell-nedd Port Talbot, a chanddi dros 10 
mlynedd ar ôl i redeg. Caiff rhai swyddogaethau gwaredu gwastraff eu cyflawni gan 
CNPT ar ran Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr, fel y nodir mewn cytundeb rhwng awdurdod  (“y 

Page 21



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 19 MEHEFIN 2018

12

Penodiad Gwreiddiol”) a drefnwyd gan y ddau awdurdod ar adeg y Fenter Cyllid Preifat 
rheoli gwastraff wreiddiol yn 2000, ac fel y cafodd ei amrywio gan gytundeb dyddiedig 8 
Medi 2010 (“y Cytundeb Amrywio”).  

Mae'r ffi waredu bresennol a godir gan y cyfleuster MREC yn sylweddol uwch na 
chyfraddau marchnad a dderbynnir. Felly, mae Cynghorau Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr a 
Chastell-nedd Port Talbot fel rhan o'u cynlluniau ariannol tymor canolig wedi nodi 
arbedion yn erbyn y gost weithredol a atodir wrth y cyfleuster MREC. I gyflawni'r 
arbedion hyn mae'r ddau barti wedi cytuno i derfynu'r trefniadau presennol rhwng yr 
Awdurdod contractio (CNPT) a'r MREC, a rhoi contract wedi'i brofi gan y farchnad yn ei 
le, unwaith eto gyda CNPT fel yr Awdurdod contractio ac i ddisodli unrhyw 
benodiad/contract rhwng CBSP a CNPT i adlewyrchu'r trefniadau newydd hyn.

Wedi hynny gwahoddwyd cynigion yn seiliedig ar y dogfennau tendro gwreiddiol, a 
mynegodd dau gwmni ddiddordeb, ac wedyn cyflwyno cynigon. Fodd bynnag, wedyn 
gwnaeth un o'r cwmnïau hyn dynnu ei gynnig yn ôl.

Cadarnhaodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol – Cymunedau mai'r cynigydd sy'n weddill yw 
Walters Plant Hire Limited (“Walters”). Gwnaethant gadarnhau ar ddiwedd 2017 eu bod 
yn dymuno parhau i gael eu hystyried ar gyfer y dyfarniad contract yn unol â'u cynnig 
tendro.

Yna amlinellodd Paragraff 4.1 o'r adroddiad nifer o bwyntiau a chrynhoi'r cynigion wrth 
gymharu â threfniadau presennol, gan gynnwys manylion am y broses gaffael sydd 
wedi'i dilyn yn ogystal â threfniadau'r Cytundeb Amrywio rhwng CBSP a Chastell-nedd 
Port Talbot.

Pwysleisiodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Cymunedau, fel gyda phob proses gaffael, 
fod bob amser risg o her.  Fodd bynnag, mae CNPT a Phen-y-bont ar Ogwr yn bwriadu 
lliniaru risg o'r fath drwy gyhoeddi Hysbysiad VEAT i ddileu'r risg o'r contract yn cael ei 
roi i'r neilltu ar ôl ymrwymo iddo ac unrhyw risg gysylltiedig o ddirwyon (ond nid y risg o 
hawl am iawndal os bydd her ddilynol).

Yn ogystal, ceir amrywiaeth o faterion eraill y bydd angen i CNPT ymdrin â hwy fel 
perchnogion y safle MREC.

Ar yr un pryd ag ymrwymo i'r cytundeb gwasanaethau gwastraff, cynigir bod CNPT a 
Walters yn ymrwymo i brydles ar gyfer safle MREC, ar hyd y llinellau a nodwyd yn yr 
adroddiad.

Parhaodd ei gyflwyniad drwy gynghori bod trefniadau gyda NPTRL ar gyfer darparu 
gwasanaethau gwastraff yn dod i ben ar ôl dechrau'r gwasanaethau i'w darparu gan 
Walters. Ar y pwynt hwnnw bydd yn ofynnol i Gyfarwyddwyr NPTRL ddirwyn y cwmni i 
ben.

Roedd copi o'r Asesiad Deddf Llesiant Cenedlaethau'r Dyfodol (Cymru) 2015 wedi' 
gwblhau yn Atodiad 1 i'r adroddiad.

I gloi, yna gwnaeth y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol – Cymunedau amlinellu goblygiadau 
ariannol yr adroddiad gan ychwanegu fel rhan o hyn, y byddai CBSP yn sicrhau 
arbedion sylweddol fel rhan o'i Strategaeth Ariannol Tymor Canolig, os bydd y cynnig o'r 
Contract diwygiedig yn cael ei sicrhau'n llwyddiannus. 

Nododd Aelod ei fod yn edrych ymlaen o dan drefniadau'r dyfodol i CBSP gael cytundeb 
partneriaeth cyfartal â CNPT wrth fynd ymlaen, a'i bod yn hynod bwysig sicrhau'r 

Page 22



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 19 MEHEFIN 2018

13

arbedion o ran MREC a oedd wedi'i sefydlu o dan delerau'r Strategaeth Ariannol Tymor 
Canolig.

Ychwanegodd y Pennaeth Cyllid Interim a Swyddog S151 y bydd y Cytundeb 
angenrheidiol yn ofynnol i'w lofnodi o hyd cyn bod y sefyllfa bresennol yn symud 
ymhellach ymlaen. Ychwanegodd y byddair' Cyngor hefyd yn gwneud cais am gyfrifyddu 
banc agored mewn perthynas â chau Cwmni Ailgylchu Castell-nedd. Byddai dirwyn y 
broses hon i ben yn cymryd tua 9 mis, er bod CBSP yn gwthio am gynnydd mor gyflym 
ag y gallai.

Ychwanegodd ymhellach y byddai adroddiad tebyg a ystyrir gan y Cabinet heddiw, yn 
cael ei ystyried gan y Cabinet yn CNPT.

Cwblhaodd yr Arweinydd y ddadl ar yr eitem hon drwy ddatgan ei fod yn edrych ymlaen 
at ddechrau pennod newydd gyda CNPT, a'i fod yn siŵr y byddai hwn yn drefniant mwy 
llwyddiannus nag ar hyn o bryd, a fyddai'n rhoi mwy o werth am arian i'r trethdalwr, 
mewn perthynas â sicrhau bod eu deunyddiau gwastraff yn cael eu casglu a'u 
gwaredu'n briodol.

PENDERFYNWYD:         (1) Bod y Cabinet yn derbyn, yn amodol ar CNPT yn 
ymrwymo i'r Penodiad newydd a dirwyn i ben yr hysbysiad 
VEAT ac os na fyddai unrhyw hysbysiad o her, y cynnig a 
gyflwynwyd gan Walters Plant Hire Limited ym mis Mai 
2016.

                                       (2)  Dirprwyo awdurdod i'r Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol 
Cymunedau mewn ymgynghoriad â'r Pennaeth Cyllid 
Interim a Swyddog Adran 151 a'r Cyfreithiwr i'r 
Cyngor/Swyddog Monitro i negodi a setlo'r telerau terfynol 
o'r Penodiad newydd ac ar ôl hynny awdurdodi'r Cyfreithiwr 
i'r Cyngor/Swyddog Monitro ymrwymo i'r Penodiad 
dywededig ac unrhyw ddogfennaeth gysylltiedig.
(3)  Dirprwyo awdurdod i'r Cyfreithiwr i'r Cyngor/Swyddog 
Monitro i gytuno â Chyngor CNPT i gyhoeddi Hysbysiad 
Tryloywder Ex-Ante Gwirfoddol (“Hysbysiad VEAT”) yng 
Nghyfnodolyn Swyddogol yr Undeb Ewropeaidd.

227. CAFFAEL GWASANAETHAU RHEOLI GWASTRAFF A DDARPERIR YN Y 
GANOLFAN ADFER DEUNYDDIAU AC YNNI (MREC) YN NHWYNI CRYMLYN, 
CASTELL-NEDD PORT TALBOT

Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 17:00

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

REPORT TO CABINET 
 

17 JULY 2018 
 

REPORT OF THE INTERIM HEAD OF FINANCE 
 

BUDGET MONITORING 2018-19 – QUARTER 1 FORECAST 
 

1.0 Purpose of this report 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide Cabinet with an update on the Council’s 

financial position as at 30th June 2018. 
 
2.0 Connections to Corporate Improvement Objectives / Other Corporate 

Priorities 
 
2.1 This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate priorities:-   
 

1. Supporting a successful economy – taking steps to make the county a 
good place to do business, for people to live, work, study and visit, and to 
ensure that our schools are focused on raising the skills, qualifications and 
ambitions of all people in the county.  

 
2. Helping people to be more self-reliant – taking early steps to reduce or 

prevent people from becoming vulnerable or dependent on the Council and 
its services. 
 

3. Smarter use of resources – ensuring that all its resources (financial, 
physical, human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently as 
possible and support the development of resources throughout the 
community that can help deliver the Council’s priorities.  

 
2.2 The allocation of budget determines the extent to which the Council’s corporate 

improvement priorities can be delivered.  
 
3.0 Background 
 
3.1 On 28th February 2018, Council approved a net revenue budget of £265.984 million 

for 2018-19, along with a capital programme for the year of £33.693 million, which 
has since been updated to £45.167 million taking into account new approvals.  As 
part of the Performance Management Framework, budget projections are reviewed 
regularly and reported to Cabinet on a quarterly basis.  The delivery of agreed 
budget reductions is also kept under review and reported to Cabinet as part of this 
process. 

 
4.0  Current Situation / Proposal 

 
4.1 Summary financial position at 30th June 2018. 
 
4.1.1 The Council’s net revenue budget and projected outturn for 2018-19 is shown in 

Table 1 below. 

Page 25

Agenda Item 4



 
 
 
Table 1- Comparison of budget against projected outturn at 30th June 2018 
 

Directorate/Budget Area 
Original 
Budget 

Revised 
Budget 

Projected 
Outturn Q1 

Projected 
Over / 

(Under) 
Spend  

Projected 
Over / 

(Under) 
Spend 

  2018-19 2018-19 2018-19 2018-19 Qtr 1 2017-
18 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Directorate           
            
Education and Family Support 108,315 109,827 109,783 (44) (168) 
Social Services and Wellbeing 67,730 69,211 71,071 1,860 2,006 
Communities  26,729 27,418 27,957 539 75 
Operational and Partnership 
Services 

14,658 14,939 13,946 (993) (1,314) 

Chief Executives and Finance 3,803 3,836 3,666 (170) (307) 

Total Directorate Budgets 221,235 225,231 226,423 1,192 292 

Council Wide Budgets           

            

Capital Financing  9,514 9,351 9,333 (18) 0 

Levies 7,046 7,046 7,046 0 16 

Apprenticeship Levy 700 700 665 (35) (98) 

Council Tax Reduction Scheme 14,354 14,354 14,373 19 (486) 

Insurance Premiums 1,588 1,588 1,346 (242) 0 

Building Maintenance 900 870 870 0 0 

Pension Related Costs 430 430 430 0 (826) 

Other Council Wide Budgets 10,217 6,414 4,200 (2,214) (107) 

Total Council Wide Budgets 44,749 40,753 38,263 (2,490) (1,501) 

            

            

Total 265,984 265,984 264,686 (1,298) (1,209) 

 
 
4.1.2 The overall projected position at 30th June 2018 is a net under spend of £1.298 

million, comprising £1.192 million net over spend on directorates and £2.490 
million net under spend on corporate budgets. A detailed analysis of the more 
significant projected under and over spends is set out in section 4.3. 

 
4.1.3 There have been a number of budget virements and technical adjustments 

between budgets since the Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) was 
approved by Council in February 2018. These include: 

  

Page 26



 
 Budget Virements 
 

 Service vired from / to Amount 

Transfer of funding from additional council tax raised (£213,000) 
as outlined in the MTFS towards subsidised bus services, 
following public consultation, in line with Cabinet report of 15th 
May 2018. 

£51,500 

 
 Technical Adjustments 
 

 Service vired from / to Amount 

Allocation of £3.007 million funding to directorates to meet the 
costs of the nationally agreed pay award for the majority of non-
teaching staff, following agreement between the National 
Employers and the NJC Trade Union Side in April 2018. 

£3.007m 

Transfer of corporately held funding for Sleep-ins to the Social 
Services and Wellbeing directorate.  

£55,624 

Transfer of funding from central budget for capital financing costs 
to Education and Family Support directorate, to fund the 
repayment costs of prudential borrowing (under the Local 
Government Borrowing Initiative) for the 21st Century Schools 
Band A Programme. The funding was provided in the settlement 
by Welsh Government and has been held centrally until required.  

£163,000 

Price inflation funding held centrally for the re-tendering of 
Independent Domiciliary Care, which has now been allocated to 
the Social Services and Wellbeing Directorate following the 
outcome of the tender, and knowledge of actual price increases. 
Also, price inflation for the Kier waste contract has been 
allocated to the Communities Directorate following publication of 
actual price indices. 

£567,000 

Transfer of funding outlined in the Final Settlement for targeted 
business rates relief for local businesses, from Chief Executive’s 
budget to Council Wide budgets in line with other discretionary 
relief for business rates. 

£58,000 

 
 
4.1.4 There have been other technical adjustments for agreed inflationary increases, 

and recurrent funding for meeting Welsh Language Standards, as well as 
transfers of budgets between the Corporate Landlord budget and service 
budgets following agreement on the most appropriate management 
arrangements for some service premises related budgets (including car parking, 
CCTV and Porthcawl Marina).  

 
4.1.5 When the budget for 2018-19 was set, directorates were provided with funding 

for known pay and price inflation. The remaining provision was retained centrally 
within Council wide budgets, to be allocated as further information was known 
about specific contractual price increases e.g. for energy. A number of energy 
providers have already announced price increases for 2018, blaming rising 
wholesale gas and electricity prices. There were slight increases in most 
buildings in overall spend on gas and electricity in 2017-18 compared to 2016-

Page 27



17. We are currently in the process of gathering information about increased 
energy prices for 2018-19, and will amend budgets accordingly during the year. 

 
4.1.6 Given the large scale reductions on Council wide budgets in 2018-19 (42.6% of 

overall Council budget reductions) there is a risk that there may not be sufficient 
funding available within these budgets for any major price inflation increases, 
particularly as inflation rates remain relatively higher than previous years (CPI 
was 2.4% in May 2018 compared to 0.5% in March 2016 and 2.3% in March 
2017), so the budget will need to be monitored closely during the remainder of 
the year.  

 
4.1.7 The net budget for the financial year has been set assuming full implementation 

of the current year budget reduction requirements across the Council’s budget, 
which amount to £6.123 million.  Where proposals to meet this requirement have 
been delayed or are not achievable directorates have been tasked with 
identifying alternative proposals to meet their requirements such as vacancy 
management, or bringing forward alternative budget reduction proposals. 

 
4.1.8 In February 2018 Council approved the Medium Term Financial Strategy for 2018-

19 to 2021-22. This identified the need to develop recurrent budget reduction 
proposals, based on the most likely scenario, amounting to around £32.6 million 
over the next four years.  Against that background it is essential that expenditure is 
kept within the overall approved budget and that longer term proposals continue to 
be developed so that the Council has as much flexibility as possible to meet the 
challenges which lie ahead. 

 
4.1.9 At year end consideration will be given to requests from directors to carry forward 

any planned directorate under spends for specific purposes into the following year, 
in line with the Council’s Reserves and Balances Protocol, as long as these can be 
met from within the Council’s cash limited budget for 2018-19. This is in line with the 
reports to Cabinet and Council on the MTFS, and the Council’s Financial Procedure 
Rules. Similarly, consideration will be given to any budget over spends to determine 
whether these should be carried forward as a first call on the directorate budget for 
the following year. Finally, outstanding prudential borrowing will be repaid, where 
possible, to reduce future capital financing charges. However, a decision will not be 
made until towards the end of the financial year when the overall outturn position is 
more definite.   

 
4.2 Monitoring of Budget Reduction Proposals  
 
 Prior Year Budget Reductions 
 
4.2.1 A report was presented to Cabinet on 19th June 2018 on Financial Performance 

2017-18. In the report it was highlighted that, for 2016-17 and 2017-18, there were 
£2.982 million of budget reduction proposals that were not met in full, with a total 
outstanding balance to be met of £2.523 million. Directors have been asked to 
identify if any of these proposals are still not likely to be achieved in full during the 
2018-19 financial year, and to identify mitigating action that will be undertaken to 
achieve them.  A summary of the latest position is attached as Appendix 1 with a 
summary per directorate provided in Table 2. Of the total proposals not achieved in 
full at year end, the Social Services and Wellbeing Directorate had already partly 
realised £378,000. Consequently there are still £2.604 million of prior year budget 
proposals outstanding, £1.917 million of which relates to the shortfall on Social 

Page 28



Services and Wellbeing, which will need to be met in full during 2018-19 or from 
alternative savings proposals.  

 
4.2.2 The Social Services and Wellbeing Directorate has developed a Future Service 

Delivery Plan, which was presented to Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
in March 2018, and which outlines the Directorate’s response to the financial 
challenge facing them, not least setting out the planned actions to be undertaken in 
order to meet the shortfall. This will be monitored continuously throughout 2018-19 
but a number of the proposals are not likely to be achieved in full in this financial year. 

 
 
 Table 2 – Outstanding Prior Year Budget Reductions  
 

 

Total 
Budget 

Reductions 
Required 

Total 
Budget 

Reductions 
Likely to be 
Achieved 

Shortfall 

DIRECTORATE /BUDGET REDUCTION 
AREA 

£'000 £'000 £'000 

Education and Family Support 166 106 60 

Social Services and Wellbeing 1,917 840 1,077 

Communities 371 96 275 

Chief Executive & Finance 150 150 0 

TOTAL 2,604 1,192 1,412 

 
4.2.3 The table shows that of the £2.604 million outstanding reductions, £1.192 million is 

likely to be achieved in 2018-19 leaving a shortfall of £1.412 million. Proposals still 
not likely to be achieved include: 

 
o Learner Transport (£60,000) due to delays in assessments of safe routes; 
o Review of Car Parking Charges (£25,000) due to delay in reporting options 

and therefore achieving full year savings; 
o Permitting Scheme for Road Works (£50,000) due to delays in approval 

process with Welsh Government. 
o Reductions to the Materials Recovery and Energy Centre (MREC) 

(£200,000). 
   
 The balance mainly relates to proposals set out in the Social Services and 

Wellbeing Service Delivery Plan. 
 
4.2.4 As outlined in the MTFS reports to Cabinet and Council, MTFS Principle 12 states 

that “Resources are allocated to deliver the Bridgend Change Programme based on 
clear strategic plans that are kept under review by Corporate Directors to maintain 
alignment with the MTFS and a MTFS Budget Reduction Contingency will be 
maintained”. A Budget Reduction Contingency was established in 2016-17 and 
used to partly mitigate shortfalls on a number of budget reduction proposals. This 
reserve has been used to meet specific budget reduction proposals in 2016-17 and 
2017-18 on a one-off basis pending alternative measures.  

 
 
 
 

Page 29



 Budget Reductions 2018-19 
 
4.2.5 The budget approved for 2018-19 included budget reduction proposals totalling 

£6.123 million, which is broken down in Appendix 2 and summarised in Table 3 
below.  The current position is a projected shortfall on the savings target of 
£320,000, or 5% of the overall reduction target.  

 
 Table 3 – Monitoring of Budget Reductions 2018-19 
 

 

Total 
Budget 

Reductions 
Required 

Total 
Reductions 
Likely to be  
Achieved 

Shortfall 

DIRECTORATE /BUDGET AREA £'000 £'000 £'000 

Education and Family Support 630 498 132 

Schools 0 0 0 

Social Services and Wellbeing 350 350 0 

Communities 1,454 1,266 188 

Operational and Partnership 
Services 

848 848 0 

Chief Executive  231 231 0 

Council Wide Budgets 2,610 2,610 0 

TOTAL 6,123 5,803 320 

 
 A comparison of the RAG position against quarter 1 in 2017-18 is provided below: 
 
  

 

2018-19         
Q1 

2017-18          
Q1 

 £0 % £000 % 

Green 4,116 67% 2,388 41% 

Amber 1,907 31% 1,973 34% 

Red 100 2% 1,491 25% 

Total 6,123 100% 5,852 100% 

 
 
 The overall value and percentage of reductions classed as RED is significantly 

lower in 2018-19 than at the same time in 2017-18. This correlates with the lower 
likely shortfall on savings reductions in this financial year. Any non-achievement will 
have a significant impact on the outturn position. 

 
4.2.6 The most significant budget reduction proposals unlikely to be achieved include: 
 

o EFS1 Phased Implementation of Learner Transport Policy (£67,000);  
o COM11 Reductions to the budget for Public Conveniences (£100,000); 
o COM27 Removal of Subsidised Bus Services (£188,000) 

  
 As part of the MTFS discussions it was agreed that the progression of the latter two 

proposals would be dependent on the outcome of public consultations, following 
which decisions would be made on how to proceed with these proposals. The final 
council tax increase agreed for 2018-19 was 4.5%, higher than the original 

Page 30



proposed 4.2%, to provide flexibility to enable members to mitigate some of the 
proposed budget reductions. A report was presented to Cabinet on 15th May on the 
outcome of the public consultation exercise in respect of the rationalisation of 
supported bus services (COM27). Cabinet resolved to retain the subsidy for three 
routes for a period of one year to allow additional time in dialogue with bus 
operators and with other potential partners to try and find ways of keeping existing 
routes running. Consequently, £51,500 of this funding has been transferred to the 
Communities directorate for one year only to offset this shortfall. With regard to 
Public Conveniences, a report was presented to Cabinet in June 2018. A number of 
proposals were made, but given time to implement some, it is anticipated that the 
full budget saving will not be made during 2018-19, and the directorates will mitigate 
this shortfall with other measures. 

  
4.2.7 Appendix 2 identifies the projected amount of saving against these proposals and 

action to be taken by the directorate to mitigate the shortfall. Directors continue to 
work with their staff to deliver their proposals or alternatives and this is reflected in 
the forecast outturn for the year. During the financial year the Head of Finance will 
also consider applications from directorates to the MTFS Budget Reduction 
Contingency Reserve to mitigate some of the shortfalls.  

 
4.2.8 In the longer term, these proposals must be realised or must be met through 

alternative budget reduction proposals in order to deliver a balanced budget 
position. These will continue to be closely monitored and draw down from the MTFS 
Budget Reduction Contingency will be made as part of the overall review of 
earmarked reserves during quarter 2.  

 
4.3 Commentary on the financial position as at 30th June 2018 
 
 A summary of the financial position for each main service area is attached as 

Appendix 3 to this report and comments on the most significant variances are 
provided below. A further review will be undertaken of the projected outturn at 
quarter 2 and any draw down from earmarked reserves will be undertaken at that 
time. The Chief Executive is currently making a number of changes to the senior 
management of the Council which will result in changes to budget responsibility. 
These will be reflected in the quarter 2 monitoring report.   

 
4.3.1 Education and Family Support Directorate 
 

The net budget for the Directorate for 2018-19 is £109.827 million. Current 
projections indicate an under spend of £44,000 at year end. The main variances 
are: 

  

Page 31



EDUCATION & FAMILY SUPPORT 
DIRECTORATE 

Net  
Budget  

Projected 
Outturn  

Projected 
Variance 

Over/(under) 
budget  

% 
Variance 

  £'000 £'000 £'000   

Health and Safety 228 181                  (47) -20.6% 

Home to School Transport 4,779 5,229                  450  9.4% 

Pupil Support 381 283                  (98) -25.7% 

Catering Services 810 703                (107) -13.2% 

Integrated Working 1,400 1,281                (119) -8.5% 

Youth Justice 384 306                  (78) -20.3% 

 
Schools’ Delegated Budgets 
 
The schools’ delegated budget is reported as balanced as any under or over spend 
is automatically carried forward into the new financial year before being considered 
by the Director of Education and Family Support in line with the ‘Guidance on 
Managing School Surplus Balances’. Total school balances reduced by £506,000 
during 2017-18, down to £306,000 at year end. Had the Welsh Government not 
provided a last minute grant of £630,000 towards repairs and maintenance costs, 
the overall schools’ balance would have been a negative figure, -£270,000. For 
2018-19 currently there are 21 primary schools, 5 secondary schools and 1 special 
school (46% of all schools) that are projecting a deficit balance at year end. In total 
the quarter 1 projections indicate an overall deficit balance for school delegated 
budgets of £1.399 million at year end. 

 
 Central Education and Family Support Budgets 

 
Health and Safety 

 The under spend of £47,000 relates to staff vacancies within the service. 
 

Home to School Transport 

 There is an over spend of £450,000 on Home to School Transport. There have 
been significant increases in eligible pupils for both Home to College and 
Primary School transport of 16.5% and 18.1% respectively from 2016-2017 
continuing into 2018-19. There are also significant additional pressures caused 
by increased numbers of eligible pupils with Additional Learning Needs, in 
particular those pupils with autism spectrum disorders. Although a learner travel 
policy was approved by Cabinet in September 2015 with subsequent budget 
reductions of £1.6 million the savings generated have not been as high as 
anticipated due to the need to undertake safe route assessments and deal with 
legal challenges.  Additional pressures in 2018-19 have arisen due to transport 
being provided to support the Council’s vulnerable groups agenda, and the 
handing back of contracts from providers which, when retendered, have proven 
to be more costly. 
 

Pupil Support 

 The under spend of £98,000 relates to Volunteer Driver Support whose service 
was ceased in February 2017 whilst a review was undertaken. The outcome of 
the review will be considered in due course. 

  

Page 32



Catering Services 

 The under spend of £107,000 has arisen as a result of a projected increase 
over and above the anticipated demand for school meals compared with when 
the budgets were set at the start of the financial year.  Take up of school meals 
will require close in-year monitoring.  

 
Integrated Working 

 The under spend of £119,000 relates to staff vacancies within the service. 
 

Youth Justice 

 The under spend of £78,000 is a combination of savings on the premises 
budget following vacation of the offices at Tremains Road, along with staff 
vacancy management. The premises budget saving will be considered as part 
of future years’ MTFS savings. 

 
 
4.3.2 Social Services and Wellbeing Directorate  
 

The Directorate’s net budget for 2018-19 is £69.212 million. Current projections 
indicate an over spend of £1.860 million at year end prior to any draw down from 
earmarked reserves. The main variances are: 
 

SOCIAL SERVICES AND WELLBEING 
DIRECTORATE 

Net  
Budget  

Projected 
Outturn  

Projected 
Variance 

Over/(under) 
budget  

% 
Variance 

  £'000 £'000 £'000   

Older People Residential Care 8,817 8,640                (177) -2.0% 

Equipment and Adaptations 859 1,018                  159  18.5% 

Assessment and Care Management 4,892 4,551                (341) -7.0% 

Care at Home for Learning Disabilities 8,955 9,740                  785  8.8% 

Mental Health Residential Care 1,213 1,064                (149) -12.3% 

Care at Home for Mental Health 607 759                  152  25.0% 

Looked After Children 10,979 12,331               1,352  12.3% 

 
 
Older People Residential Care 

 There is a projected under spend of £177,000 as client contributions for 
independent residential care is currently over and above anticipated levels. This 
also includes additional income on our internal residential home. 
 

Equipment and Adaptations 

 There is a projected over spend of £159,000 as a result of increased usage of 
aids and equipment, along with servicing costs. 

 
Assessment and Care Management (ACMT) 

 There is a projected under spend of £341,000 on all assessment and care 
management budgets, including £149,000 on assessment and care 
management for older people and £113,000 under spend on ACMT for people 
with mental health, arising mainly from staff vacancies, although the directorate 
is hoping to fill some of these posts during the year. 

  

Page 33



Care at Home for People with Learning Disabilities 

 There is a projected over spend of £785,000 as a result of an increase in the 
number and the complexity of needs of service users receiving direct payments 
or receiving domiciliary care within a home setting or supported 
accommodation.  
 

 Mental Health Residential Care 

 A projected under spend of £149,000 is likely based on current placements. 
Forecasted health contributions to these placements is contributing to this 
projection. 

 
Care at Home for People with Mental Health Issues 

 There is a projected over spend of £152,000 as a result of the complexity of 
needs of service users receiving direct payments or receiving domiciliary care 
within a home setting or supported accommodation.  

 
Looked After Children (LAC)  

 There is a projected over spend of £1.352 million on LAC. MTFS budget 
reductions have resulted in the budget being reduced by around £1 million over 
the last three years.  

 The over spend is partly as a result of the implementation of a new model for 
residential services which has taken some time to establish due to the need for 
significant research, consultation and options appraisals, and the slower than 
anticipated safe reduction of looked after children. Project plans for both of 
these areas are now in place and the required work has gathered momentum, 
with significant capital work taking place in 2018-19. The plan to place more 
children into in-house foster placements is now in place but due to the time 
taken to put arrangements into place, the full saving is not likely to be realised in 
2018-19.   

 The average number of LAC this financial year is 373 compared with an 
average of 387 in 2017-18, with 15 children currently in out of county residential 
placements. Some individual placements can cost around £220,000 per 
annum.  The cost of out of county placements is a considerable pressure on the 
budget and greatly contributing to the current forecast over spend. 

 The average number of independent fostering placements (IFAs) this financial 
year is 66 compared to 82 in 2017-18. 

 The budget is closely monitored to ensure that the current over spend is 
reduced and that the budget for 2018-19 is effectively managed. 

 
  
4.3.3 Communities Directorate 

 
The net budget for the Directorate for 2018-19 is £27.418 million and the current 
projection is an anticipated over spend of £539,000. The main variances are: 

  

Page 34



 

COMMUNITIES DIRECTORATE 
Net  

Budget  
Projected 
Outturn  

Projected 
Variance 

Over/(under) 
budget  

% 
Variance 

  £'000 £'000 £'000   

Development Control         (187)            (107)                    80  -42.8% 

Public Conveniences            93               193                   100  107.5% 

Waste Disposal       4,629            4,929                   300  6.5% 

Waste Collection       4,925            5,025                   100  2.0% 

Highways Services       2,384            2,484                   100  4.2% 

Fleet Services            (8)              142                   150  -1875.0% 

Engineering Services            18             (132)                (150) -833.3% 

Corporate Landlord       3,400            3,270                 (130) -3.8% 

 
Development Control 

 The projected over spend in Development Control of £80,000 is primarily due to 
a projected downturn in planning application income based on income to date 
and comparison with the 2017-18 outturn. Fee income is subject to 
considerable fluctuations between years, depending on number and type of 
applications and will require close monitoring in-year. 

 
Public Conveniences 

 A report was presented to Cabinet on the 19th June 2018 outlining the findings 
of the public consultation and recommending actions against each of the town 
centre public toilets.  Implementing these recommendations will take some time 
to complete as discussions with the Town and Community Councils will need to 
take place prior to formal consultation with affected staff, therefore the £100,000 
MTFS saving for 2018-19 is unlikely to be made in full this year.  An application 
will be made to the MTFS Budget Reduction Contingency reserve, however the 
directorate will not know whether it will receive any funding towards this until 
later in the financial year.   

 
 Waste Disposal 

 There was a budget reduction target of £200,000 for 2017-18 in respect of the 
MREC. The procurement exercise with Neath Port Talbot Council to secure a 
new operator for the facility is still ongoing, therefore the full MTFS saving is 
currently projected as an over spend. The directorate will not know whether it 
will receive any funding from the MTFS Budget Reduction Contingency Reserve 
towards this until later in the financial year.  The balance of the projected over 
spend is primarily due to increased costs for disposing of street waste.  

 
 Waste Collection 

 The projected over spend of £100,000 on waste collection services is due to a 
combination of factors. The disposal contract with Neath Port Talbot CBC is 
based on a fixed price, minimum tonnage. Consequently a drop in commercial 
waste tonnage for disposal and subsequent reduction in income has not 
generated a corresponding reduction in cost. The Council is currently working 
closely with Neath Port Talbot CBC to renegotiate the terms of this 
arrangement. 

 
Highways Services 

 There is a projected over spend of £100,000 mainly as a result of an in-year 

Page 35



notification received regarding the cessation of the contract with the South East 
Wales Trunk road Agency (SWTRA) which is responsible for managing, 
maintaining and improving the motorways, trunk roads and associated assets 
throughout the South Wales region on behalf of the Welsh Government. 

 
Fleet Services 

 There is a projected over spend of £150,000 across the service, similar to the 
2017-18 outturn, due to a downturn in income arising from reduced spend by 
Directorates. The Directorate will seek to mitigate this during the financial year 
and is due to undertake a review of the fleet service. 
 

Engineering Services 

 There is a projected under spend across the service of £150,000 due to a 
projected increase in the level of fee earning jobs (balance of EU/non EU 
funded projects and the differing chargeable rates allowed) based on income 
earned to date compared with 2017-18 outturn. 
 

Corporate Landlord 

 There is a projected under spend of £130,000 mainly as a result of vacancies 
whilst the new structure is being populated.  

 
 

4.3.4 Operational and Partnership Services Directorate  
 
The net budget for the Directorate for 2018-19 is £14.939 million and current 
projections anticipate an under spend against this budget of £993,000. The main 
variances are: 

 

OPERATIONAL AND PARTNERSHIP 
SERVICES DIRECTORATE 

Net  
Budget  

Projected 
Outturn  

Projected 
Variance 

Over/(under) 
budget  

% 
Variance 

  £'000 £'000 £'000   

Housing and Homelessness 1,683 1,578                (105) -6.2% 

Member and Mayoral Services 1,823 1,542                (281) -15.4% 

HR and Organisational Development 3,276 2,999                (277) -8.5% 

Performance and Partnerships 486 376                (110) -22.6% 

 
Housing Options and Homelessness 

 The under spend on Housing and Homelessness has mainly arising from 
staffing vacancies. Some of the services are currently being restructured.  

 
Member and Mayoral Services 

 This under spend is mainly as a result of the delay in spending the 2018-19 
allocation for the Members’ Community Action Fund. A decision will be made on 
the future of this Fund following a review of the 2017-18 allocations, as 
previously agreed. 

 
HR and Organisational Development  

 The under spend of £277,000 is mainly due to staffing vacancies, not least the 
removal of the Head of HR and Organisational Development post, as part of the 
Chief Executive’s restructuring of Senior Management. Some of these savings 
may be considered for future years’ MTFS savings. 

Page 36



 
 Performance and Partnerships 

 The under spend of £110,000 is mainly due to staffing vacancies, not least the 
removal of the Corporate Performance and Transformation Manager post.  

 
 
4.3.5 Chief Executives and Finance  
  

The net budget for the Directorate for 2018-19 is £3.836 million and current 
projections anticipate an under spend against this budget of £170,000. The main 
variances are: 
 

CHIEF EXECUTIVES AND FINANCE 
Net  

Budget  
Projected 
Outturn  

Projected 
Variance 

Over/(under) 
budget  

% 
Variance 

  £'000 £'000 £'000   

Internal Audit 313 250                  (63) -20.1% 

Housing Benefits Administration 712 577                (135) -19.0% 

Taxation and Sundry Debtors 42 144                  102  242.9% 

 
Internal Audit 

 The under spend mainly relates to a rebate in respect of a reduced number of 
audit days received in the 2017-18 financial year as a result of staff vacancies 
within the service. At the meeting on 18th June, Cabinet agreed to incorporate 
the Shared Internal Audit Service into a larger service hosted by the Vale of 
Glamorgan Council to include Rhondda Cynon Taff and Merthyr Councils. 

 
Housing Benefits Administration  

 There is an under spend in respect of the administration of housing benefit 
arising mainly from staffing vacancies, but also changes in staffing hours and 
additional annual leave purchases. 

 
Taxation and Sundry Debtors 

 There is a projected shortfall of £90,000 on income from court costs, as well as 
shortfalls on the 2017-18 MTFS proposal to implement fines for non-return of 
Single Person Discounts. 

 
4.3.6 Council Wide budgets 
  
 This section includes budgets, provisions and services which are council wide, and 

not managed by an individual directorate. The budget is £40.753 million and the 
projected outturn is £38.263 million, resulting in a projected under spend of £2.490 
million. The main variances are detailed below: 

 

COUNCIL WIDE BUDGETS 
Net  

Budget  
Projected 
Outturn  

Projected 
Variance 

Over/(under) 
budget  

% 
Variance 

  £'000 £'000 £'000   

Insurance Premiums       1,588            1,346                 (242) -15.2% 

Other Council Wide Budgets       6,414            4,200               (2,214) -34.5% 

 

Page 37



 
 Insurance Premiums 

 The projected under spend of £242,000 is mainly as a result of the reduction in 
the premium for property insurance in 2018-19 following a retendering exercise. 

 
  
 Other Council Wide Budgets 

 The under spend of £2.214 million is a combination of reduced requirements for 
funding of budget pressures and estimated spend on remaining pay and price 
commitments. Whilst the pay award for most staff has now been agreed, there 
is still uncertainty around the teachers’ pay award from September 2018, which 
could reduce the projected under spend. 

 
 It should be noted that this projection could change significantly during the financial 

year, depending on inflationary increases, the extent of inclement weather during the 
winter period and further demands on the Council Tax Reduction Scheme. At this 
point in the financial year it is prudent to assume that all other budgets will be fully 
spent by year end. 
 
 

4.4 Capital programme monitoring 
 

4.4.1 This section of the report provides Members with an update on the Council’s  
 capital programme for 2018-19. The original budget approved by Council on 28th 
February 2018 has been further revised and approved by Council during the year to 
incorporate budgets brought forward from 2017-18 and any new schemes and grant 
approvals. The revised programme for 2018-19 currently totals £45.167 million, of 
which £39.308 million is met from BCBC resources, including capital receipts and 
revenue contributions from earmarked reserves, with the remaining £5.859 million 
coming from external resources.  

  
4.4.2 Appendix 4 provides details of the individual schemes within the capital programme, 

 showing the budget available in 2018-19 compared to the projected spend. 
 Commentary is provided detailing any issues associated with these projects. £9.195 
million of funding was slipped forward into 2018-19 for schemes not completed in 
2017-18, as outlined in the report to Cabinet on Financial Performance 2017-18 in 
June 2018. In addition, there are a number of schemes where budgets need to slip 
into 2019-20, including: 

 

 £664,000 slippage of Special Regeneration Funding into 2019-20 in line with 
the re-profiling of spend against schemes. 

 £2.4 million slippage for Llynfi Valley Development Programme into 2019-20 
due to delay in progressing schemes. 

 These are offset by £2.094 million funding brought forward for City Deal 
Programme into 2018-19 following re-profiling of spend at end of 2017-18. 

 
4.4.3 There are also a number of new schemes included in the capital programme since 

the programme was approved by Council, some of which were included in the 
Financial Performance report to Cabinet, but which now include: 

 

 Cwmfelin Primary School (£165,000 total). This was approved by Council on 
19th June 2018 in respect of a new classroom at the school. 

Page 38



 Eastern Promenade Porthcawl (£400,000 total), coastal risk management 
scheme.  

 Safe Routes to Schools (£950,000) for Croesty, Pencoed and Newton Primary 
Schools.  

 Road Safety Improvements (£290,000) for the A48 Waterton to Laleston. 

 Porthcawl Resort Investment Focus (PRIF) (£2.55 million total), including 
Watersports Centre and Harbour improvements.  

  
   
4.4.4 At this point in the financial year, and following discussions with directorates, it is 

assumed that all other projects will be in line with the budget as set out in Appendix 
4. However, this will depend upon scheme progress during the financial year and any 
inclement weather experienced, which may place additional pressure on project 
timescales. 

 
5.0 Effect upon Policy Framework & Procedure Rules 
 
5.1 As required by section 3 (budgetary control) of the Financial Procedure Rules; Chief 

Officers in consultation with the appropriate Cabinet Member are expected to 
manage their services within the approved cash limited budget and to provide the 
Chief Finance Officer with such information as is required to facilitate and monitor 
budgetary control. 

 
6.0 Equalities Impact Assessment 
 
6.1 There are no implications in this report. 
 
7.0 Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 Implications 
 
7.1 The well-being goals identified in the Act were considered in the preparation of this 

report. As the report is for information it is considered that there will be no significant 
or unacceptable impacts upon the achievement of wellbeing goals/objectives as a 
result of this report. 

 
8.0 Financial implications 
 
8.1 These are reflected in the body of the report. 
 
9.0 Recommendations 

 
9.1 Cabinet is requested to note the projected revenue and capital outturn position for 

2018-19.  
 

 
Gill Lewis 
Interim Head of Finance and Section 151 Officer 
July 2018 
  
Contact Officer: Deborah Exton 
   Group Manager – Financial Planning and Budget Management 
 
Telephone:  01656 643604 
 

Page 39



Email:  deborah.exton@bridgend.gov.uk 
 
Postal Address : Raven’s Court 
   Brewery Lane 
   Bridgend 
   CF31 4AP 

 
 
Background documents:  Individual Directorate Monitoring Reports 

     MTFS Report to Council – 28 February 2018 
 

Page 40

mailto:deborah.exton@bridgend.gov.uk


APPENDIX 1

Ref. Budget Reduction Proposal

Original  

RAG     

£000

Revised 

RAG     

£000

Amount of 

saving likely 

to be 

achieved in 

18/19       

£000

Reason why not achievable Mitigating Action

RAG STATUS KEY

RED Not likely to be achieved at all in this financial year or less than 25%.

AMBER Reduction not likely to be achieved in full in financial year but greater than 25%

GREEN Reduction likely to be achieved in full

EDUCATION & FAMILY SUPPORT

EFS1
Phased implementation of Learner Transport Policy 

regarding statutory distances for free travel.
20 0

Delays to the assessments of safe 

routes have meant the policy can not 

be implemented. It will be 

implemented incrementally as routes 

are assessed.  Red RAG status given 

overspend on HTST in 2017/18.

Work with Communities Directorate colleagues to 

expedite the assessments

EFS2 School transport route efficiencies. 40 0 As above As above

EFS15

Speech and language therapy - This is a proposal to delegate 

the Speech and Language Service to schools- School Based 

Model. Other Local Authorities such as Cardiff, Neath Port 

Talbot and Swansea have moved towards a school based 

model with the involvement of an SLA with Health which has 

proven to be a successful model. This proposal would negate 

the local authority’s requirement to manage the service 

resulting in a release of the management structure of the 

service.

75 75

The proposal has had to be 

changed to refine the service in 

partnership with health to provide 

a schools based service. This has 

delayed the proposal.

Vacant posts held within wider service area to cover 

value of saving until consultation and implementation 

complete.

EFS7
To review the Built Environment Service Level Agreement 

with Schools to achieve full cost recovery.
31 31

This proposal will be achieved 

through the new Corporate 

Landlord Model

None required.

Total Education & Family Support Directorate 166 106

SOCIAL SERVICES & WELLBEING

SOCIAL SERVICES & WELLBEING OUTSTANDING REDUCTIONS 1,917

NEW PROPOSALS TO MEET SHORTFALL BETWEEN 2018-19 AND 2020-21

Total 

Proposed 

Saving

2018-19 

Proposed 

Saving

2018-19 

Likely 

Saving

SSW001 Management and admin review 203 116 116

The proposal requires staff 

restructuring and consultation.  Full 

year saving likely to be achieved in 

2019/20

All social services budget reduction proposals are being  

monitored by financial planning group which includes 

the Chief Executive and Section 151 Officer

SSW003 Outcome focussed assessment and review 350 0 0

There is high demand for services.  As 

savings are being generated, new 

demand means additional costs are 

being incurred.

All social services budget reduction proposals are being  

monitored by financial planning group which includes 

the Chief Executive and Section 151 Officer

SSW004 Review of LD supported living accommodation 78 39 39

Consultation with service is required.  

Full year savings should be achieved 

in 2019/20

All social services budget reduction proposals are being  

monitored by financial planning group which includes 

the Chief Executive and Section 151 Officer

SSW006
Review of telecare monitoring contract and income 

generation
91 75 75

All social services budget reduction proposals are being  

monitored by financial planning group which includes 

the Chief Executive and Section 151 Officer

SSW007 Review of commissioned services 118 84 84

All social services budget reduction proposals are being  

monitored by financial planning group which includes 

the Chief Executive and Section 151 Officer

SSW008 Maximise grant funding - Childrens services 67 67 67

All social services budget reduction proposals are being  

monitored by financial planning group which includes 

the Chief Executive and Section 151 Officer

SSW009 Remodel children's residential services 245 10 10

The savings proposal has been 

profiled over three years.  £10k 

savings has been identified for 

2018/19.

All social services budget reduction proposals are being  

monitored by financial planning group which includes 

the Chief Executive and Section 151 Officer

SSW010 Increase in-house fostering provision 136 136 136

All social services budget reduction proposals are being  

monitored by financial planning group which includes 

the Chief Executive and Section 151 Officer

SSW011 Fairer charging legislative changes 203 203 203

All social services budget reduction proposals are being  

monitored by financial planning group which includes 

the Chief Executive and Section 151 Officer

SSW012
Additional income from health in relation to Section 117 and 

CHC
60 0 0

The proposal is dependent on 

successful negotiation with Health 

Board.  Result is unknown at this 

stage

All social services budget reduction proposals are being  

monitored by financial planning group which includes 

the Chief Executive and Section 151 Officer

SSW013
Review of financial support for care leavers in Children's 

Services
60 60 60

All social services budget reduction proposals are being  

monitored by financial planning group which includes 

the Chief Executive and Section 151 Officer

SSW016 Restructure localised day services within LD 50 50 50

All social services budget reduction proposals are being  

monitored by financial planning group which includes 

the Chief Executive and Section 151 Officer

Total Social Services & Wellbeing Directorate 1,661 840 840

 2016-17 AND 2017-18 BUDGET REDUCTIONS CARRIED FORWARD INTO 2018-19

Page 41



APPENDIX 1

Ref. Budget Reduction Proposal

Original  

RAG     

£000

Revised 

RAG     

£000

Amount of 

saving likely 

to be 

achieved in 

18/19       

£000

Reason why not achievable Mitigating Action

COMMUNITIES

COM12
Broad review of car park charging including staff and elected 

member parking passes
50 25

Recent Cabinet report should bring 

benefits in the 18/19 year but given 

timescales around consultation it will 

not be a full year effect.

Cabinet report presented 15th May 2018 and a 

review board now in place to ensure progress.  

Underspends across other service areas will have to 

meet projected shortfall.

COM18

Reductions to the budget for the Materials Recovery and 

Energy Centre (MREC)

Introduction in 17/18 of savings achieved through the current 

procurement being undertaken with Neath Port Talbot CBC 

for the provision of new operator arrangements for the MREC 

facility at Crumlyn Burrows.

200 0

The timeline is not in the direct 

control of BCBC as the project is NPT 

led. Savings will not be achieved 

from the 1st April, however even 

part year implementation would 

meet the required saving.

BCBC officers meeting regularly with NPT and are 

putting resources into the finalisation of the joint 

agreement document for the new contract.  Cabinet 

report presented 20th June 2018.

COM19
Permitting Scheme road works net of existing income of 

£95,000
100 50

Timeline not in the direct control of 

BCBC officers as the business case is 

going through multiple steps in an 

approval process with WG. However 

ultimately a positive response is 

expected, and this is being lead by 

the group manager to ensure it is 

followed through.  Prudent to 

estimate half of saving to be 

achieved in 18/19.

The responsible highways network budget area is 

committed to staying within budget irrespective of 

the delivery of the scheme. 

COM21 Rights of Way - removal of contribution to Coity Walia 21 21
No reason why this should not be 

achieved in full in 2018/19.
None required

Total Communities Directorate 371 96

CHIEF EXECUTIVES
FINANCE 

CEX3
To put Council Tax and some aspects of benefits online and 

to collaborate with others
150 150

Will depend upon the take-up of 

digitalisation, and impact on staffing 

requirements within the service.

Digitalisation didn't go live until April 2018. Staffing will 

be reviewed as roll-out progresses. Some vacancies 

held to meet previous shortfall.

Total Chief Executives 150 150 0

GRAND TOTAL OUTSTANDING REDUCTIONS 2,604 1,192

REDUCTIONS SHORTFALL 1,412

Page 42



MONITORING OF 2018-19 BUDGET REDUCTIONS APPENDIX 2

Ref. Budget Reduction Proposal Impact 

Proposed 

2018-19 

£'000

Value Likely 

to be 

Achieved 

2018-19         

£'000

Reason why not likely to be achievable Mitigating action

EDUCATION & FAMILY SUPPORT
CENTRAL EDUCATION & FAMILY SUPPORT

EFS1

Phased implementation of Learner Transport 

Policy regarding statutory distances for free 

travel.

• Savings should occur naturally as a result of the policy application 

year on year, however dispersed learners and contractual pressure 

from operators as routes become more untenable may mean it 

becomes increasingly difficult to find the identified savings

• Risk of price increases from Contractors 

67 0
Achieving these savings is dependent on the Communities 

Directorate assessing all schools' routes. 

Discussions with the 

Communities Directorate are 

on-going regarding increasing 

the speed of the 

assessments.  Historic 

savings brought forward will 

be first call on any savings 

achieved.  Any in-year 

overspends due to the delays 

will have to be met from under-

spends across other service 

areas.

EFS3 Reduction to Catering Service Budget

Recent and planned MTFS efficiencies have reduced the ability of the 

service to reinvest, in particular in improving and maintaining school 

kitchens to a high standard.  Although the recently agreed 10p 

increase in the cost of a school meal may provide additional income 

over time, historically there is a reduction in the take-up of meals 

during the short to mid-term following a price increase. Whilst all 

school kitchens were recently rated as the highest rating of five for 

food hygiene, one of our kitchens has since dropped to a rating of 

four due to the condition of the fabric of the kitchen

71 71

No reason why this saving should not be achieved in 

2018/19.  However, close monitoring of this budget will be 

required in-year as often circumstances outside of the control 

of the service area impact on the outturn - e.g. snow days.

EFS12
Restructure Integrated Working and Family 

Support Service. 

Limited impact on operational delivery as existing tasks will be picked 

up across the service or by other stakeholders. 
50 50

No reason why this saving should not be achieved in 2018/19 

- restructure in place at start of 2018/19.

EFS14

Traded Services Schools brochure - It is 

proposed to revise the current approach to 

offering traded services under the current SLAs 

where such services impact upon the LAs 

statutory responsibilities.  A new traded 

brochure will offer services from the LA but 

mandate certain services where these impact 

upon the LAs statutory responsibilities or where 

the risk to the schools, their users or LA are high

• Relationship with schools and governing bodies may suffer

• Freedom of schools to shop around and obtain best value for 

money is challenged

20 20

No reason why this saving should not be achieved in 

2018/19.  Early indication of good take up of SLA's by 

schools.  However, close monitoring required to ensure fully 

achievable.

P
age 43



MONITORING OF 2018-19 BUDGET REDUCTIONS APPENDIX 2

Ref. Budget Reduction Proposal Impact 

Proposed 

2018-19 

£'000

Value Likely 

to be 

Achieved 

2018-19         

£'000

Reason why not likely to be achievable Mitigating action

EFS23

Staff vacancy management - It is proposed to 

implement strong vacancy management 

arrangements within the Directorate.  This will 

ensure that all posts that progress to recruitment 

have been robustly challenged and vacant posts 

which cannot be justified will not be filled

• Posts that become vacant may be critical

• Service resilience becomes partly dependent on longevity of current 

postholders

• Natural succession of staff into more senior positions is potentially 

stalled, impacting retention and morale

• Service delivery becomes potentially at risk

• Demand overload for staff expected to pick up the ‘slack’

• Challenge from Unions over additional responsibilities/operation 

tasks without consideration of financial recompense for staff

• Further restructures likely as teams reduce

• Morale of staff may be affected

50 50

No reason why this saving should not be achieved in 2018/19 

given strong vacancy management.  However, will require 

close monitoring to track achievability.

EFS24
Proposal to amalgamate the Health and Safety 

service with neighbouring authorities.

Initial discussions have been undertaken by Heads of Service and 

agreement in principal has been granted by CMB. A project officer 

has been allocated to develop a project brief and establish a structure 

to drive the amalgamation. It is anticipated that the savings would be 

derived from a reduction in management costs. Agreement and full 

commitment of the partner authority is required to effect proposed 

savings.

25 25

Discussions are ongoing with a neighbouring authority. 
Vacancies held to meet 

savings target until 

discussions have been 

finalised.

EFS25
Reduction to contribution to the Central South 

Consortium (CSC) of 2%
This proposal has been agreed by partner authorities for 2018-19. 12 12

No reason why this saving will not be achieved as revised 

contribution agreed by partner authorities.

EFS26

Education Improvement Grant (EIG) - re-

alignment of budget to reflect actual match 

funding contribution required

Risk that contribution in future years increases 20 20
No reason why this saving will not be achieved as reduced 

match funding contribution has been confirmed for 18/19.

EFS27

Review arrangements for Special Schools 

Home to School Transport with a view to 

achieving efficiency savings

• Historic arrangement with school  - may impact on relationship with 

school.

• Specialist provision narrows numbers of contractors able to 

transport pupils.

• Outcome of review could mean extra rather than reduced cost.

75 35
Re-tendering special school transport is unlikely to make the 

full saving

Other mechanisms to achieve 

the additional savings are 

being explored 

EFS28
Post 16 grant - maximise centrally retained 

element from 2% to 3%

The impact would be a small reduction in the individual grant 

allocation to each school sixth form.  On average this would be 

£6,666 per school.  Risk that Post 16 grant is reduced in future years 

which would impact on this saving proposal and allocation to schools.

60 60 No reason why this saving will not be achieved.

EFS29
Develop collaborative arrangements around the 

Additional Learning Needs Service

Consider the sensory review and any cost effective savings that could 

be achieved through collaboration with other local authorities
50 25

Plans have been delayed and therefore full year savings are 

unlikely

The additional amount will be 

found from elsewhere in the 

ALN service

P
age 44



MONITORING OF 2018-19 BUDGET REDUCTIONS APPENDIX 2

Ref. Budget Reduction Proposal Impact 

Proposed 

2018-19 

£'000

Value Likely 

to be 

Achieved 

2018-19         

£'000

Reason why not likely to be achievable Mitigating action

EFS30
Reduction to Schools Contingency budget (held 

centrally)

Risk that there is insufficient funding to meet any in-year changes to 

school budgets - e.g. increased rateable values
30 30

No reason why this saving will not be achieved.  However, 

the nature of this budget is that it is used to meet in-year 

changes to school budgets, some of which are difficult to 

project.  Close monitoring will be required in-year.

Alternative savings would 

have to mitigate this saving if 

required.

EFS32

Vacancy management factor across all staffing 

budgets (with the exception of grant 

funded/schools)

By taking a strategic approach to vacancy management on all core 

funded posts this saving can be achieved
100 100

Will require close monitoring as this is the first year this type 

of saving has been implemented.  Some areas might find it 

difficult if they have a full staffing complement for the whole 

year.  

Alternative non-staffing 

budgets would have to 

mitigate this saving if required.

630 498

SOCIAL SERVICES & WELLBEING

Theme 1 - Remodel Service Delivery

ASC18 Development of Extra Care Housing

All service users transitioning from the existing residential 

establishments will receive an assessment of their need, taking into 

account their wellbeing outcomes, when planning their future care 

with their family and carers. The transition will be a collaborative 

approach, with timely transfer of care to the newly built scheme or, if 

not appropriate, to an alternative provision which will better meet their 

assessed needs, with the safeguarding of individuals being of 

paramount importance throughout the transition process. 

330 330
The two new schemes are forecast to be operational in Oct 

2018.  No reason to suggest savings will not be achieved

Theme 1 - Remodel Service Delivery - sub-total 330 330

Theme 2 - Service Efficiencies

HL2 Review Healthy Living Partnership Contract  

The £20k is the final part of a proposal to deliver £509k of savings 

from the healthy living partnership between 2016-17 and 2018-19. 

The negotiations with the contractor have remained positive 

throughout and the management fee has been reduced without the 

creation of detriment to the service that would have required 

compensation. A larger than scheduled efficiency of £308k was 

delivered a year early in 2016-17. The £20k balance will be found 

through improvements in energy efficiency measures.

20 20 Savings has been achieved in full.

Theme 2 - Service Efficiencies - sub-total 20 20

350 350

Total Education & Family Support Directorate

Total Social Services & Wellbeing Directorate

P
age 45



MONITORING OF 2018-19 BUDGET REDUCTIONS APPENDIX 2

Ref. Budget Reduction Proposal Impact 

Proposed 

2018-19 

£'000

Value Likely 

to be 

Achieved 

2018-19         

£'000

Reason why not likely to be achievable Mitigating action

COMMUNITIES

COM1

Public conveniences - Reductions to the budget 

for Public Toilet provision: Budget saving 

against the service pending the outcome of 

public consultation on the future  provision of 

public toilets in Bridgend, Porthcawl and 

Maesteg, closure or transfer to Town & 

Community Councils. Whilst there will be limited 

toilet provision remaining, a budget will also be 

retained to support the Authority’s comfort 

scheme. This will be used to grant fund 

businesses that open their toilets to the general 

public

Removal of 60% of the public toilet revenue budget will result in the 

closure of a number of the remaining public toilets in Porthcawl, 

Bridgend and Maesteg, along with a number being transferred as part 

of the Council's Community Asset Transfer (CAT) programme.

The budget remaining will be used to fund some limited toilet 

provision as well as the Council's Comfort Scheme.  This scheme 

provides access to toilet facilities in partnership with local 

businesses, who are prepared to open their toilet facilities to non 

paying customers.  In return the Council provides financial support in 

the form of a grant. The value of this grant is assessed in accordance 

with agreed terms.

It should be noted that a White Paper being prepared by the Welsh 

Government is currently considering  the provision of public toilets.

In order to implement this saving it will be necessary to consult with 

staff and the unions.  

100 0

A report was presented to Cabinet on the 19th June 2018 outlining 

the findings on the public consultation and recommending actions 

against each of the town centre public toilets.  The report made a 

number of recommendations for the toilets which can be broadly 

categorised as: -

1. transfer of the toilets to Town and Community Councils, under 

the Councils CAT scheme.

2. where this is not possible closure of the toilets and replacement 

with the Councils comfort scheme.

3. convert identified toilets to pay to use

Implementing these recommendations will take some time to 

complete as discussions with the Town and Community Councils 

will need to take place prior to formal consultation with affected 

staff.

Continue to work with Town and 

Community Councils to transfer 

facilities. Where this is not 

possible toilet provision in our 

three main towns will be 

provided by the Councils comfort 

scheme. 

Convert toilets identified in the 

report to pay to use. 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      

Shortfall in the savings target in 

2018/19 will have to be met 

from underspends across other 

service areas within the 

Directorate.

COM11B Permanent transfer from the public realm fund.

This proposal mitigates a need to  balance the budget through a 

reduction of £200,000 in street cleaning. It will however reduce the 

potential to make new improvements to the public realm

200 200 Savings has been achieved in full.

COM15

Street lighting - Budget reduction based on 

energy savings generated through completed 

LED street lighting installations

A limited number of individual concerns have been raised regarding 

the perceived increased brightness provided by the LED lanterns, but 

largely the LED changeover has been welcomed by the public in 

areas completed

110 110

No reason why this saving will not be achieved based on 

2017/18 outturn.  However, this saving is also predicated on 

the assumption that any inflationary cost pressures on energy 

costs will continue to be met corporately.

COM16

Regeneration - £40k cut in commissioning 

budget to support 3rd Sector with Community 

Asset Transfer and £20K reduction (equivalent 

to 33%) in the Events budget.                                                                                                                

£20K reduction to Core Budget within the 

Economic Development Unit (not SRF)                                                                                                                                                                           

These cuts will limit the extent to which the Council is able to harness 

the economic potential of major events, including the Urdd, Elvis 

Festival, Women's Open, Senior Open etc. The tourism sector 

currently accounts for 4,000 jobs locally, and is a sector that has 

shown consistent growth, both locally and nationally, in the last 5 

years. The £40k cut in the commissioning budget will limit the 

package of support that is currently available to support the Third 

Sector with Community Asset Transfer in 2018/19. The impact of this 

could result in either the inability to safeguard community services, 

and/or failure to realise savings elsewhere in the Council. The 

reduction to the Economic Development unit budget does not relate 

to staff cuts but to cuts in non staffing budgets that support the work 

of the core team and allow assistance to be given to local 

businesses. The impact therefore will be around being less able to 

provide timely targeted support.

80 80 No reason why this saving will not be achieved.

P
age 46



MONITORING OF 2018-19 BUDGET REDUCTIONS APPENDIX 2

Ref. Budget Reduction Proposal Impact 

Proposed 

2018-19 

£'000

Value Likely 

to be 

Achieved 

2018-19         

£'000

Reason why not likely to be achievable Mitigating action

COM27 Removal of Subsidised bus services

Potential reputational risk. Requirement for consultation and 

Equalities Impact Assessment (EIA). Risk of isolation of 

communities. Risk of no commercial services to fill the gap in terms 

of early or later services thus could be a barrier to employment, 

healthcare, education and services for the community. Risk that WG 

reconsider their element of the bus subsidy for Bridgend.

188 100

This saving was subject to public consultation.  Cabinet report 

dated 15th May 2018 resulted in 3 bus routes continuing to be 

subsidised for at least 12 months.  However, Cabinet agreed that 

the shortfall against the savings target would be met from 

allocating funding from the small unallocated budget as a result 

increasing the Council Tax from 4.2% to 4.5%. The shortfall against 

the savings target is due to the date of implementation of the 

removal of subsidies due to the required consultation and notice 

period for bus contractors.

Shortfall in the savings target in 

2018/19 will have to be met with 

underspends across other service 

areas within the Directorate.

COM31

To rationalise the core office estate - Secure 

tenant for Raven’s Court and move staff into the 

Civic Offices, in order to generate a rental 

income and save on running costs 

Proposal is dependent on the property market and tenant may not be 

secured. Whilst there has been tenant interest, to date it has not 

been possible to complete on the lease with two successive tenants. 

The property may need to be split and marketed on this basis. This 

may result in less attractive terms to the council.

114 114

The decision to locate the MASH in one wing on Ravenscourt 

negates the possibility of leasing a further wing out for the time 

being in view of pressure on office space. The proposed lease to 

MASH is estimated to bring in approx. £ 77 k from police plus 

balance from social services 2018-19 budget pressure.   

COM36
Efficiency saving for Streetworks (including 

vacancy management)

This saving is based simply on making the service make an 

additional 1% efficiency saving on top of all of the savings already 

identified. The specific impact has not yet been identified but it is 

likely that it will have a further detrimental impact on capacity and 

resilience. 

73 73
No reason why this saving will not be achieved based on 

2017/18 outturn.

COM38

Efficiency saving target for Business Unit, 

including reduction in software and agency staff 

budget

A further minor saving from the central Communities Business Unit 

predicated on reducing budgets that have been underspent over 

recent years but again removing any financial resilience in this area. 

15 15
No reason why this saving will not be achieved based on 

2017/18 outturn.

COM39

Reduction to core budget within the Engineering 

section with the aim of achieving a break-even 

position

The aim of this saving would be to make the engineering service run 

at break even. Productivity rates will have to be managed closely to 

ensure this target is met. Risk that European Funded projects might 

impact on ability to meet targets due to inability to charge overheads 

to these projects.

74 74
No reason why this saving will not be achieved based on 

2017/18 outturn.

COM40 Introduction of Corporate Landlord Model

The savings will be delivered in a number of ways including 

operational efficiencies, streamlined business processes, IT 

investment, improved procurement and contract management, and 

some deletions of vacant posts.

500 500

Based on the financial improvement plan submitted by People Too 

realising the proposed £ 500k saving should be achievable. 

However, this is a new way of working for the Council so there are 

inevitably some inherent risks in ensuring that the proposed 

savings from efficiency, procurement, IT , staff restructuring and 

streamlined business processes accrue entirely as planned.  

Continue to work through the 

implementation programme and 

closely monitor during 2018/19.

Total Communities Directorate 1,454 1,266

CHIEF EXECUTIVES

FINANCE 

CEX6
To reduce the annual bad debt provision for 

housing benefit

Necessary accounting work has been carried out as part of 2016-17 

closing which shows that annual additions to the provision are no 

longer required

189 189

P
age 47



MONITORING OF 2018-19 BUDGET REDUCTIONS APPENDIX 2

Ref. Budget Reduction Proposal Impact 

Proposed 

2018-19 

£'000

Value Likely 

to be 

Achieved 

2018-19         

£'000

Reason why not likely to be achievable Mitigating action

CEX7 Extra recovery income from Housing Benefit

Target £100,000 additional recovery, necessitates investment in 

staffing estimated at 1 FTE - assume gradual ramp up. Amber rating 

because model unproven/ recovery figures are estimates
32 32

Amber rating because model unproven/ recovery figures are 

estimates. 

CEX8 Additional Annual leave purchase

Two years data has shown that staffing budget can be top sliced for 

additional annual leave purchase. There is always the risk that it is 

not taken up by staff in future years 10 10

Total Chief Executives 231 231

OPERATIONAL AND PARTNERSHIP SERVICES

OPS10
Review democratic staffing structure together 

with non-staff budgets.

Realigns Member and Scrutiny support. Member support already 

integrated and should not therefore provide further change of 

capacity to support Members or Scrutiny.

72 45
Original target revised as part of savings already made in 

previous years.

OPS11
Review legal staffing structure together with non-

staff budgets.

Return to corporate cover for additional litigation. Realignment of 

responsibility for staff and non staff budgets .
111 128

OPS12 Reduction of procurement training budget Planned training will be maintained. 23 10
Regrading of existing specialist officers following recent job 

evaluation review.

OPS13
Review business support and registrars staffing 

structure together with non-staff budgets.
Will enable further integration of the service.  41 51

OPS14 Restructure senior management
Restructure of management responsibility - reduction in number of 

staff. 
43 56 Details of restructure have not been finalised to date.

OPS19 Efficiencies from Shared Regulatory Service

The project is intended to reduce costs and maintain resilience. It is 

important that the project provides proportionate savings to the 

Directorate budget cuts to avoid other services taking 

disproportionate cuts.  

37 37

Total Legal, Democratic and Public 

Protection
327 327

Housing

OPS15
Review staffing and non staffing budgets with 

SLA's 
Re-alignment of staffing required, non staffing review undertaken. 138 138

Total Housing 138 138

P
age 48



MONITORING OF 2018-19 BUDGET REDUCTIONS APPENDIX 2

Ref. Budget Reduction Proposal Impact 

Proposed 

2018-19 

£'000

Value Likely 

to be 

Achieved 

2018-19         

£'000

Reason why not likely to be achievable Mitigating action

Human Resources

OPS16

Review HR, Communications and Caretaking 

staffing structure together with non-staff 

budgets.

Reduction in staffing likely to impact on response times. 167 167

Total Human Resources 167 167

ICT

OPS17
Further rationalisation of software and hardware 

budgets
Rationalisation of software and hardware usage. 210 210

Total ICT 210 210

Performance

OPS18 Review non staff budgets for performance team Based on line by line review of budget - minimal disruption. 6 6

Total Performance 6 6

Total Operational & Partnership Services 848 848

P
age 49



MONITORING OF 2018-19 BUDGET REDUCTIONS APPENDIX 2

Ref. Budget Reduction Proposal Impact 

Proposed 

2018-19 

£'000

Value Likely 

to be 

Achieved 

2018-19         

£'000

Reason why not likely to be achievable Mitigating action

CORPORATE / COUNCIL WIDE

CWD1
Reduction in funding available for meeting the 

costs of Capital Financing

Low demand on budget in recent years due to low borrowing, so 

should be minimal impact in short term.
1,170 1,170

No reason why saving should not be achieved, unless there 

is a need for unplanned borrowing.

CWD2
Reduction in provision for Council Tax 

Reduction Scheme

Budget underspent by £946k in 2016-17. 2017-18 budget includes 

£300,000 reduction, therefore impact will need to be monitored as 

this budget is demand led.

400 400
Budget is demand led and any increase in demand may lead 

to over spend against budget, and saving not being realised.

CWD3
Removal of capital financing budget for 

Glamorgan Records Office

Loan repaid in full in 2016-17 so annual capital financing budget no 

longer required.
80 80

CWD4

Reduction in centrally held budget for changes 

to corporate pension and national insurance 

costs

Lower superannuation and pensions increases in recent years than 

anticipated, and roll out of auto enrolment complete in 2017-18, so 

budgets available to be released.

773 773

CWD5
Removal of equalisation budget for Private 

Finance Initiative (PFI) Scheme 

Budget was originally established to equalise the funding available 

from Welsh Government with actual annual costs of the scheme, and 

is not needed in future years. 

187 187

Total Corporate / Council Wide 2,610 2,610

GRAND TOTAL REDUCTIONS 6,123 5,803

6,123 6,123

REDUCTION SHORTFALL 0 320

1,496 4,116
4,446 1,907
181 100

6,123 6,123

ESTIMATED BUDGET REDUCTION REQUIREMENT (MOST LIKELY)

P
age 50



REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING TO 30TH JUNE 2018

BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

Expenditure 

Budget
Income 

Budget 

Net 

Budget 

Projected 

Outturn 

Projected 

Variance

Over/(under)

budget 

% 

Variance

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

EDUCATION AND FAMILY SUPPORT

School Delegated Budgets 110,591         (21,302)     89,289     89,289         (0)                     0.0%

Learning 9,665            (2,888)       6,766       6,710           (56)                   -0.8%

Strategic Partnerships & Comm 24,941          (11,409)     13,544     13,603         59                    0.4%

Health and Safety 231               (2)             228          181             (47)                   -20.7%

TOTAL EDUCATION AND FAMILY SUPPORT 145,429         (35,602)     109,827   109,783       (44)                   0.0%

SOCIAL SERVICES AND WELLBEING DIRECTORATE

Adult Social Care 61,545          (16,279)     45,266     45,751         484                  1.1%

Sport, Play and Active Wellbeing 6,104            (892)         5,212       5,129           (83)                   -1.6%

Safeguarding & Family Support 19,723          (991)         18,732     20,192         1,459               7.8%

TOTAL SOCIAL SERVICES AND WELLBEING 87,373          (18,162)     69,211     71,071         1,860               2.7%

COMMUNITIES DIRECTORATE

Regeneration & Development 5,079            (2,215)       2,864       2,944           80                    2.8%

Street Scene 33,766          (13,301)     20,464     21,053         589                  2.9%

Directorate Business Unit 439                -          439          439              -                  0.0%

Culture 288               (174)         114          114              -                  0.0%

Elections 136                -          136          136              -                  0.0%

Corporate Landlord 10,642          (7,243)       3,400       3,270           (130)                 -3.8%

TOTAL COMMUNITIES 50,351          (22,934)     27,418     27,957         539                  2.0%

OPERATIONAL & PARTNERSHIP SERVICES DIRECTORATE

Legal Services and Democratic Services 5,286            (948)         4,338       3,922           (416)                 -9.6%

Regulatory Services 1,874            (451)         1,423       1,423            -                  0.0%

Transformation, Performance and Partnerships 659               (173)         486          376             (110)                 -22.7%

ICT 4,987            (1,254)       3,734       3,648           (86)                   -2.3%

Human Resources 3,646            (370)         3,276       2,999           (277)                 -8.5%

Housing and Homelessness 8,160            (6,477)       1,683       1,578           (104)                 -6.2%

 TOTAL OPERATIONAL & PARTNERSHIP SERVICES 24,612          (9,673)       14,939     13,946         (993)                 -6.6%

Chief Executives 

Chief Executive 516                -          516          516              -                  0.0%

Finance 53,791          (50,785)     3,006       2,899           (107)                 -3.6%

Internal Audit 313                -          313          250             (63)                   -20.1%

 TOTAL CHIEF EXECUTIVES 54,621          (50,785)     3,836       3,666           (170)                 -4.4%

 TOTAL DIRECTORATE BUDGETS 362,385         (137,155)   225,231   226,424       1,192               0.5%

Council Wide Budgets 41,640          (887)         40,753     38,263         (2,490)              -6.1%

 NET BRIDGEND CBC          404,025    (138,042)    265,984        264,687               (1,298) -0.5%

NB: Differences due to rounding of £000's

APPENDIX 3

Budget 2018-19

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



CAPITAL MONITORING TO END OF JUNE 2018 APPENDIX 4

Main Scheme Whole Scheme 

Budget*

Budget 18-19 

(Council 

28.02.18)

New Approvals Virement Slippage Revised 

Budget 2018-

19

Total Exp to 

date

Projected 

Spend

Over / (Under) 

spend

Comments

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Education & Family Support

Learning
21ST CENTURY SCHOOLS BAND B   43,200             120                   -                   -                   -                  120                   -                  120                   -                   New scheme for 2018-19 

PENYFAI PRIMARY               7,239               357                   -                   -                  5                      362                  2                      362                   -                   Scheme complete - compensation payments and payment to landowner 

expected  
BRYNMENYN PRIMARY             8,500               166                   -                   -                  289                  455                  (73)                   455                   -                  

GATEWAY TO THE VALLEYS SECONDARY SCHOOL  -                  150                   -                   -                  5                      155                   -                  155                   -                  

COITY PRIMARY SCHOOL          8,560                -                   -                   -                  56                    56                    (132)                 56                     -                   Scheme complete -  final account to be paid in current year 

GARW VALLEY SOUTH PRIMARY PROVISION 10,808             841                   -                   -                  3,728               4,569               318                  4,569                -                   Welsh school construction underway and due to open this financial year 

PENCOED PRIMARY               10,834             216                   -                   -                  4,335               4,551               1,214               4,551                -                   Construction underway and due to open this financial year 

GARW VALLEY PRIMARY HIGHWAYS WORKS 400                   -                   -                   -                  146                  146                   -                  146                   -                  

PENCOED PRIMARY SCHOOL HIGHWAYS WORKS 370                   -                   -                   -                  95                    95                    (8)                     95                     -                  

BRYNMENYN SCHOOL HIGHWAYS WORK 807                   -                   -                   -                  181                  181                  21                    181                   -                  

OGMORE COMPREHENSIVE          4,120                -                   -                   -                  56                    56                    (89)                   56                     -                   Scheme complete -  final account to be paid in current year 

CWMFELIN PRIMARY 165                   -                  157                  8                       -                  165                   -                  165                   -                   Approved by Council on 20 June 2018 

SCHOOL MODERNISATION RETENTIONS 475                  475                   -                  (8)                      -                  467                   -                  467                   -                  

HERONSBRIDGE SCHOOL           300                   -                   -                   -                  53                    53                    (10)                   53                     -                  

SCHOOLS TRAFFIC SAFETY        500                  289                   -                   -                  8                      297                  12                    297                   -                   Works planned in school summer holidays (July / August) 

MAESTEG COMP HIGHWAYS         500                  80                     -                   -                  8                      88                    (4)                     88                     -                   Retention due to be released 

EDUCATION S106 SCHEMES         -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                  2                       -                   -                   Funded by S106 

COMPLEX&MEDICAL NEEDS SCHOOLS 675                  370                   -                   -                  163                  533                   -                  533                   -                   Works planned in school summer holidays (July / August) 

TOTAL Learning 97,453             3,064               157                   -                  9,128               12,349             1,253               12,349              -                  

TOTAL Education & Family Support 97,453             3,064               157                  -                       9,128               12,349             1,253               12,349             -                       

Social Services and Wellbeing
BRYNGARW HOUSE                 -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                  2                       -                   -                   Funded by Minor Works budget 

BRYN Y CAE-UPGRADE HFE'S       -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                  23                     -                   -                   Funded from Care Standard budget. Works required in order to comply 

with regulations in the homes 
VARIOUS MINOR WORKS            -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                  7                       -                   -                  

MULTI AGENCY SAFEGUARDING HUB 205                  105                   -                   -                  100                  205                   -                  205                   -                   The MASH team have recently moved in to Raven's Court so there has 

been no spend to date 
BAKERS WAY MINOR WORKS         -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                  1                       -                   -                  

CARE STANDARDS ACT 98                    100                   -                   -                  (2)                     98                     -                  98                     -                  

HARWOOD HOUSE                 286                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                  (6)                      -                   -                  

ARCH WELLBEING CENTRE         500                  500                   -                   -                   -                  500                   -                  500                   -                   New scheme for 2018-19 

CHILDRENS RESIDENTIAL HUB     600                  600                   -                   -                   -                  600                   -                  600                   -                   New scheme for 2018-19 

EXTRA CARE FACILITIES         3,000               1,497                -                   -                  725                  2,222                -                  2,222                -                   Construction underway and due to be completed this financial year 

BRIDGELINK                    30                    30                     -                   -                   -                  30                     -                  30                     -                  

TOTAL Social Services & Wellbeing 4,719               2,832                -                   -                  823                  3,655               27                    3,655                -                  

Communities

Street Scene
PARKS PAVILIONS               1,000               1,000                -                   -                   -                  1,000                -                  1,000                -                  

ABERFIELDS PLAYING FIELDS 11                     -                   -                   -                  11                    11                     -                  11                     -                  

CITY DEAL                     46,723             1,888                -                   -                  (191)                 1,697                -                  1,697                -                   Re-profiling of budget 

PORTHCAWL TOWN SEA DEFENCE    3,548               2,470               (166)                  -                  (304)                 2,000               23                    2,000                -                   Works progressing well - funded by WG grant 75% and BCBC 25% 

EASTERN PROMENADE PORTHCAWL   400                   -                  383                   -                   -                  383                  8                      383                   -                   Works being tendered shortly. Funded by WG grant 75% and BCBC 25% 

CORNELLY CEMETERY EXTENSION         190                  190                   -                   -                   -                  190                   -                  190                   -                   New scheme for 2018-19 

COYCHURCH CREM WORKS          280                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                  (4)                      -                   -                   Retention due to be released 

PORTHCAWL CEMETERY EXTENSION        170                  170                   -                   -                   -                  170                   -                  170                   -                   New scheme for 2018-19 

REMEDIAL MEASURES - CAR PARKS 115                  110                   -                   -                  34                    144                   -                  144                   -                  

CIVIL PARKING ENFORCEMENT CAR 68                    68                     -                   -                  (11)                   57                     -                  57                     -                  

STREET LIGHTING ENERGY SALIX  300                  300                   -                   -                   -                  300                   -                  300                   -                   New scheme for 2018-19 

SAFE ROUTES TO SCHOOL         786                   -                  950                   -                   -                  950                  18                    950                   -                   WG grant 

ROAD SAFETY SCHEMES           241                   -                   -                  81                     -                  81                    (8)                     81                     -                   Minor works allocation 

HIGHWAYS STRUCTURES           200                  200                   -                   -                   -                  200                  (29)                   200                   -                   Annual allocation 

HIGHWAYS MAINTENANCE          250                  250                   -                   -                   -                  250                  (4)                     250                   -                   Annual allocation 

P
age 53



Main Scheme Whole Scheme 

Budget*

Budget 18-19 

(Council 

28.02.18)

New Approvals Virement Slippage Revised 

Budget 2018-

19

Total Exp to 

date

Projected 

Spend

Over / (Under) 

spend

Comments

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

ROAD SAFETY IMPROVEMENTS      690                  400                  290                   -                   -                  690                  5                      690                   -                   New approval is WG grant 

PROW CAPITAL IMP STRUCTURES   40                     -                   -                  40                     -                  40                    (1)                     40                     -                   Minor works allocation 

CARRIAGEWAY & FOOTWAYS RENEWAL 5,704               2,000                -                   -                   -                  2,000                -                  2,000                -                   New scheme for 2018-19. May need to re-profile budget later in year  

CARRIAGE RECONSTRUCTION       7,885                -                   -                   -                   -                   -                  (17)                    -                   -                   Final retentions due in current year 

METRO NATIONAL CYCLE NETWORK  421                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                  (174)                  -                   -                  

REPLACEMENT OF STREET LIGHTING / RIVER 

PROTECTION MEASURES

574                  400                   -                   -                  174                  574                  46                    574                   -                   Works underway    

BRIDGE STRENGTHENING A4061    2,450               50                     -                   -                  77                    127                  1                      127                   -                  

COMMUNITIES MINOR WORKS       205                   -                   -                  100                   -                  100                  (1)                     100                   -                   Minor works allocation 

RETAINING WALL REPLACEMENT BETTWS 175                  100                   -                   -                  37                    137                  41                    137                   -                  

CAR PARK PAY & DISPLAY MACHINES 85                    85                     -                   -                   -                  85                     -                  85                     -                   New scheme for 2018-19 

RESIDENTS PARKING BRIDGEND TOWN CENTRE 130                  128                   -                   -                   -                  128                   -                  128                   -                   Able to progress when resources are available 

FLEET VEHICLES                500                  500                   -                   -                  (78)                   422                  12                    422                   -                   Fleet replacement plan being drawn up 

RELOCATE RECYCLING CENTRE     1,328               1,320                -                   -                  2                      1,322                -                  1,322                -                   Scheme at planning application stage  

TOTAL Streetscene 74,469             11,629             1,457               221                  (249)                 13,058             (84)                   13,058              -                  

Regeneration & Development
BRIDGEND BUSINESS SUPPORT NETWORK        120                   -                   -                  63                     -                  63                     -                  63                     -                   Funded by SRF budget 

PORTHCAWL RESORT INVESTMENT FOCUS 2,555                -                  1,059               403                   -                  1,462               86                    1,462                -                   ERDF grant letter signed 7 June 2018. BCBC match funded using SRF 

monies 
EU CONVERGANCE SRF BUDGET     2,597               1,372                -                  (626)                 (514)                 232                   -                  232                   -                   Re-profiling of SRF budget 

LLYNFI DEVELOPMENT SITE       2,400               2,400                -                   -                  (2,400)               -                   -                   -                   -                   Slipped to 2019-20 

BRIDGEND HEAT SCHEME          250                  100                   -                   -                   -                  100                   -                  100                   -                  

COMMUNITY PROJECTS 264                  264                   -                   -                  14                    278                   -                  278                   -                  

NANTYMOEL COMMUNITY FACILITIES 200                  200                   -                   -                   -                  200                   -                  200                   -                   Report went to Cabinet in Nov 17 to extend the deadline to 31 Mar 19 for 

the budget to be spent  
PORTHCAWL THI                 1,007               35                    65                    100                   -                  200                  1                      200                   -                   Funded 50:50 Heritage Lottery Fund and SRF monies 

TOTAL Regeneration & Development 9,393               4,371               1,124               (60)                   (2,900)              2,535               87                    2,535                -                  

Property
CORPORATE LANDLORD ENERGY EFFICIENCIES SAVINGS 1,300               1,300                -                   -                   -                  1,300                -                  1,300                -                   New scheme for 2018-19 

ENTERPRISE HUB & SCIENCE PARK DRAINAGE         3,612               170                  60                    87                    30                    347                  3                      347                   -                   Funding has been secured for the Innovation Centre. The new approval 

is a contribution from SRF revenue budgets 
DDA WORKS                     34                     -                   -                   -                   -                   -                  1                       -                   -                  

MINOR WORKS                   1,540               1,540                -                  (248)                 620                  1,912               1                      1,912                -                   Budget held centrally for Minor Works. Some spend incurred on revenue 

cost centres and transferred at year-end 
BRYNCETHIN DEPOT FACILITIES   4,316               3,816                -                   -                  335                  4,151               9                      4,151                -                   The project board is currently reviewing the proposals for this scheme 

NON OPERATIONAL ASSETS        480                  480                   -                   -                   -                  480                   -                  480                   -                  

AGILE WORKING                 1,200               621                   -                   -                   -                  621                   -                  621                   -                  

CIVIC OFFICE ENVELOPE         2,545                -                   -                   -                  54                    54                    2                      54                     -                  

Total Property 15,027             7,927               60                    (161)                 1,039               8,865               16                    8,865                -                  

TOTAL Communities 98,889             23,927             2,641               -                       2,110-               24,458             19                    24,458             -                       

Housing/Homelessness
MANDATORY DFG RELATED EXPEND  2,859               2,650                -                   -                  209                  2,859               465                  2,859                -                  

HOUSING RENEWAL AREA          100                  100                   -                   -                   -                  100                  22                    100                   -                  

EMPTY HOMES GRANTS             -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                  28                     -                   -                   Budget included above 

HOMES IN TOWN GRANT            -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                  109                   -                   -                   Budget included above 

ENABLE-SUPPORT FOR INDEPENDENT LIVING GRANT 180                   -                  180                   -                   -                  180                   -                  180                   -                   WG Enable grant 

BRYNMENYN HOMESLESSNESS UNIT 170                   -                  51                     -                  119                  170                  170                   -                   Increase funded from revenue budgets 

TOTAL Housing/Homelessness 3,309               2,750               231                   -                  328                  3,309               624                  3,309                -                  

ICT
ICT LAPTOP REPLACEMENT        300                  300                   -                   -                  27                    327                   -                  327                   -                  

CIVIC DESKTOP PC'S 120                   -                   -                   -                  120                  120                   -                  120                   -                  

DIGITAL MEETING SPACES 150                   -                   -                   -                  129                  129                   -                  129                   -                  

ICT INFRA SUPPORT             300                  300                   -                   -                   -                  300                   -                  300                   -                  

DIGITAL TRANSFORMATION        1,000               520                   -                   -                   -                  520                   -                  520                   -                  

TOTAL ICT 1,870               1,120                -                   -                  276                  1,396                -                  1,396                -                  

TOTAL Operational & Partnership Services 5,179 3,870 231 0 604 4,705 624 4,705 0

P
age 54



Main Scheme Whole Scheme 

Budget*

Budget 18-19 

(Council 

28.02.18)

New Approvals Virement Slippage Revised 

Budget 2018-

19

Total Exp to 

date

Projected 

Spend

Over / (Under) 

spend

Comments

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

GRAND TOTAL 206,240         33,693           3,029              -                8,445             45,167           1,923             45,167            -                

P
age 55



T
his page is intentionally left blank



BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

REPORT TO CABINET

17 JULY 2018 

REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR COMMUNITIES

PUBLIC CONSULTATION PUBLIC SPACES PROTECTION ORDER CONTROL OF 
DOGS

1. Purpose of Report.

1.1 The purpose of the report is to seek authority to conduct an additional consultation 
in relation to Public Spaces Protection Orders (PSPO’s), further to the consultation 
that occurred in July-Oct 2017. This consultation would specifically be to introduce 
dog fouling and other dog controls in Bridgend County Borough Council.

2. Connection to Corporate Improvement Objectives/Other Corporate Priorities

2.1 Helping people to be more self-reliant – taking early steps to reduce or prevent 
people from becoming vulnerable or dependent on the Council and its services.

2.2 Smarter use of resources – ensuring that all its resources (financial, physical, 
human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently as possible and 
support the development of resources throughout the community that can help 
deliver the Council’s priorities. 

3. Background.

3.1 In a report dated 27 June 2017 entitled Public Safety Protection Orders (PSPO), 
Cabinet approved a Consultation to seek views on the creation of PSPO’s namely 
to:

 maintain the existing restrictions that were in place originally created by the 
Designated Public Place Orders in Caerau, Pencoed, Porthcawl and Maesteg which 
had been converted into PSPO’s on 14th October 2017.

 Extend the area covered by the existing PSPO which replaced the Designated 
Public Place Order (DPPO) in Bridgend on thet 14th October 2017 as described to 
include Coity Road, up to the entrance to the Princess of Wales Hospital

 Maintain the existing restrictions that were in place originally created by the Gating 
Orders outlined which had been converted into PSPO’s on 14th October 2017.  
These cover the rear lane between Talbot Street and Plasnewydd Street, Maesteg 
and control access to Elder Lane at the rear of Adare Street and Caroline, 
Bridgend.

3.2 Whilst initially Orders that would relate to the control of dogs were not included in 
the PSPO consultation, following a number of member representations requesting 
greater steps be taken to combat the issues of irresponsible dog ownership, 
inclusion of a PSPO consultation to also address this area is now being proposed. 

Page 57

Agenda Item 5



3.3 Dog fouling remains a significant concern for the Council. Despite considerable 
efforts to promote responsible dog ownership, there remain a minority of dog 
owners who do not clean up after their dogs or keep them under control.  Dog 
fouling is unpleasant and a risk to human health, particularly amongst children.

3.4 A Public Spaces Protection Order will allow the Council to introduce a range of 
reasonable and proportionate restrictions on the use of publicly accessible land 
across the County Borough that would better control the harmful activities of 
irresponsible dog owners whilst allowing responsible dog owners to continue to 
exercise their dogs without undue restrictions.

4. Current situation / proposal.

4.1 Dog fouling is unsightly, unpleasant and can lead to toxocariasis in humans.  
Toxocariasis causes serious illness and even blindness.  It is caused by a parasite 
that lives in dogs’ digestive systems.  Eggs are present in the faeces of infected 
animals. If infected material is ingested, the eggs hatch into larvae and can cause 
toxocariasis.  The disease can be controlled if dog faeces are disposed of 
immediately in a responsible manner.

4.2 The majority of dog owners are responsible, clean up after their dogs, and keep 
them under control.  However, a minority of irresponsible dog owners create 
significant problems.  The Council receives many complaints each year about dog 
fouling in public places.  In addition, some of our playing fields need to be checked 
for dog fouling before they can be used to remove any dog fouling that may be 
present.

4.3 In the main responsible dog owners will use suitable judgment as to when to keep 
their dog on a lead and when exercising the animal off the lead, supervise the 
animal and respond to dog fouling or other antisocial/aggressive behaviour 
accordingly, removing faeces or taking corrective action as required. In some 
instances however this responsible supervision does not take place.

4.4 The PSPO regime can impose certain restrictions, to correct irresponsible 
behaviour with this small minority of dog owners. 

4.5 Members will recall from the June 17 report the outlined requirements that must be 
followed when consulting on a proposed PSPO.

4.6 The Council must carry out the necessary consultation, the necessary publicity, and 
the necessary notification as follows.

The “necessary consultation” means consulting with: -

a) The Chief Officer of Police for the area;

b) Whatever community representatives the local authority thinks it appropriate 
to consult;

c) The owner or occupier of the land within a restricted area (this does not 
apply to land that is owned and occupied by the local authority).

The “necessary publicity” means

Page 58



a) In the case of a proposed order, publishing the text of it;

The “necessary notification” means notifying the following authorities of the 
proposed order:

a) The parish council or community council (if any) for the area that includes a 
restricted area.

4.7 It is proposed that the Council undertake a comprehensive consultation exercise 
with the public, relevant bodies and other interested parties on proposals to 
introduce a PSPO, potentially introducing prohibitions and requirements in relation 
to the control of dogs including: -

a) Dog Fouling – applicable to all public places in the county borough of 
Bridgend County Borough;

b) Dogs on Leads by Direction - applicable to all public places in the county 
borough of Bridgend County Borough;

4.8 The definition of public space is wide and includes any place to which the public or 
any section of the public has access, on payment or otherwise, as of right or by 
virtue of express or implied permission.

4.9 The proposed prohibition on dog fouling would make it an offence if a dog defecates 
on land to which a relevant PSPO applies, and the person in charge of the dog fails 
to remove the faeces from the land forthwith.  This will include a requirement that 
the person in charge of the dog must have bags or other suitable means of 
removing the faeces with them.

4.10 The proposed dogs on leads by direction requirement will make it an offence if a 
person in charge of a dog fails to comply with a direction given to them by an 
authorised officer of the Council to put and keep the dog on a lead for such 
period/or in such circumstances as directed by the Officer.

4.11 The Council, in making a PSPO, may specify the amount of fixed penalty fine 
payable in respect of any of the above offences at no more than £100.

4.12 The Council must be able to demonstrate that a PSPO is a necessary and 
proportionate response to the problems caused by the activities of dogs and those 
in charge of them.  The Council is required to balance the interests of those in 
charge of dogs against the interests of those affected by the activities of dogs. In 
the 12 month period prior to this report the Council received 351 complaints in 
relation to dog fouling incidents, This number whilst a significant problem in itself, 
the figure will not represent the totality of the actual number of instances which 
occur.

4.15 Consideration should be made on how any restrictions affect those who rely on 
assistance dogs.  Should, following the conclusion of the consultation, the Council 
choose to make a PSPO, an exemption may be included within the Order for people 
with a disability.  The Order should also not apply to the normal activities of working 
dogs, such as those used by the emergency services.

4.16 The proposed PSPO will introduce a range of reasonable and proportionate 
prohibitions and requirements on the use of publicly accessible land that would 

Page 59



better control the harmful activities of irresponsible dog owners whilst enabling 
responsible dog owners to continue to exercise their dogs without undue 
restrictions.  The Order will be subject to a comprehensive public and statutory 
consultation so that the views of all parties are properly considered.

4.17 The further consultation exercise to include potential orders relating to dog control 
will delay Cabinet receiving the further report detailing the responses to the public 
consultation previously undertaken as per paragraph 3.1 and therefore delay the 
creation of any new PSPO’s that Cabinet may decide to make in relation to 
restricting access via gates and the control of alcohol.  During this period there are 
existing PSPO’s in existence which will continue to have effect.  The benefits of 
delaying will mean that if new PSPO’s are created, they will all have the same 
commencement date and, if they are made for the same duration, the same renewal 
date.  This may make the renewal process easier.   

5. Effect upon Policy Framework & Procedure Rules.

5.1 If approved by Members the introduction of a Public Spaces Protection Order will 
need to be accompanied by a review of the Councils enforcement practices and 
procedures, which will need to be approved by Cabinet in due course.

6. Equality Impact Assessment

6.5 An Equality and Impact Assessment screening has been carried out a full Equality 
and Impact Assessment will be required prior to making the Order.  This will be 
included in a further report to Cabinet, taking into consideration the outcomes of the 
public consultation particularly in regards to the impact to disabled groups.

7. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 Assessment

7.1 The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 Assessment based on the 
5 ways of working and any requisite mitigating measures will be required prior to 
making the Order. This will be included in a further report to Cabinet, taking into 
consideration the outcomes of the public consultation.

8. Financial Implications.

8.1 The Council must consider how it will enforce the prohibitions and requirements 
introduced under the PSPO, as failure to enforce the Order will undermine its effect.  

8.2 It is envisaged that the authority will work with external contractors to undertake the 
enforcement activities associated with the proposed PSPO on a cost neutral basis 
as outlined in the Cabinet report 29 November 2016 Residual Waste Collection 
Public Awareness Information & Enforcement Proposals report. 

9. Recommendation.

It is recommended that Cabinet: -

9.1 Undertake a public consultation exercise on the proposal to make a Public Spaces 
Protection Order (PSPO) to introduce dog controls in Bridgend County Borough as 
detailed in section 4 of this report, specifically:

 The prohibition of dog fouling in all public places,

Page 60



 A requirement to carry bags or other suitable means for the disposal of dog 
faeces

 A requirement allowing authorised officers to give a direction that a dog be 
put and kept on a lead if necessary

9.2 Receive a further report detailing the responses to the public consultation previously 
undertaken as per paragraph 3.1 and the consultation proposed in this report, 
together with any recommendations for proposed PSPOs.

Mark Shephard
Corporate Director, Communities
July 2018

Contact Officer: Zachary Shell
Chief Officer Neighborhood Services

Telephone: (01656) 643403

E-mail: Zak.Shell@bridgend.gov.uk  

Postal Address Bridgend County Borough Council
Civic Offices
Angel Street
Bridgend 
CF31 4WB

Background documents

Cabinet Report - 27 June 2017 Public Safety Protection Orders

Cabinet report - 29 November 2016 Residual Waste Collection Public Awareness 
Information & Enforcement Proposals report

Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 – Chapter 12

Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014: Reform of anti-social behaviour 
powers: Statutory guidance for frontline professionals, Home Office July 2014

Page 61

mailto:Zak.Shell@bridgend.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

REPORT TO CABINET

 17 JULY 2018

JOINT REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR COMMUNITIES

INDUSTRIAL STRATEGY PROSPERING FROM THE ENERGY REVOLUTION

1. Purpose of Report

1.1 To seek Cabinet approval for Bridgend County Borough Council (BCBC) to be part 
of a consortium seeking to prepare and submit a proposal to the UK Government to 
meet the requirements of its Industrial Strategy Challenge Fund (ISCF) as part of 
the Prospering From The Energy Revolution Programme.  

2. Connection to Corporate Improvement Objectives/Other Corporate Priorities

2.1 The ISCF supports two of BCBC’s Corporate Priorities which are namely:

1. Supporting a successful economy – taking steps to make the county a 
good place to do business, for people to live, work, study and visit, and to 
ensure that our schools are focused on raising the skills, qualifications and 
ambitions of all people in the county. 

3. Smarter use of resources – ensuring that all its resources (financial, 
physical, human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently as 
possible and support the development of resources throughout the 
community that can help deliver the Council’s priorities. 

3. Background

3.1 The Prospering From The Energy Revolution is part of the UK Government’s Clean 
Growth Strategy and is an ambitious blueprint for lowering carbon emissions, 
protecting the environment and meeting the UK climate change obligations whilst 
stimulating growth and prosperity, increasing earning power and creating and 
supporting thousands of new jobs.  The Energy Revolution Challenge is designed to 
address many of our societal challenges that are linked to energy, namely:

 Clean Air
 Greenhouse Gas Emissions
 Comfort and Mobility
 Cost
 Fuel Poverty
 Energy Security
 Changing Consumer Preferences
 Economic Growth
 Supply chain and skills development 

3.2 The energy system itself is currently undergoing rapid change due to a number of 
factors such as:

Page 63

Agenda Item 6



 Decommissioning of older fossil fuel and nuclear power stations;
 Emergence of wind and solar generation;
 Adoption of electric vehicles;
 Smart meter rollout and creation of new digital platforms and consumer based 

systems;
 Evolving demand –side management, energy storage and peer-to-peer markets;
 Emergence of hydrogen energy.

3.3 Over £2.5 billion of Government funding will be invested in low carbon innovation up 
to 2021.  10% of this will be allocated to the development of smart systems 
designed to provide cheap and clean energy across the heat, power and transport 
sectors.  The long term goal being to ensure that clean technologies cost less than 
high carbon alternatives and that UK business takes the lead in supplying them to 
global markets.

Figure 1 Government Funding on Low Carbon Innovation

3.4 The intention is that successful proposals will take an holistic approach to tackling 
the challenges facing the energy system and

 Design energy systems built around the needs of consumers, local 
communities and future proofed against change;

 Integrate heat, transport and power to reduce costs and improve efficiency;
 Utilise smarter decision making, best use of information and ICT 

technologies to improve infrastructure productivity;
 Demonstrate technologies and infrastructures at scale, alongside new 

business models. 

3.5 The Prospering from the Energy Revolution has created a local energy systems 
fund which contains over £40 million to support smart local energy system 
demonstrators and designs.  The fund is designed to accelerate up to 3 innovative 
local smart energy system demonstrations and 3 design projects able to deliver new 

Page 64



benefits across the energy value chain by 2022.  The fund will run from January 
2019 to March 2022 and is open to bids from across the UK. 

3.6 Total costs can be between £26 and £160 million with private sector match funding 
being at a 1:1 ratio and leverage funding (public sector investment) being at 3:1.  
Projects should last 24-36 months, with between 9 – 12 months of operating data 
secured within that period.      

4. Current Situation / Proposal

4.1 The Prospering from the Energy Revolution Programme is designed to be business 
led and would be delivered through an innovative and ambitious consortium.  The 
ideal consortium (comprised by Innovate UK) would be comprised of:

 Project Developers
 ICT Specialists
 Technology Developers
 Local Authorities
 Energy Sector Companies
 Research Institutions
 Multi-disciplinary Consultants

4.2 The Proposal will be led by Cenin Renewables a local company based at the Parc 
Stormy site.  Hitachi and Jacobs (who are a multi-disciplinary consultancy) are also 
involved in the development of the proposal.

4.3 The strategic basis of the proposal will be to utilse the Local Area Energy Strategy 
(LAES) (Figure 2) that has been developed for Bridgend as part of the Smart 
System and Heat Programme alongside the Smart Digital Master Plan created by 
Hitachi.  The LAES shows how heat within Bridgend can be decarbonised out to 
2050 to meet UK Government carbon budgets.  The digital master plan details how 
digital technology can develop integrated solutions for the decarbonisation of heat, 
power and transport that have benefits across the entire energy system.    

Page 65



Figure 2 Local Area Energy Strategy

* Uncertain means there is no dominant solution and there will be a mixture of 
district heat, electrification and hybrid systems.

4.4 The proposal for the ISCF is subject to commercial confidentialities due to the role 
of the private sector within the proposal.  However the intention is that the Cenin 
Renewables site near Porthcawl could utilise its power generation capability to 
become a decarbonised hub.  Essentially the proposal is built around the premise 
that:

1. The energy mix within Bridgend County Borough would be changed and 
decarbonised;

2.  A smart grid would be created led by a primary aggregator (private sector role);
3. Energy generation would become decentralised and decarbonised through the use 

of local generation (e.g. Cenin site, creation of new CHP assets);
4. Use of innovation tools to create peer to peer trading networks, storage, charging 

facilities for electric vehicles and new business models;
5. New energy efficiency and storage techniques will be driven by costs and carbon 

targets;
6. Bridgend will evolve into an inter-connected area where customers will be at the 

heart of the energy system through connectivity and empowerment;

Page 66



7. Change will be felt across the entire value chain creating business opportunities for 
multiple players within the energy space.

4.5 Discussions have been held at a City Deal level and the Bridgend proposal will be a 
pathfinder project for the Capital Region where learning and supply chain 
opportunities can be generated for the region.  If successful City Deal monies could 
be leveraged into scheme at a future point.  

5. Effect upon Policy Framework& Procedure Rules

5.1 BCBC is not leading the consortium and any projects over which BCBC has direct 
control would follow normal procurement routes.

6. Equality Impact Assessment 

6.1 The BCBC Equalities Impact Assessment Toolkit would be utilised for BCBC 
elements of the proposal.

7. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 Implications 

7.1 The programme is a positive step in regard to the Council’s role in complying with 
the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015.  The programme offers an 
opportunity for Bridgend to be established as a strategic decarbonisation hub within 
the UK and builds on the work being developed with the Energy Systems Catapult 
through the Smart System and Heat Programme

7.2 In terms of meeting the 5 ways of working within the Act the 

1. Long Term: The programme will provide a low carbon source of heat, power 
and transport that will provide long term solutions to the decarbonisation of 
the energy system within Bridgend.

2. Prevention: Offering price stability will ensure that decarbonisation offers 
solutions for everyone not just the ability to pay market.

3.  Integration: The project offers an opportunity to create a low carbon hub 
within Bridgend that will offer carbon reductions, reduced fuel bills and 
create economic opportunities through a clearly identified value chain.

4. Collaboration: BCBC is working in partnership with both UK Government 
and Welsh Government as well as private sector partners to deliver the 
decarbonisation agenda.

5. Involvement: The project involves working with a variety of stakeholders to 
deliver sustainable solutions around the delivery of heat and comfort for 
residents.   

8. Financial Implications 

8.1 BCBC is not leading the consortium developing the proposal for the ISCF bid and 
will not be directly handling grant funding for any of the consortium partners.  A 
governance structure for the consortium would be put in place if the proposal was 
successful.  There will be annual stage gate reviews with each partner being 
responsible for drawing down their own grant monies from Innovate UK.  No other 
partners within the consortium will be responsible for covering partner’s 

Page 67



contributions or repaying grant funding due to the actions of other members of the 
consortium.     

8.2 BCBC is not expected to offer funding into the consortium beyond what it is seeking 
to do as part of its commitment to delivering the Bridgend Town Heat Network 
Project which could form part of the proposal. There still remains a funding shortfall 
on the Town Heat Network as outlined in the report to Cabinet in April.

8.3 There will be an opportunity for the Council to recover project management staff 
costs from any successful application provided that these do not exceed 30% of the 
overall project costs. For this reason, it is anticipated that there would be no 
additional burden to the Council for participating in the Consortium.

9. Recommendations

It is recommended that:

9.1 (i) Approve Bridgend County Borough Council participating in the Prospering from 
the Energy Revolution ISCF proposal. 

MARK SHEPHARD
CORPORATE DIRECTOR COMMUNITIES
July 2018 

Contact Officer: Mark Shephard 
Telephone: 01656 643380
E-mail:  Mark.Shephard@bridgend.gov.uk

Background documents: 

1. ISCF Introduction Slide Pack
2. Prospering from the Energy Revolution Slide Pack

Page 68

mailto:Mark.Shephard@bridgend.gov.uk


UK Research 
and Innovation 1

Sally Fenton, BEIS

Industrial Strategy:
Clean Growth Grand Challenge

P
age 69



UK Research 
and Innovation

The Clean Growth Strategy

An ambitious blueprint for lowering 
carbon emissions, protecting the 
environment and meeting our climate 
change obligations while stimulating 
growth and prosperity, increasing 
earning power and creating and 
supporting thousands of jobs.

P
age 70



UK Research 
and Innovation

Challenge ahead

EEF 6th December 2017

P
age 71



UK Research 
and Innovation

Building on good progress

EEF 6th December 2017

P
age 72



UK Research 
and Innovation

What’s in the Strategy?

EEF 6th December 2017

P
age 73



UK Research 
and Innovation

Over £2.5 billion of Government funding will be invested in 
low carbon innovation up to 2021, part of the largest 
increase in public spending on science, research and 
innovation in over 30 years.

The Strategy sets out, 
for the first time, where 
Government funding is 
targeted 

Clean Growth Strategy: Innovation

P
age 74



UK Research 
and Innovation

Clean Growth 
in the Industrial Strategy 

P
age 75



UK Research 
and Innovation

We will create an economy that boosts 
productivity and earning power throughout the 
UK:

We will set Grand Challenges to put the future of 
the UK at the forefront of the industries of the 
future:

Industrial Strategy: Overview

P
age 76



UK Research 
and Innovation

The move to cleaner economic growth is one 
of the greatest industrial opportunities of our 
time.  

The Paris Agreement of 2015 commits 
countries to revolutionising power, transport, 
heating and cooling, industrial processes and 
agriculture. 

The effect of these changes will be felt by 
businesses throughout the economy, and will 
involve the reallocation of trillions of pounds of 
public and private finance towards the pursuit 
of cleaner growth. 

We will aim to maximise UK businesses’ share 
of global markets as they are transformed by 
the shift to clean growth.

0% 
20% 
40% 
60% 
80% 

Clean	power	
investment	as	
share	of	global	
power	investment

The	clean	economy's	growing	share	of	global	markets

0% 
10% 
20% 
30% 
40% 

Share	of	global	
construction	businesses	
for	whom	the	majority	
of	activities	are	green	

0% 

20% 

40% 

60% 

Global	market	
share	of	electric	
vehicles

Context for Clean growth 

P
age 77



UK Research 
and Innovation

We will maximise the advantages for UK industry from the global shift to clean growth – through leading the 
world in the development, manufacture and use of low carbon technologies, systems and services that cost 
less than high carbon alternatives 

We will take action to establish and extend UK leadership in the following early priority areas:
• develop smart systems for cheap and clean energy across power, heating and transport 
• transform construction techniques to dramatically improve efficiency 
• make our energy-intensive industries competitive in the clean economy 
• put the UK at the forefront of the global move to high-efficiency agriculture 
• make the UK the global standard-setter for finance that supports clean growth 
• develop UK leadership in low carbon transport across road, rail, aviation and maritime

We will: 
• increase our support for innovation so that the costs of clean technologies, systems and services are 

reduced across all sectors, 
• align our policies, regulations, taxes and investments to grow the markets for these new innovations so 

that they are successfully commercialised in the UK. 
Our long-term goals are to make clean technologies cost less than high carbon alternatives, and for UK 
businesses to take the lead in supplying them to global markets.

Clean Growth Grand Challenge

P
age 78



UK Research 
and Innovation

Industrial	Strategy	Challenge	Fund
§ Industry-led	and	powered	by	multi-disciplinary	research	and	business	

academic	collaboration
§ Developing	UK	industries	that	are	fit	for	the	future,	driving	progress	in	

technologies	where	the	UK	can	become	a	world-leader	in	research	and	
commercialisation

§ Not	business	as	usual…..
§ Focussed	on	improved	productivity	and	economic	benefit	across	the	

UK
§ Clear,	measurable	Challenge	statements
§ Needs	clear	industry	buy-in	to	delivering	ambitious	outcomes

P
age 79



UK Research 
and Innovation

Industrial Strategy Challenge Fund

Medicines manufacturing technologies

Batteries for clean and flexible energy 
storage

Robots for a safer world

Self-driving vehicles

Manufacturing and materials of the future

Satellites and space technology

Wave 1 challenges

P
age 80



UK Research 
and Innovation

Data	to	early	diagnosis	
&	precision	medicine

Healthy	ageing	

Next	generation	
services	

Audience	of	the	future Quantum	technology

Transforming	
construction

Transforming	food	
production

Energy	revolution

Wave 2 challenges

P
age 81



T
his page is intentionally left blank



UK Research 
and Innovation 1

Rob Saunders, Interim Challenge Director

Industrial Strategy:
Prospering from the energy revolution

P
age 83



UK Research 
and Innovation

The energy revolution challenge:

Prove by 2022 that local, investable, consumer-
centric energy approaches can create 
prosperous clean energy communities across 
the UK

P
age 84



UK Research 
and Innovation

Energy Revolution:  The Context

Consumer

Capital Costs UK Strengths

Financing

Local

Digital 

P
age 85



UK Research 
and Innovation

Energy Revolution:  Pull, not push.

A	new	approach…

Technology System Service Business	
Model Value	Chain Market	

Arrangements

“Traditional”	Energy	Innovation	Approach

Technology System Service Business	
Model Value	Chain Market	

Arrangements

P
age 86



UK Research 
and Innovation

Energy Revolution: Programme Objectives

1. Prove investable, scalable local business models by 2022, 
that 
• deliver cleaner, cheaper energy services 
• build more prosperous and resilient communities
• benefit the whole energy system
• use integrated, intelligent approaches 

2. Unlock 10x future private investment in local integrated 
energy systems in 2020s (vs business as usual).

3. Accelerate new products and services to commercialisation 
creating real world proving grounds.

4. Build UK leadership in integrated energy services provision 

P
age 87



UK Research 
and Innovation

Future Energy Model Proving

What will the programme do to deliver these?

Practical 
Demonstrators

Advanced 
Designs

Technology Development

Advanced 
Designs

Expertise, Capability, Coordination.

£41.5m funding launched 11th April

P
age 88



UK Research 
and Innovation

Future Energy Models: 
What benefits, for who? 

Consumers:
- Thousands of users with 

cleaner cheaper energy
- Radical new, engaging 

clean energy models for 
2020s

- >25% bills reductions, ready 
for Carbon Budget 5

- More competitive Markets

Local Authorities
- Decarbonisation 

assistance
- Fuel Poverty assistance
- Capability Building
- Investable local energy 

plans
- 10x Local investment
- High Value local jobs 

development

Central Government 
- Policy Learning on 

revolutionary models
- Accelerated progress to 

Carbon Budget 5
- Design of system cost 

reductions to £8bn/yr
- High value jobs proven 

across UK

Businesses
- Innovation proving ground
- New integrated design 

service proving
- World-leading showcase 

to catalyse export.
- Cutting edge innovation 

integrated into new models

Investors
- Engagement in radical new 

investable models for 
2020s

- Foresight of new scalable 
revenue streams

- Investment Pipeline for 
2020s

Research & Academia
- New data streams
- New modelling services
- Evaluation of multiple future 

designs
- World-leading  research 

programme

P
age 89



UK Research 
and Innovation

P
age 90



BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

REPORT TO CABINET

17 JULY 2018

REPORT BY THE INTERIM CORPORATE DIRECTOR - EDUCATION AND 
FAMILY SUPPORT

APPOINTMENT OF LOCAL AUTHORITY GOVERNORS

1. Purpose of report:-

1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek approval from Cabinet for the appointment of 
local authority governors to the school governing bodies listed at paragraph 4.1.

2. Connection to corporate improvement objectives/other corporate priorities:-

2.1 This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate priority/priorities:  

 Supporting a successful economy – taking steps to make the county a good 
place to do business, for people to live, work, study and visit, and to ensure 
that our schools are focused on raising the skills, qualifications and ambitions 
of all people in the county. 

3. Background:-

3.1 In accordance with the Council’s ‘Guidance on the appointment of local education 
authority governors’ approved by Cabinet on 14 October 2008, officers have 
considered applications received for current and forthcoming vacancies for local 
authority governor positions on school governing bodies (see paragraphs 4.1 and 
Appendix A).

4. Current situation/proposal:-

4.1 For the eight schools below, all nine applicants met the approved criteria for 
appointment as local authority governors and there was no competition for any of 
the vacancies.  Therefore, the recommended appointments are:  

Mr Nigel Burnap Afon y Felin Primary School
Mr Ian Phillips Afon y Felin Primary School
Cllr Richard Young Litchard Primary School
Cllr Phil White Nantyffyllon Primary School
Mrs Deborah Dawson Nottage Primary School
Cllr Alex Williams Pencoed Comprehensive School
Dr Alison Meredith Thomas West Park Primary School
Mrs Elin Mair Mannion Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Llangynwyd
Cllr Richard Young Ysgol Bryn Castell

4.2 Subject to the above appointments being approved, there are still 17 vacancies that 
need to be filled in 15 schools (see Appendix A).

Page 91

Agenda Item 7



5. Effect upon policy framework and procedure rules:-

5.1 There is no effect upon the policy framework or procedure rules.

6. Equality Impact Assessment

6.1 An assessment of the appointment of local authority governors identifies that there 
are no equalities issues related to this report. 

 
7. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 implications:-

7.1 The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 assessment has been 
Completed and is detailed in Appendix B.  A summary of the implications from the 
assessment relating to the five ways of working is as follows:

Long Term – While it is desirable for local authority governors to have previous or 
relevant experience of the role, in the short-term, the local authority may support 
any person for such an appointment who is interested in supporting schools, is not 
disqualified from being a school governor and is willing and able to dedicate the 
necessary time to the role.  

Prevention – The local authority assesses the suitability of applicants for the local 
authority governor vacancy/vacancies applied for. The local authority, in 
conjunction with the Central South Consortium, supports governors with a 
comprehensive programme of both mandatory and voluntary training and access 
to resources, to enable them to develop and maintain their knowledge and skills, 
and be successful in fulfilling the role.   

Integration – School governing bodies have a strategic role in running schools 
and   ensuring that all pupils are supported to learn and achieve so that they can  
access opportunities for further learning and employment, know how to maintain 
their wellbeing, can play active roles in their communities and can contribute 
positively to society as a whole. 

Collaboration – School governing bodies have a strategic role in ensuring that 
schools safeguard the health and wellbeing of pupils and staff. The local authority, 
in conjunction with the Central South Consortium, provides training to governors to 
enable them to develop and maintain their relevant knowledge, skills and 
effectiveness in this respect.  

Involvement – The local authority treats all applications for local authority 
governor vacancies fairly, to ensure equality of opportunity. School governing 
bodies have a strategic role in ensuring that schools safeguard the health and 
wellbeing of pupils and staff. The local authority, in conjunction with the Central 
South Consortium, provides training to governors to enable them to develop and 
maintain their relevant knowledge, skills and effectiveness in this respect.  

8. Financial implications:-

8.1 There are no financial implications regarding this report.

Page 92



9. Recommendation:-

9.1 Cabinet is recommended to approve the appointments listed in paragraph 4.1.

Mr Lindsay Harvey
Interim Corporate Director - Education and Family Support

Contact Officer: Mandy Jones
Learner Support Officer

Telephone: (01656) 642629

E-mail: Amanda.Jones@bridgend.gov.uk 

Postal Address Education and Family Support Directorate
Bridgend County Borough Council
Civic Offices
Angel Street
Bridgend
CF31 4WB

Background documents:-

 Bridgend County Borough Council’s ‘Guidance on the appointment of local 
education authority governors’, approved by Cabinet on 14 October 2008. 

 The Government of Maintained Schools (Wales) Regulations 2005.

Page 93



Appendix A

Local Authority Governor vacancies: current and forthcoming 
(up to the end of August 2018)

Name of school
Number of current and forthcoming 
vacancies

Bryntirion Comprehensive School 1
Abercerdin Primary School 1
Afon y Felin Primary School 1
Caerau Primary School 1
Cefn Glas Infants School 1 
Llangynwyd Primary School 2
Ogmore Vale Primary School 1
Nottage Primary School 1
Pencoed Comprehensive School 1
Plasnewydd Primary School 2
St Mary’s Primary Catholic School 1
St Robert’s Primary Catholic School 1 (from July 2018)
Tremains Primary School 1
Tynyrheol Primary School 1
Ysgol Gymraeg Bro Ogwr 1
TOTAL VACANCIES 17

 

Page 94



Version 1.0 dated 12 June 2017

Appendix B
WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS (WALES) ACT 2015 ASSESSMENT

Project Description (key aims):

Appointment of local authority governors to the governing bodies of maintained schools in Bridgend

Section 1 Complete the table below to assess how well you have applied the 5 ways of working.

1. How does your project / activity balance short-term need with the long-term and planning for the 
future?

Long-term

(The importance of 
balancing short 
term needs with 
the need to 
safeguard the 
ability to also meet 
long term needs)

The governing body of a maintained school is responsible for the conduct of a school. It takes a strategic role 
in the running of the school, meaning that is must decide what it wants the school to achieve and must set out 
a framework for getting there. That framework will include a number of short, medium and long-term aims, 
objectives and targets. 

Each governing body of a maintained school must be constituted in accordance with the Education Act 2002. 
All governing bodies have a combination of appointed or elected governors of various types. The four 
compulsory, common stakeholder groups are parents, teacher, staff and local authority representatives. 
(Others groups vary according to the category of school and may include foundation, community, 
representative and partnerships governors.) Local authority governors are appointed by the local authority. All 
school governors are volunteers. 

Optimal performance in discharging the governance functions occurs when all roles on the governing body 
are filled by individuals who have previous experience working as a governor and/or working with schools or 
in educational settings and/or any experience, at home, at work or elsewhere, that may be relevant to the 
school governor role. However, the local authority approach to recruitment of local authority governors has to 
take account of the fact that local authority representatives are one of the compulsory stakeholder groups and, 
in the short-term, the local authority may support any person for such an appointment who is interested in 
supporting schools, is not disqualified from being a school governor and is willing and able to dedicate the 
necessary time to the role.  The local authority, in conjunction with the Central South Consortium, supports 
new governor appointments with a comprehensive programme of both mandatory and voluntary training and 
access to resources, to enable them to develop their knowledge and skills and be successful in fulfilling the 
role.   

P
age 95



Version 1.0 dated 12 June 2017

2. How does your project / activity put resources into preventing problems occurring or getting 
worse?

Prevention

(How acting to 
prevent problems 
occurring or 
getting worse may 
help public bodies 
meet their 
objectives)

The local authority acts to fill governor vacancies as soon as possible. Vacancies are advertised to elected 
members and all existing members of governing bodies. Information about the role of governors and how to 
become a local authority governor is published on the local authority’s website. 

The local authority seeks information from each applicant for a local authority governor appointment relating to 
relevant past and present experience and skills, the reasons why the applicant wishes to become a governor 
and the areas in which the applicant feels able to contribute to the function and work of the governing body. 
The local authority also seeks information on the reasons for the choice/s of school including the applicant’s 
knowledge of the school and any past or present associations with the school. The local authority uses this 
information as part of considering the suitability of the applicant for the vacancy/vacancies applied for. 

The local authority, in conjunction with the Central South Consortium, supports both new governor 
appointments and existing governors with a comprehensive programme of both mandatory and voluntary 
training and access to resources, to enable them to develop and maintain their knowledge and skills, and be 
successful in fulfilling the role.   

3. How does your project / activity deliver economic, social, environmental & cultural outcomes 
together?

Integration

(Considering how 
the public body’s 
well-being 
objectives may 
impact upon each 
of the wellbeing 
goals, on their 
objectives, or on 
the objectives of 
other public 
bodies)

Local authority governors are a key stakeholder group on school governing bodies. School governing bodies 
take a strategic role in running schools ensuring that all pupils are supported to learn and achieve such that 
they are able to access opportunities for further learning and employment, know how to maintain their 
wellbeing, can play active roles in their communities and contribute positively to society as a whole. 

Collaboration 4. How does your project / activity involve working together with partners (internal and external) to 
deliver well-being objectives?

P
age 96



Version 1.0 dated 12 June 2017

(Acting in 
collaboration with 
any other person 
(or different parts 
of the body itself) 
that could help the 
body meet its well-
being objectives)

The governing body of a school oversees the achievement of aims, objectives and targets for ensuring that 
the school safeguards the health and wellbeing of its pupils and staff. The local authority, in conjunction with 
the Central South Consortium, provides a training programme for both new governor appointments and 
existing governors to enable them to develop and maintain their relevant knowledge, skills and effectiveness 
in this respect.   

5. How does your project / activity involve stakeholders with an interest in achieving the well-being 
goals? How do those stakeholders reflect the diversity of the area?

Involvement

(The importance of 
involving people 
with an interest in 
achieving the well-
being goals, and 
ensuring that those 
people reflect the 
diversity of the 
area which the 
body serves)

The governing body of a school oversees the achievement of aims, objectives and targets for ensuring that 
the school safeguards the health and wellbeing of its pupils and staff. The local authority, in conjunction with 
the Central South Consortium, provides a training programme for both new governor appointments and 
existing governors to enable them to develop and maintain their relevant knowledge, skills and effectiveness 
in this respect.   

The local authority treats all applications for local authority governor vacancies fairly to ensure equality of 
opportunity. 

P
age 97



Version 1.0 dated 12 June 2017

Section 2 Assess how well your project / activity will result in multiple benefits for our communities and contribute 
to the national well-being goals (use Appendix 1 to help you).

Description of the Well-being goals How will your project / activity deliver 
benefits to our communities under the 
national well-being goals?

Is there any way to maximise the 
benefits or minimise any negative 
impacts to our communities (and the 
contribution to the national well-being 
goals)?

A prosperous Wales
An innovative, productive and low carbon 
society which recognises the limits of the 
global environment and therefore uses 
resources efficiently and proportionately 
(including acting on climate change); and 
which develops a skilled and well-
educated population in an economy 
which generates wealth and provides 
employment opportunities, allowing 
people to take advantage of the wealth 
generated through securing decent work.

Local authority governors are a key 
stakeholder group on school governing 
bodies. School governing bodies take a 
strategic role in running schools ensuring 
that all pupils are supported to learn and 
achieve such that they are able to access 
opportunities for further learning and 
employment. 

In particular, school governing bodies take 
a strategic role in both ensuring the school 
acts to improve learner outcomes for 
vulnerable groups of children and ensuring 
that strategies are progressed to assist 
more-able young people reach their full 
potential. 

The local authority, in conjunction with the 
Central South Consortium and partners 
such as Estyn, closely monitors the 
performance of schools/governing bodies 
in discharging their responsibilities. 

A resilient Wales
A nation which maintains and enhances 
a biodiverse natural environment with 
healthy functioning ecosystems that 
support social, economic and ecological 
resilience and the capacity to adapt to 
change (for example climate change).

Local authority governors are a key 
stakeholder group on school governing 
bodies. School governing bodies take a 
strategic role in running schools, ensuring 
delivery of the national curriculum. 

The national curriculum includes personal 
and social education with the specific aims 

The local authority, in conjunction with the 
Central South Consortium and partners 
such as Estyn, closely monitors the 
performance of schools/governing bodies 
in delivering the national curriculum. 

P
age 98



Version 1.0 dated 12 June 2017

being to:
• develop learners’ self-esteem and a 
sense of personal responsibility;
• promote self-respect, respect for others 
and celebrate diversity;
• equip learners to live safe, healthy lives;
• prepare learners for the choices and 
opportunities of lifelong learning;
• empower learners to participate in their 
schools and communities as
active responsible citizens locally, 
nationally and globally;
• foster positive attitudes and behaviour 
towards the principles of
sustainable development and global 
citizenship; and 
• prepare learners for the challenges, 
choices and responsibilities of work. 

A healthier Wales
A society in which people’s physical and 
mental well-being is maximised and in 
which choices and behaviours that 
benefit future health are understood.

Local authority governors are a key 
stakeholder group on school governing 
bodies. School governing bodies take a 
strategic role in running schools, ensuring 
delivery of the national curriculum. 

The national curriculum includes personal 
and social education with the specific aims 
being to:
• develop learners’ self-esteem and a 
sense of personal responsibility;
• promote self-respect, respect for others 
and celebrate diversity;
• equip learners to live safe, healthy lives;
• prepare learners for the choices and 

The local authority, in conjunction with the 
Central South Consortium and partners 
such as Estyn, closely monitors the 
performance of schools/governing bodies 
in delivering the national curriculum and  
discharging all responsibilities.

P
age 99



Version 1.0 dated 12 June 2017

opportunities of lifelong learning;
• empower learners to participate in their 
schools and communities as
active responsible citizens locally, 
nationally and globally;
• foster positive attitudes and behaviour 
towards the principles of
sustainable development and global 
citizenship; and 
• prepare learners for the challenges, 
choices and responsibilities of work. 

A more equal Wales
A society that enables people to fulfil 
their potential no matter what their 
background or circumstances (including 
their socio economic background and 
circumstances).

School governing bodies take a strategic 
role in ensuring the school acts to improve 
learner outcomes for vulnerable groups of 
children and ensure equality of 
opportunity.

The local authority treats all applications 
for local authority governor vacancies fairly 
to ensure equality of opportunity. 

The local authority, in conjunction with the 
Central South Consortium and partners 
such as Estyn, closely monitors the 
performance of schools/governing bodies 
in discharging their responsibilities. 

A Wales of cohesive communities 
Attractive, viable, safe and well-
connected communities.

Schools/governing bodies play a pivotal 
role in the community and contributing to 
community cohesion, not only through 
education provision but also through a 
focus on relationship between pupils and 
the school, their community and wider 
society. They provide opportunities for 
people to interact, work together, develop 
positive relationships and make a 
contribution to their community. Further, 
they emphasise the importance of a 

The local authority, in conjunction with 
the Central South Consortium and 
partners such as Estyn, evaluates how 
schools/governing bodies support and 
enable children and young people to 
contribute to their communities.  Also 
how well decisions are made and  
priorities are set for improvement that 
balance immediate, short-term needs 
with the long-term needs of learners, the 
local community and Wales.

P
age 100



Version 1.0 dated 12 June 2017

common vision, shared values based on 
democracy, equality, diversity, tolerance, 
fairness and justice and creating a sense 
of belonging.

A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving 
Welsh language
A society that promotes and protects 
culture, heritage and the Welsh 
language, and which encourages people 
to participate in the arts, and sports and 
recreation.

The Welsh language, art and design, 
design and technology, music, history and 
physical education all forms part of the 
national curriculum in Wales. 

Local authority governors are a key 
stakeholder group on school governing 
bodies. School governing bodies take a 
strategic role in running schools, ensuring 
delivery of the national curriculum. 

The local authority, in conjunction with the 
Central South Consortium and partners 
such as Estyn, closely monitors the 
performance of schools/governing bodies 
in delivering the national curriculum.

A globally responsible Wales
A nation which, when doing anything to 
improve the economic, social, 
environmental and cultural well-being of 
Wales, takes account of whether doing 
such a thing may make a positive 
contribution to global well-being.

Local authority governors are a key 
stakeholder group on school governing 
bodies. School governing bodies take a 
strategic role in running schools ensuring 
that all pupils are supported to learn and 
achieve such that they are able to access 
opportunities for further learning and 
employment, know how to maintain their 
wellbeing, can play active roles in their 
communities and contribute positively to 
society as a whole. 

The local authority, in conjunction with the 
Central South Consortium and partners 
such as Estyn, closely monitors the 
performance of schools/governing bodies 
in discharging their responsibilities.

P
age 101



Version 1.0 dated 12 June 2017

Section 3 Will your project / activity affect people or groups of people with protected characteristics? Explain what 
will be done to maximise any positive impacts or minimise any negative impacts

Protected characteristics Will your project / activity have 
any positive impacts on those 

with a protected characteristic?

Will your project / activity have 
any negative impacts on those 
with a protected characteristic?

Is there any way to maximise 
any positive impacts or 
minimise any negative 

impacts?
Age: Yes No Performance monitoring and 

evaluation.
Gender reassignment: Yes No Performance monitoring and 

evaluation.
Marriage or civil partnership: Yes No Performance monitoring and 

evaluation.
Pregnancy or maternity: Yes No Performance monitoring and 

evaluation.
Race: Yes No Performance monitoring and 

evaluation.
Religion or Belief: Yes No Performance monitoring and 

evaluation.
Race: Yes No Performance monitoring and 

evaluation.
Sex: Yes No Performance monitoring and 

evaluation.
Welsh Language: Yes No Performance monitoring and 

evaluation.

P
age 102



Version 1.0 dated 12 June 2017

Section 4 Identify decision meeting for Project/activity e.g. Cabinet, Council or delegated decision taken by 
Executive Members and/or Chief Officers

Cabinet

Compiling Officers Name: Dawn Davies

Compiling Officers Job Title: Principal Officer, Knowledge and Learner Support

Date completed: 28 June 2018

P
age 103



T
his page is intentionally left blank



BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

REPORT TO CABINET

17 JULY 2018

REPORT OF THE HEAD OF LEGAL AND REGULATORY SERVICES 

FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 

1. Purpose of Report .

1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek Cabinet approval for items to be included on 
the Forward Work Programme for the period 1 October 2018 to 31 January 2019.

2. Connection to Corporate Improvement Objectives.

2.1 The active engagement with the public regarding key decisions of the Authority 
contributes to all of the following Corporate Priorities.

1. Supporting a successful economy – taking steps to make the county a 
good place to do business, for people to live, work, study and visit, and to 
ensure that our schools are focused on raising the skills, qualifications and 
ambitions of all people in the county. 

2. Helping people to be more self-reliant – taking early steps to reduce or 
prevent people from becoming vulnerable or dependent on the Council and 
its services.

3. Smarter use of resources – ensuring that all its resources (financial, 
physical, human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently as 
possible and support the development of resources throughout the 
community that can help deliver the Council’s priorities. 

3. Background.

3.1 The Constitution of the Council explains that the Forward Work Programme will be 
prepared by the Solicitor to the Council to cover a period of four months except 
when ordinary elections of councillors occur, in which case the forward work 
programme will cover the period up to the date of the elections.  

3.2 The Forward Work Programme will contain matters which the Cabinet, Overview 
and Scrutiny Committees and full Council are likely to consider. It will contain 
information on:

(a) the timetable for considering the Budget and any plans, policies or strategies 
forming part of the Policy Framework and requiring Council approval, and 
which body is to consider them;

(b) the timetable for considering any plans, policies or strategies which are the 
responsibility of the Cabinet;

Page 105

Agenda Item 8



(c) any individual matters on which the Cabinet intends to consult in advance of 
taking a decision, and the timetable for consultation and decision;

(d) the work programme of the Overview and Scrutiny Committees, to the extent 
that it is known.

3.3 The Forward Work Programme will be published at least 14 days before the start of 
the period covered.  The Authority is required to publish once a year a notice in at 
least one newspaper circulating in the area, stating that a forward work programme 
will be published and giving the publication dates for that year.

3.4 The recent Wales Audit Office report also identifies that the Council should improve
the availability and accessibility of information relating to decision-making on 
significant service change.

4. Current situation / proposal. 

4.1 The proposed Forward Work Programmes are described below:

 Cabinet 1 October 2018 to 31 January 2019 - Appendix 1
 Council 1 October 2018 to 31 January 2019 - Appendix 2
 Overview and Scrutiny - Appendix 3

4.2      Following consideration by Cabinet, the Forward Work Programme will be 
published on 17 September 2018.   

5. Effect upon Policy Framework and Procedure Rules.

5.1 There are no implications relating to the Policy Framework and Procedure Rules

6. Equality Impact Assessment

6.1 There are no negative equality implications arising from this report.  

7. Financial Implications.

7.1 There will be a translation cost of approximately £60 for each quarterly update of 
the Forward Work programme when it is published on the Bridgend County 
Borough Council Website. These will be met from within existing budgets. 

8. Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015

8.1 The well-being goals identified in the Act were considered in the preparation of this 
report.  It is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable impacts 
upon the achievement of well-being goals/objectives as a result of this report.

9. Recommendation.

9.1 Cabinet is recommended to:

 Approve the Cabinet Forward Work Programme for the period 1 October to 31 
January 2019 as shown at Appendix 1;

Page 106



 Note the Council and Scrutiny Forward Work Programme as shown at Appendix 
2 and 3 respectively. 

K Watson
Head of Legal and Regulatory Services 
11 July 2018     

Contact Officer: Andrew Rees 
Senior Democratic Services Officer – Committees 

Telephone: (01656) 643147
Email: Andrew.rees@bridgend.gov.uk

Postal address: Democratic Services
Operational & Partnership Services
Civic Offices
Angel Street 
Bridgend 
CF31 4WB

Background documents:  None 

Page 107

mailto:Andrew.rees@bridgend.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



1

CABINET FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME -1 OCTOBER 2018 – 31 JANUARY 2019

Item Title and Description of Report Cabinet Contact Officer

(a) (b) (c) (d)
1.  Post 16 Education 18 Sep 2018 Lindsay Harvey 

Corporate Director – Education and 
Family Support
Tel: 01656 642612
Email: 
Lindsay.harvey@bridgend.gov.uk 

2.  Treasury Management Half Year 2018-19 18 Sep 2018 Gill Lewis, 
Interim Head of Finance and Section 
151 Officer
gill.lewis@bridgend.gov.uk 

3. Medium Term Financial Strategy 2019-20 to 2022-23 20 Nov 2018 Gill Lewis, 
Interim Head of Finance and Section 
151 Officer
gill.lewis@bridgend.gov.uk 

4. Treasury Management – Quarter 3 2018-19 22 Jan 2019 Gill Lewis, 
Interim Head of Finance and Section 
151 Officer
gill.lewis@bridgend.gov.uk 

P
age 109

mailto:Lindsay.harvey@bridgend.gov.uk
mailto:gill.lewis@bridgend.gov.uk
mailto:gill.lewis@bridgend.gov.uk
mailto:gill.lewis@bridgend.gov.uk


T
his page is intentionally left blank



1

COUNCIL FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME - 1 OCTOBER 2018 TO 31 JANUARY 2019 

Item Title and Description of Report Council Contact Officer

(a) (b) (c) (d)
1.  Treasury Management – Half Year Report 2018-19 24 Oct 2018 Gill Lewis, Interim Head of Finance 

and Section 151 Officer

gill.lewis@bridgend.gov.uk

P
age 111



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME - 1 OCTOBER 2018 – 31 JANAURY 2019

Date Title and Description of Report Scrutiny 
Committee Contact Officer

Between  13 
Jul and 1 Apr 

ALN Reform Corporate 
Overview and 

Scrutiny 
Committee 

Lindsay Harvey, Corporate Director 
Education and Family Support
Tel: 01656 642612
lindsay.harvey@bridgend.gov.uk

Between 13 
Jul and 31 Oct  

School Standards Subject 
Overview & 

Scrutiny 
Committee 1

Lindsay Harvey, Corporate Director 
Education and Family Support
Tel: 01656 642612
lindsay.harvey@bridgend.gov.uk

Between  13 
Jul and 31 Oct 

Review of Fostering Project Corporate 
Overview and 

Scrutiny 
Committee 

Susan Cooper, Corporate Director - 
Social Services & Wellbeing
Tel: 01656 642251
susan.cooper@bridgend.gov.uk

Between  13 
Jul and 31 Oct 

Advocacy Corporate 
Overview and 

Scrutiny 
Committee 

Susan Cooper, Corporate Director - 
Social Services & Wellbeing
Tel: 01656 642251
susan.cooper@bridgend.gov.uk

Between  31 
Jul and 1 Apr 

Revised Community Asset Transfer Process Corporate 
Overview and 

Scrutiny 

Mark Shephard, Corporate Director - 
Communities
Tel: 01656 643380

P
age 113



Date Title and Description of Report Scrutiny 
Committee Contact Officer

2

Committee mark.shephard@bridgend.gov.uk

Between  1 
Sep and 30 

Apr 

Waste Services Corporate 
Overview and 

Scrutiny 
Committee 

Mark Shephard, Corporate Director - 
Communities
Tel: 01656 643380
mark.shephard@bridgend.gov.uk

Nov Home to School Transport Corporate 
Overview and 

Scrutiny 
Committee 

Lindsay Harvey, Corporate Director 
Education and Family Support
Tel: 01656 642612
lindsay.harvey@bridgend.gov.uk

Between  1 
Nov and 31 

Jan 

Remodelling Children's Residential Services Corporate 
Overview and 

Scrutiny 
Committee 

Susan Cooper, Corporate Director - 
Social Services & Wellbeing
Tel: 01656 642251
susan.cooper@bridgend.gov.uk

Jan CIW investigation into Looked After Children Corporate 
Overview and 

Scrutiny 
Committee 

Susan Cooper, Corporate Director - 
Social Services & Wellbeing
Tel: 01656 642251
susan.cooper@bridgend.gov.uk

Between  13 
Jul and 29 

Empty Properties Corporate 
Overview and 

Darren Mepham, Chief Executive
Tel: 01656 643227

P
age 114



Date Title and Description of Report Scrutiny 
Committee Contact Officer

3

Mar Scrutiny 
Committee 

darren.mepham@bridgend.gov.uk

Between  1 
Nov and 28 

Feb 

Parks and Playing Fields Corporate 
Overview and 

Scrutiny 
Committee 

Mark Shephard, Corporate Director - 
Communities
Tel: 01656 643380
mark.shephard@bridgend.gov.uk

Nov Direct Payment Scheme Corporate 
Overview and 

Scrutiny 
Committee 

Susan Cooper, Corporate Director - 
Social Services & Wellbeing
Tel: 01656 642251
susan.cooper@bridgend.gov.uk

Between  1 
Nov and 1 Apr 

Communication and Engagement Corporate 
Overview and 

Scrutiny 
Committee 

Darren Mepham, Chief Executive
Tel: 01656 643227
darren.mepham@bridgend.gov.uk

Between  1 
Sep and 1 Apr 

Collaboration - Internal and with third sector Corporate 
Overview and 

Scrutiny 
Committee 

Darren Mepham, Chief Executive
Tel: 01656 643227
darren.mepham@bridgend.gov.uk

Between  1 
Sep and 26 

Apr 

Digital Transformation Corporate 
Overview and 

Scrutiny 
Committee 

Darren Mepham, Chief Executive
Tel: 01656 643227
darren.mepham@bridgend.gov.uk

P
age 115



Date Title and Description of Report Scrutiny 
Committee Contact Officer

4

Between  1 
Sep and 30 

Apr 

New Local Development Plan Corporate 
Overview and 

Scrutiny 
Committee 

Mark Shephard, Corporate Director - 
Communities
Tel: 01656 643380
mark.shephard@bridgend.gov.uk

Between  1 
Sep and 1 

May 

Corporate Landlord Corporate 
Overview and 

Scrutiny 
Committee 

Mark Shephard, Corporate Director - 
Communities
Tel: 01656 643380
mark.shephard@bridgend.gov.uk

Between  1 
Sep and 1 Apr 

Collaboration with Town and Community Councils Corporate 
Overview and 

Scrutiny 
Committee 

Darren Mepham, Chief Executive
Tel: 01656 643227
darren.mepham@bridgend.gov.uk

Between  13 
Jul and 1 Apr 

Community Services Corporate 
Overview and 

Scrutiny 
Committee 

Mark Shephard, Corporate Director - 
Communities
Tel: 01656 643380
mark.shephard@bridgend.gov.uk

Between  1 
Sep and 1 Apr 

Supporting People Grant Programme Corporate 
Overview and 

Scrutiny 
Committee 

Susan Cooper, Corporate Director - 
Social Services & Wellbeing
Tel: 01656 642251
susan.cooper@bridgend.gov.uk

P
age 116



Date Title and Description of Report Scrutiny 
Committee Contact Officer

5

Between  1 
Jan and 29 

Mar 

Child Adolescent Mental Health Services Corporate 
Overview and 

Scrutiny 
Committee 

Susan Cooper, Corporate Director - 
Social Services & Wellbeing
Tel: 01656 642251
susan.cooper@bridgend.gov.uk

Jan Care Inspectorate Wales (CIW) Inspection of Children's Services Corporate 
Overview and 

Scrutiny 
Committee 

Susan Cooper, Corporate Director - 
Social Services & Wellbeing
Tel: 01656 642251
susan.cooper@bridgend.gov.uk

P
age 117



T
his page is intentionally left blank



BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

REPORT TO CABINET

17 JULY 2018   

REPORT OF THE HEAD OF LEGAL AND REGULATORY SERVICES

INFORMATION REPORTS FOR NOTING

1. Purpose of Report .

1.1 The purpose of this report is to inform Cabinet of the Information Reports for noting 
which have been published since its last scheduled meeting.

2. Connection to Corporate Improvement Objectives.

2.1 The report relates to the Corporate Priority Smarter Use of Resources by improving the 
way we communicate and engage with citizens.

3. Background.

3.1 At a previous meeting of Cabinet, it was resolved to approve a revised procedure for the 
presentation to Cabinet of Information Reports for noting.

4. Current situation / proposal.                                                                     

4.1 Information Reports

The following information reports have been published since the last meeting of 
Cabinet:-    

Title Date Published

Treasury Management – Quarter 1 2018-19        11 July 2018

Social Services Representations and Complaints Annual       11 July 2018 
Report 2017/18

4.2 Availability of Documents

The documents have been circulated to Elected Members electronically via 
Email and placed on the BCBC website, and also are available from the date of 
publication. 

5. Effect upon Policy Framework and Procedure Rules.

5.1 This procedure has been adopted within the procedure rules of the Constitution.

6. Equality Impact Assessment

6.1 There are no negative equality implications arising from this report.  

Page 119

Agenda Item 9



7. Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 Implications 

7.1 The well-being goals identified in the Act were considered in the preparation of this 
report.  It is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable impacts upon 
the achievement of well-being goals/objectives as a result of this report.

8. Financial Implications.

8.1 There are no financial implications regarding this report. 

9. Recommendation.

9.1 That Cabinet acknowledges the publication of the documents listed in this report.

K Watson
Head of Legal and Regulatory Services 
11 July 2018    

Contact Officer: Andrew Rees  
Senior Democratic Services Officer – Committees 

Telephone: (01656) 643147
Email: cabinet_committee@bridgend.gov.uk

Postal address: Democratic Services
Legal and Regulatory Services
Civic Offices
Angel Street 
Bridgend 
CF31 4WB

Background documents:  Reports referred to in Paragraph 4.1 of this report. 

Page 120

mailto:cabinet_committee@bridgend.gov.uk


BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
    

INFORMATION REPORT TO CABINET 
 

17 JULY 2018 
 

REPORT OF THE INTERIM HEAD OF FINANCE & SECTION 151 OFFICER 
 
TREASURY MANAGEMENT - QUARTER 1 2018-19 
 
1. Purpose of Report 
 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to:- 
 

 comply with the requirement of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance 
and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Treasury Management in the Public 
Services: Code of Practice (the Code) to produce interim Treasury 
Management reports 
 

 provide a summary of the Treasury Management activities from  1 April 
to 30 June 2018 
 

 report on the projected Treasury Management and Prudential Indicators 
for 2018-19  

 
2. Connection to Corporate Improvement Objectives / Other Corporate 

Priorities 
 
2.1 This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate 

priority/priorities:   

 Smarter use of resources – ensuring that all its resources (financial, 
physical, human and technological) are used as effectively and 
efficiently as possible and support the development of resources 
throughout the community that can help deliver the Council’s priorities.  

 
2.2 The Treasury Management Report is integral to the delivery of the Corporate 

Improvement Objectives as the allocation of resources determines the extent 
to which the Corporate Objectives can be delivered. 

 

3. Background  
 

3.1 The Council’s Treasury Management activities are regulated by the Local 
Government Act 2003 which provides the powers to borrow and invest as well 
as providing controls and limits on this activity. The Local Authorities (Capital 
Finance and Accounting) (Wales) Regulations 2003 as amended, develops the 
controls and powers within the Act. 

 

3.2 The Council is required to operate the overall treasury function with regard to 
the Code. This includes a requirement for the Council to approve a Treasury 
Management Strategy (TMS) before the start of each financial year which sets 

Page 121



                                                                                                                                                                                             

   

   

  

   

out the Council’s and Chief Financial Officer’s responsibilities, delegation, and 
reporting arrangements. Council approved the TMS 2018-19 on 28 February 
2018.  

 

3.3 The Welsh Government (WG) issued revised Guidance on Local Authority 
Investments in April 2010, which requires the Council to approve an Investment 
Strategy prior to the start of each financial year and this is included in the TMS. 

 

3.4 The Council is also required to undertake any borrowing activity with regard to 
the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities. The 
Council’s adoption and implementation of both the Prudential Code and the 
Code of Practice for Treasury Management means that its capital expenditure 
is prudent, affordable and sustainable, and its treasury practices demonstrate 
a low risk approach.  

 
3.5 CIPFA published new editions of Treasury Management in the Public Services: 

Code of Practice and the Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local 
Authorities in late December 2017 however the TMS 2018-19 (and therefore 
this report) have been produced using the 2011 Codes due to the timing of the 
changes and there was still some information which had yet to be published 
when the TMS was produced. Any revision required to the TMS for 2018-19 will 
be reported to Council for approval as part of the Half Year Monitoring Report. 

3.6 In March 2018, the Welsh Government also published an amendment to the 
Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (Wales) Regulations which 
enables the Council to invest in certain instruments which were previously 
treated as capital expenditure for example a money market fund, without the 
potential revenue cost of Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) and without the 
proceeds from sale being considered a capital receipt.  

 
3.7     For the period 1 April to 30 June 2018 this report covers the following areas:- 

 The Council’s treasury position  

 External Context 

 Borrowing Strategy and Outturn  

 Investment Strategy and Outturn  

 Treasury Management and Prudential Indicators 2018-19 
 
4.1 Current Situation 

 
4.1.1 The Council’s external debt and investment position for 1 April to 30 June 2018 

is shown below in table 1; more detail is provided in section 4.3 the Borrowing 
Strategy and Outturn and section 4.4 the Investment Strategy and Outturn.  

 
 
 
 
 

Page 122



                                                                                                                                                                                             

   

   

  

   

    Table 1: Council’s external debt and investment position 1 April to 30 June 2018 

 

 

Principal 

 

01-04-18 

£m 

Average 

Rate  

01-04-18 

% 

Principal 

  

30-06-18 

£m 

Average 

Rate  

30-06-18 

% 

External long term borrowing: 

Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) 

Lender’s Option Borrower’s Option (LOBO) 

Total external long term borrowing 

 

77.62 

19.25 

96.87 

 

4.70 

4.65 

4.69 

 

77.62 

19.25 

96.87 

 

4.70 

4.65 

4.69 

Total external borrowing 96.87 4.69 96.87 4.69 

Other long term liabilities (LTL):  

Private Finance Initiative (PFI)* 

Llynfi Loan** 

Other LTL 

Total other long term liabilities 

 

17.64 

2.40 

0.98 

21.02 

  

17.48 

2.40 

0.95 

20.83 

 

Total gross external debt 117.89  117.70  

Treasury investments: 

Banks 

Building Societies 

Local Authorities 

Money Market Fund*** 

 

7.40 

2.00 

21.00 

- 

 

0.58 

0.54 

0.64 

 

8.00 

3.00 

26.00 

2.30 

 

0.63 

0.67 

0.67 

0.56 

Total treasury investments 30.40 0.62 39.30 0.65 

Net Debt 87.49  78.40  

 * (PFI) arrangement for the provision of a Secondary School in Maesteg 15.75 years remaining term 
** Loan from the WG Central Capital Retained Fund for regeneration works within the Llynfi Valley which has not yet 
commenced 
***the fund provides instant access 

 

4.1.2 Although not classed as treasury management activities and therefore not 
covered by the CIPFA Code or the WG Guidance, the Council may also 
purchase property for investment purposes and may also make loans and 
investments for service purposes, for example in shared ownership housing, or 
as equity investments and loans to the Council’s subsidiaries. Such loans and 
investments will be subject to the Council’s normal approval processes for 
revenue and capital expenditure and need not comply with the Treasury 
Management Strategy. The Council’s existing non-treasury investments relate 
to investment properties and the unaudited balance outstanding at 31 March 
2018 was £4.36 million. 

 

4.1.3   It should be noted that the accounting practice required to be followed by the 
Council requires financial instruments in the accounts (debt and investments) 
to be measured in a method compliant with International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS). The figures shown in the above table and throughout the 
report are based on the actual amounts borrowed and invested and so may 
differ from those in the Statement of Accounts, which include accrued interest 
or are stated at fair value in different instances.  

Page 123



                                                                                                                                                                                             

   

   

  

   

 
4.1.4 The Council’s treasury management advisors are Arlingclose. The current 

services provided to the Council include:- 
 

 advice and guidance on relevant policies, strategies and reports 

 advice on investment decisions 

 notification of credit ratings and changes 

 other information on credit quality 

 advice on debt management decisions 

 accounting advice 

 reports on treasury performance 

 forecasts of interest rates 

 training courses  
 
4.2    External Context 

 
4.2.1 The interest rate views incorporated in the Council’s Treasury Management 

Strategy for 2018-19, were based upon officers’ views supported by a selection 
of City forecasts provided by Arlingclose. When the Treasury Management 
Strategy for 2018-19 was prepared in January 2018 it was forecast that the 
Bank Rate would remain at 0.50% during 2018-19.  
 

4.2.2 The Bank Rate started the financial year at 0.50% and remained at that rate as 
at 30 June 2018. Arlingclose are forecasting that it is possible that there will be 
two 0.25% increases in the Bank Rate in 2018-19, one in September 2018 and 
the other in March 2019 reaching 1% by the end of 2018-19.  

 
4.3 Borrowing Strategy and Outturn for 1 April to 30 June 2018  
 
4.3.1 The Council’s primary objective for the management of its debt is to ensure its 

long term affordability. The majority of its loans have therefore been borrowed 
from the PWLB at long term fixed rates of interest. 

 
4.3.2   With short-term interest rates lower than long term rates, it is likely to be more 

cost effective in the short term to either borrow short term loans or use internal 
resources. Short term and variable rate loans expose the Council to the risk of 
short term interest rate rises and are therefore subject to the limit on the net 
exposure to variable interest rates as shown in the treasury management 
indicators in Appendix B. However, with long term rates forecast to rise in the 
coming years, any such short term savings will need to be balanced against the 
potential longer-term costs. Arlingclose will assist the Council with this ‘cost of 
carry’ and breakeven analysis.   

 

4.3.3 The £19.25 million shown in Table 1 above, relates to Lender’s Option 
Borrower’s Option (LOBO) loans which have a maturity date of 2054, however 
these may be re-scheduled in advance of this maturity date.  The LOBO rate 
and term may vary in the future depending upon the prevailing market rates, 
the lender exercising their option to increase rates at one of the bi-annual trigger 

Page 124



                                                                                                                                                                                             

   

   

  

   

points and therefore the Council being given the option to accept the increase 
or to repay the loan without incurring a penalty. The next trigger point is 23 July 
2018 and the lender has not exercised this option (current low interest rate 
environment) however, an element of refinancing risk remains.  Following 
advice from Arlingclose, the Council approached the LOBO’s lender for 
potential repayment options in 2017, however the premium was deemed too 
excessive to action but the Council would take the option to repay these loans 
at no cost if it has the opportunity to do so in the future. 
 
The current average interest rate for these LOBO’s is 4.65% compared to the 
PWLB Loans average interest rate of 4.70%.  

 
4.3.4 The last time the Council took long term borrowing was £5 million from the 

PWLB in March 2012 and it is not expected that there will be a requirement for 
any new long term borrowing in 2018-19, however for cash-flow purposes short 
term borrowing may be taken. Market conditions have meant that there has 
been no loan rescheduling so far this year however, in conjunction with 
Arlingclose, the loan portfolio will continue to be reviewed for any potential 
savings as a result of any loan rescheduling.   

4.3.5 The Council is currently maintaining an under-borrowed position.  This means 
that the capital borrowing need (the Capital Financing Requirement), has not 
been fully funded with loan debt as cash supporting the Council’s reserves, 
balances and cash flow has been used as a temporary measure. This is known 
as Internal Borrowing.  This strategy is prudent as investment returns are low 
and counterparty risk is relatively high. 
 

4.4    Investment Strategy and Outturn for 1 April to 30 June 2018  
 

4.4.1 Both the CIPFA Code and the WG Guidance require the Council to invest its 
funds prudently and to have regard to the security and liquidity of its 
investments before seeking the highest rate of return, or yield.  The Council’s 
objective when investing money is to strike an appropriate balance between 
risk and return, balancing the risk of incurring losses from defaults against 
receiving unsuitably low investment income.  

The major objectives during 2018-19 are:-  

 To maintain capital security 

 To maintain  liquidity so funds are available when expenditure is needed  

 To achieve the yield on investments commensurate with the proper levels 
of security and liquidity 

 
4.4.2 The Annual Investment Strategy incorporated in the Council’s Treasury 

Management Strategy 2018-19 includes the credit ratings defined for each 
category of investments and the liquidity of investments. The Council’s 
investments have historically been placed in short term bank and building 
society unsecured deposits and local and central government, however, 
investments may be made with any public or private sector organisations that 

Page 125



                                                                                                                                                                                             

   

   

  

   

meet the minimum credit criteria specified in the Investment Strategy. The 
Council is diversifying into more secure and/or higher yielding asset classes 
any new instruments used will be in full consultation with the Council’s treasury 
management advisors.  

 

4.4.3 Investment decisions are made by reference to the lowest published long-term 
credit rating from Fitch, Moody’s or Standard & Poor’s to ensure that this lies 
within our agreed minimum credit rating. Appendix A shows the equivalence 
table for these published ratings and explains the different investment grades. 
Where available the credit rating relevant to the specific investment or class of 
investment is used, otherwise the counterparty credit rating is used. In the 
current climate, relying mainly on credit ratings is considered to be inappropriate 
and the Council understands that credit ratings are good, but not perfect, 
predictors of investment default.  Full regard is therefore given to other available 
information on the credit quality of the organisations in which it invests, including 
credit default swap prices, financial statements, information on potential 
government support and reports in the quality financial press.  No investments 
will be made with an organisation if there are substantive doubts about its credit 
quality, even though it may meet the credit rating criteria. 

4.4.4 On a day to day basis, the Council typically has surplus cash balances arising 
from the cash flow e.g. timing differences between grants being received and 
making various payments. These are invested on the market via brokers, direct 
with the institution or held in deposit accounts or a money market fund with 
instant access. The Council usually invests for a range of periods dependent on 
cash flow requirements and the interest rates on offer having regard to the 
Investment Strategy.  

4.4.5 The Council’s primary objective for the management of its investment portfolio 
is to give priority to the security and liquidity of its funds before seeking the best 
rate of return. As shown in the tables below, the majority of surplus cash has 
been held as short term investments with UK Local Authorities, banks and 
building societies of high credit quality. This has therefore resulted in more of 
the investment portfolio being moved into investment instruments with lower 
rates of return but higher security and liquidity.  
 

4.4.6 Occasionally, investments are placed with the UK Debt Management Office 
(DMO - Executive Agency of UK Government) but only for very short term 
deposits and after all other options have been explored. The interest rates 
offered by this facility are lower than most other counterparties but this is 
commensurate with the high level of security and reduced risk offered. It 
provides another option when examining potential investments and ensures 
compliance with the Council’s investment objective that security takes priority 
over yield. There were no deposits outstanding at 30 June 2018.  
 

4.4.7 Favourable cash flows have provided positive cash balances for investment and 
as shown above the balance on investments at 30 June 2018 was £39.30 
million. Table 2 below details these investments by counterparty type. 
 

Page 126



                                                                                                                                                                                             

   

   

  

   

Table 2: Investments Profile 1 April to 30 June 2018 
 

 
Investment 

Counterparty 
Category 

 
Balance 
01 April 

2018 
 

(A) 
 
 

£m 

 
Investments  

Raised 
 
 

(B) 
 
 

£m 

 
Investments 

Repaid 
 
 

(C) 
 
 

£m 

 
Balance 
 30 June 

2018 
 

(A+B-C) 
 
 

£m 

 
Interest 

Received 

 
 
 
 
 

£’000 

 
Average 
Original 
Duration 

of the  
Investment 

 
 

Days 

 
Weighted 
Average 

Investment 
Balance 

   Apr - June  
2018 

         
        £m 

 
Weighted 
Average 
Interest 

Rate  
  Apr-June    

2018 
 

% 

 
Government 
DMO  

 
- 

 
 25.20 

 
25.20 

            
      - 

 
      0.81 

 
5   

 
  1.30 

 
0.25 

Local 
Authorities 

 
21.00 

 
      46.10 

 
41.10 

 
    26.00 

 
    24.72 

 
205 

 
29.57 

 
0.63 

Building 
Societies 

 
 2.00 

 
   5.00 

 
  4.00 

          
     3.00 

 
      5.78 

 
99   

 
  3.50 

 
0.60 

Banks 
(Fixed Maturity) 

 
 5.00 

 
   6.00 

 
 3.00 

         
     8.00 

 
    18.45 

 
198 

 
  6.13 

 
0.63 

Banks Instant 
Access/Notice 
Period * 

 
 2.40 

 
  30.53 

 
32.93 

           
       - 

 
      3.99 

 
n/a 

 
  4.05 

 
0.37 

Money Market 
Fund (Instant 
Access)* 

 
- 

   
    4.30 

   
  2.00 

      
    2.30 

 
      1.72 

 
n/a 

 
  1.76 

 
0.53 

 
Total/Average 

 
30.40 

 
 117.13 

 
108.23 

 
39.30 

 
 55.47 

 
127 

 
 46.35 

 
0.59 

* An average duration is not shown as there is no original duration as instant access or notice period and money is added and   

withdrawn to/from these accounts as required by cash-flow   

4.4.8 There are four long term investments (original duration of 12 months or more) 
outstanding at 30 June 2018 totalling £9 million with Local Authorities shown in 
table 3 below. £5 million maturing in 2019-20 and £4 million maturing in 2020-
21. All other investments at 30 June 2018 were short term deposits (including 
instant access and notice accounts). Table 3 below details these investments 
by counterparty type based on the remaining maturity period as at 30 June 
2018: 

 
Table 3: Investments Outstanding Maturity Profile 30 June 2018 
 

Counterparty 
Category 

Instant  
Access 

 
 

£m 

Deposits 
Maturing 

Within 
  1 Month 

£m 

Deposits 
Maturing 

Within 
  2-3 Months 

£m 

Deposits 
Maturing 

Within 
4-12 Months 

£m 

Deposits 
Maturing 

Within 
1-2 Years 

£m 

Deposits 
Maturing 

Within 
2-3 Years 

£m 

Total 
 
 
 

£m 

Local 
Authorities 

 
- 

         
   12.00 

     
       2.00 

 
3.00 

 
5.00 

 
4.00 

 
26.00 

Building 
Societies 

 
- 

 
- 

  
3.00 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
 3.00 

               
Banks 

    
- 

 
4.00 

 
       2.00 

 
2.00 

 
- 

 
- 

  
 8.00 

Money Market 
Fund 

 
2.30 

      
2.30 

 
Total 

         
     2.30 

 
16.00 

 
 7.00 

 
5.00 

 
5.00 

 
4.00 

 
39.30 

Page 127



                                                                                                                                                                                             

   

   

  

   

 

4.4.9 The Council defines high credit quality as organisations and securities having 
a credit rating of A- or higher. The pie chart below summarises the above table 
by credit ratings and shows the £39.30 million investments at 30 June 2018 by 
percentage outstanding. Most Local Authorities do not have credit ratings and 
unrated building societies (shown as ‘BS NR’ below) were all approved by 
Arlingclose whilst the remainder of our investments all had a credit rating of A 
or above. 

 

 

 
4.4.10 The Council participates in a benchmarking exercise with Arlingclose but due 

to the timing of the report comparative data from other Arlingclose Local 
Authority clients is not yet available but an update will be provided in the half 
year report to Cabinet and Council. 
 

4.5 Treasury Management and Prudential Indicators 2018-19 
 
4.5.1 The 2011 Treasury Management Code and Prudential Code require the Council 

to set and report on a number of Treasury Management Indicators within this 
report, however, the Council has decided to report on all indicators in this report 
so the Prudential Indicators are also included. The indicators either summarise 
the expected activity or introduce limits upon the activity, and reflect the 
underlying capital programme. Appendix B details the estimate for 2018-19 set 
out in the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy and also the projected 
indicators for 2018-19. These show that the Council is operating in line with the 
approved limits. 

 
5. Effect upon Policy Framework and Procedure Rules 
 
5.1 As required by Financial Procedure Rule 20.3 within the Council’s Constitution, 

all investments and borrowing transactions have been undertaken in 

Page 128



                                                                                                                                                                                             

   

   

  

   

accordance with the Treasury Management Strategy 2018-19 as approved by 
Council with due regard to the requirements of the CIPFA’s Code of Practice 
on Treasury Management in the Public Services. 

6. Equality Impact Assessment 
 
6.1 There are no equality implications. 
 
7.  Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 Implications 
 
7.1       The well-being goals identified in the Act were considered in the preparation of 

this report. As the report is for information only it is considered that there will be 
no significant or unacceptable impacts upon the achievement of well-being 
goals/objectives as a result of this report. 

 
8. Financial Implications 
 
8.1      The financial implications are reflected within the report. 
 
9. Recommendation 
 
9.1 It is recommended that: 
 

 Cabinet note the Council’s treasury management activities for the period 1 April 
2018 to 30 June 2018; 
 

 Cabinet note the projected Treasury Management and Prudential Indicators for 
2018-19 
 

Gill Lewis 
Interim Head of Finance and Section 151 Officer 
1 July 2018 
 

Contact Officer: Karin Thomas 
   Loans & Investment Officer  
Telephone:  01656 643198 
E-mail:  Karin.Thomas@bridgend.gov.uk 
Postal Address: Bridgend County Borough Council 
   Chief Executives - Finance 
   Raven’s Court 

Brewery Lane 
   Bridgend 
   CF31 4AP 
 
Background documents:  
Treasury Management Strategy 2018-19 
 

 
  

Page 129

mailto:Karin.Thomas@bridgend.gov.uk


                                                                                                                                                                                             

   

   

  

   

APPENDIX A 
 

Page 130



                                                                                                                                                                                             

   

   

  

   

          APPENDIX B 
 
1      TREASURY MANAGEMENT INDICATORS 2018-19  
 
1.1 The following indicators (which are forward looking parameters) form part of the 

CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management. They enable the Council to 
measure and manage its exposure to Treasury Management risks. 
  
The Council needs to set the upper limits to its Interest Rate Exposure for the 
effects of changes in interest rates. There are two treasury management 
indicators that relate to both fixed interest rates and variable interest rates. 
These limits have been calculated with reference to the net outstanding 
principal sums and are set to control the Council’s exposure to interest rate risk 
and are shown in the table below. Fixed rate investments and borrowings for 
the purpose of this indicator are those where the rate of interest is fixed for at 
least 12 months, measured from the start of the financial year or transaction 
date if later and all other instruments are classed as variable. The majority of 
the Council’s investments are less than 12 months and even though interest 
rates may be fixed for the investment duration these would be classed as 
variable.  

No.  Treasury 
Management 

Strategy  
2018-19 

£m 

Projection 
31-03-2019 

 
 

£m 

 Total Projected Principal Outstanding on 
Borrowing 31 March 2019 

 
96.87 

 
96.87 

 Total Projected Principal Outstanding on 
Investments 31 March 2019 

 
20.00 

 
 20.00 

 Net Principal Outstanding 76.87  76.87 

1. Upper Limit on fixed interest rates (net 
principal) exposure   
 

 
130.00 

 
 68.62 

2. Upper Limit on variable interest rates 
(net principal) exposure  

 
50.00 

 
   8.25 

    

The Section 151 Officer will manage interest rate exposures between these 
limits in 2018-19. 
 

1.2 A further indicator for Treasury Management measures the Maturity Structure 
of Borrowing and is the amount of projected borrowing that is fixed rate, 
maturing in each period as a percentage of total projected fixed rate borrowing. 
This indicator is set to control the Council’s exposure to refinancing risk and 
has been set to allow for the possible restructuring of long term debt where this 
is expected to lead to an overall saving or reduction in risk.  

The 19.87% shown in the table below relates to £19.25 million Lender’s Option 
Borrower’s Option (LOBO) loans which may be re-scheduled in advance of 
their maturity date of 2054, as detailed in paragraph 4.3.3 of the main report. 
The Code requires the maturity of LOBO loans to be shown as the earliest date 

Page 131



                                                                                                                                                                                             

   

   

  

   

on which the lender can require payment, i.e. the call date of January 2019 (the 
lender has already confirmed that the option will not be exercised on the next 
call date in July 2018), so the maturity date is actually uncertain but is shown 
in the “Under 12 months” category as per the Code. 

 
No Maturity structure of  fixed rate 

borrowing during 2018-19 
Upper limit lower limit Projection 

31-03-19 

3.  Under 12 months  50% 0% 19.87% 

  12 months and within 24 months 25% 0% - 

  24 months and within 5 years 25% 0% - 

   5 years and within 10 years 50% 0% 13.91% 

  10 years and within 20 years 60% 0% 23.49% 

  20 years and above 100% 40% 42.73% 

 
1.3 The Upper Limit for Total Principal Sums invested over 364 days indicator 

controls the amount of longer term investments which mature beyond the period 
end. This is set to control the Council’s exposure to the risk of incurring losses 
by seeking early repayment of its investments.  

 
 

 

  
2 PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 2018-19  
 

The Prudential Indicators are required to be set and approved by Council in 
accordance with CIPFA’s Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local 
Authorities.  

 
The 2011 Code requires the Council to formally adopt CIPFA’s Treasury 
Management Code and this was adopted by Council on 22 February 2012.  
 

2.1 Prudential Indicators for Prudence  
 
2.1.1 The following Prudential Indicators are based on the Council’s capital 

programme which is subject to change. 
 

The Council’s capital expenditure plans are summarised below and this forms 
the first prudential indicator for Prudence. The total capital expenditure is funded 
from capital grants and contributions, capital receipts  and revenue with the 
remainder being the Net Financing Need for the Financial Year to be met 
from borrowing.  
 
 

No.  Treasury 
Management 

Strategy  
2018-19 
(Limit) 

£m  

Projection 
Principal Outstanding  

Over 364 days 
31-03-19   

     
 

£m 

4. Upper Limit for Total Principal Sums 
Invested for more than 364 days 

 
15 

 
9 

Page 132



                                                                                                                                                                                             

   

   

  

   

No. Prudential indicators For Prudence Estimate 
Treasury Management Strategy 

  
2018-19 

£m 

Projection 
31-03-19 

 
 
 
 

£m 

1. Total Capital Expenditure (Non HRA)                         33.69 45.17 

     Total Capital Expenditure     33.69 45.17 

 Financed by :-   

 Capital Grants and Contributions   6.84          8.25 

 Capital Receipts   9.18  18.32 

 Revenue Contribution to Capital                           7.49  10.85 

 Net Financing Need for Year   10.18    7.75 

 
The capital expenditure figures have changed from the Treasury Management 
Strategy 2018-19 as the capital programme approved by Council on 28 
February 2018 has been amended to include new approved schemes and to 
incorporate slippage of schemes from 2017-18 and a change in the profile of 
funding and prudential borrowing. This has resulted in a decrease in the Net 
Financing Need for 2018-19 which is a decrease in Unsupported Borrowing.  
 
The process for charging the financing of capital expenditure to revenue is a 
statutory requirement and is called the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP). The 
actual MRP charge needs to be prudent and the methodology is detailed in the 
Council’s MRP policy in the TMS 2018-19. Directorates who receive Council 
approval for capital schemes via Unsupported Borrowing make annual 
contributions to the capital costs of their schemes known as Voluntary Revenue 
Provisions (VRP) or additional MRP. This type of borrowing is only approved 
when Directorates have the necessary revenue resources to make VRP to fund 
the capital costs though this will be deferred in some cases until the asset 
becomes operational in accordance with the Council’s MRP Policy. 

 
2.1.2 The second Prudential Indicator is the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) 

for the Council. This shows the total outstanding capital expenditure that has 
not been funded from either revenue or other capital resources. It is derived 
from the actual Balance Sheet of the Council. It is essentially a measure of the 
underlying need to finance capital expenditure and forms the basis of the charge 
to the Council Fund in line with the Prudential Code.  

 
The MRP requirement for the Maesteg School PFI Scheme and the Innovation 
Centre will be equivalent to the write down of the liability for the year and is met 
from existing budgets.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 133



                                                                                                                                                                                             

   

   

  

   

No. Prudential indicators For Prudence Estimate 
Treasury 

Management 
Strategy  
2018-19 

£m 

Projection 

 
 

2018-19 
£m 

2. Capital Financing Requirement (CFR)   

 Opening CFR (1 April 2018) adjusted excluding PFI & 
other liabilities 

152.56            152.64 

 
 

Opening PFI CFR 
Opening Innovation Centre 

Total Opening CFR 

Movement in CFR excluding PFI & other liabilities 
Movement in PFI CFR 
Movement in Innovation Centre CFR 
Total Movement in CFR 

17.64 
  0.60 

170.80 

3.62 
(0.64) 
(0.06) 
2.92 

17.64 
  0.60 

170.88 

1.22 
(0.64) 
(0.06) 
0.52 

 Closing CFR (estimated 31 March 2019) 173.72 171.40 

 Movement in CFR represented by :-   

 Net Financing Need for Year (above) 10.18 7.75 

   Minimum and Voluntary Revenue Provisions* (7.26) (7.23) 

 Total Movement 2.92 0.52 

*Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) and Voluntary Revenue Provision (VRP) represent the revenue charge for the repayment 

of debt and includes MRP for the Private Finance Initiative (PFI) and the Innovation Centre  
  
2.2   Limits to Borrowing Activity  
 

2.2.1 The Council’s long term borrowing at the 30 June 2018 was £96.87 million as 
detailed in section 4 of the main report. External Borrowing can arise as a result 
of both capital and revenue expenditure and timing of cash flows. As the Council 
has an integrated Treasury Management Strategy there is no association 
between individual loans and particular types of expenditure. Therefore, the 
Capital Financing Requirement and actual external borrowing can be very 
different especially when a Council is using Internal Borrowing as highlighted in 
paragraph 4.3.5 in the main report.  
 

 The Gross Debt position (Borrowing and Long Term Liabilities) is shown below: 
  

No. Prudential indicators 
For Prudence 

 
Gross Debt 31 March 

Estimate 
Treasury 

Management 
Strategy 
2018-19 

£m 

Projection 
31-03-19 

 
 
 

£m 

3. External Borrowing  96.87    96.87 

 Long Term Liabilities (including PFI)  20.24                20.27 

 Total Gross Debt  117.11 117.14 

 
2.2.2 Within the Prudential Indicators, there are a number of key indicators to ensure 

the Council operates its activities within well-defined limits. One key control is 
to ensure that over the medium term debt will only be for a capital purpose. The 
Council needs to ensure that external debt does not, except in the short term, 

Page 134



                                                                                                                                                                                             

   

   

  

   

exceed the Capital Financing Requirement for 2018-19. The table below shows 
that the Council is on target to comply with this requirement. 

 
No. Prudential indicators For Prudence Estimate 

Treasury 
Management 

Strategy 
 2018-19 

£m 

Projection 
31-03-19 

 
 
 

£m 

4. Gross Debt & the CFR   

 Total Gross Debt 117.11 117.14 

 Closing CFR (31 March 2019) 173.72 171.40 

 
2.2.3 A further two Prudential Indicators control the Council’s overall level of debt to 

support Capital Expenditure. These are detailed below and confirms that the 
Council is well within the limit set :- 
 

 The Authorised Limit for External Debt – this represents the limit 
beyond which borrowing is prohibited. It reflects a level of borrowing that 
could not be sustained even though it would be affordable in the short 
term. It needs to be set and approved by Members. 
 

 The Operational Boundary for External Debt – this is not an actual limit 
and actual borrowing could vary around this boundary during the year. It 
is based on the probable external debt during the course of the year.  

 
No. Prudential indicators For Prudence Treasury 

Management 
Strategy 
2018-19 

£m 

 Projection 
31-03-19 

 
 

£m 
    

 
5. Authorised limit for external debt - 

  

 Borrowing 140  

 Other long term liabilities   30  

 Total 170  

6. Operational Boundary   

 Borrowing 105  

 Other long term liabilities   25  

 Total 130  

    

 Borrowing     96.87 

 Other long term liabilities     20.27 

 Total          117.14 

 
2.3 Prudential Indicators for Affordability 
 
2.3.1 The Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream indicator demonstrates 

the trend in the cost of capital against the total revenue amount to be met from 
local taxpayers and the amount provided by the Welsh Government in the form 
of Revenue Support Grant. The estimates of capital financing costs include 

Page 135



                                                                                                                                                                                             

   

   

  

   

interest payable and receivable on treasury management activities and the MRP 
charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The 
revenue stream is the amount to be met from government grants and local 
taxpayers.  

 
No. Prudential Indicator for Affordability Estimate 

Treasury 
Management 

Strategy 
  

2018-19 
 

Projection 
 
 
 
 

2018-19 
 

7. Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue 
Stream 

        4.55%          4.59% 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 136



BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

REPORT TO CABINET 

17 JULY 2018

REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR, SOCIAL SERVICES AND WELLBEING

SOCIAL SERVICES REPRESENTATIONS AND COMPLAINTS ANNUAL REPORT 
2017/18

1. Purpose of Report

1.1 To present to Cabinet the 2017/18 Annual Report on social services representations 
and complaints procedures as required by Welsh Government guidance.  The 
Annual Report is attached at Appendix 1.

2. Connection to Corporate Improvement Objectives/Other Corporate Priorities

2.1 This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate priority/priorities:-  

1. Helping people to be more self-reliant – taking early steps to reduce or 
prevent people from becoming vulnerable or dependent on the Council and 
its services.

2. Smarter use of resources – ensuring that all its resources (financial, 
physical, human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently as 
possible and support the development of resources throughout the 
community that can help deliver the Council’s priorities. 

3. Background

3.1 Members will be aware that there is a requirement for local authorities to have in 
place procedures for considering any representations or complaints made in relation 
to the discharge of their Social Services functions.  This is the fourth Annual Report 
relating to social services representations and complaints received that have been 
handled in accordance with the revised Welsh Government Complaint Guidelines “A 
Guide to Handling Complaints and Representations by Local Authority Social 
Services” which came into effect on 1st August 2014. The guidance supports the 
implementation of the Social Services Complaints Procedure (Wales) Regulations 
2014 and the Representations Procedure (Wales) Regulations 2014. The 
Regulations introduced a new two stage process which replaced the previous three 
stages and also brings the process for social services into line with the NHS 
Complaints Procedure.

3.2   The key elements of the Social Services Representations and Complaints Procedure 
are:-

 Stage 1 complaints to be responded to within 5 working days of the date of 
resolution (10 working days permitted to achieve resolution).

 The timescale permitted to complete Stage 2 independent complaint 
investigations is 25 working days.

Page 137



 To make links with other Directorates of the Authority, the NHS and the Care 
and Social Services Inspectorate Wales so as to provide a ‘seamless’ 
complaints service.

 Monitor performance of complaints handling, learning from complaints and using 
this learning to improve services for everyone who uses them.

Where complainants have exhausted the complaints procedure, the complainant 
has the right to refer their concern for consideration by the Public Services 
Ombudsman for Wales.  

3.3 Members will note from the Annual Report that strong emphasis is          placed not 
just upon complaints, but also on the comments and          compliments received 
from service users.  The services are keen to learn from the information gathered 
and use this to inform service improvements.

3.4 The Annual Report also contains statistics relating to complaints addressed in 
accordance with the Authority’s Corporate Complaints Procedure, together with 
information relating to the fact that the majority of complaints are addressed and 
resolved informally (prior to reaching Stage 1 of the complaints procedure).  This 
important and significant work ensures that concerns are resolved quickly and 
prevents complainants from being subjected to using the formal complaints 
procedure unnecessarily.  

3.5 Statistical information relating to the processing of Member referrals is provided in 
the Annual Report.  The Representations and Complaints Procedure does not 
preclude the right of an individual to approach their local Councillor, Assembly 
Member or Member of Parliament who all undertake an important role in handling 
concerns and queries that individual constituents may have.  Member referrals can 
range from comments and queries to complaints. 

3.6 The Annual Report also includes information arising from a cross-section of the 
feedback generated from user/carer engagement exercises undertaken by a range 
of service areas across both Adult Social Care and Children’s Social Care.

3.7 As part of the National Performance Framework (in line with their duties under the 
Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014), Local Authorities are required to 
collect qualitative information annually about people who use their social care 
services. This data is to be collected locally and provided nationally to the Welsh 
Government in relation to the provision of care and support.  The Annual Report, 
therefore, also includes information regarding the results of this survey and includes 
details of other feedback received in the services.

4     Current Situation / proposal 

4.1 The 2017/2018 report contains statistical information in relation to the 
representations and complaints received during the year for both adult social care 
and children’s social care.  

4.2 The number of representations (complaints, comments and compliments) received 
during the reporting period was 552, broken down as follows:
  

Page 138



27 statutory complaints
2 Ombudsman 

25 corporate complaints
198 concerns resolved pre-complaints procedure
300 compliments

0 comments

4.3 During 2017/18, two complaints were received by the Public Services 
Ombudsman’s Office, one of which related to Children’s Social Care and the 
second complaint related to the handling of a complaint.  Further details are 
included in the Annual Report. 

4.4    The number of Member Referrals received for both adult and children’s social care 
during the reporting period was 109, broken down as follows:

Adult Social Care – 81
Children’s Social Care - 28 
 

4.5 As referred to in paragraphs 3.6 and 3.7, there is a wide range of feedback from 
people who use social care services that is used to inform service development. 
The Annual Report details the number of surveys sent out and the responses 
received as well as providing some examples of the nature of the feedback.

4.6 The Annual Report includes feedback from the programme of rota visits by Elected 
Members.  This is part of the quality assurance of the Authority’s social care 
services and all Elected Members are invited to take part.  The programme involves 
Members visiting both council-run and independent sector social care and nursing 
establishments for adults and children and young people and reporting on the 
findings and feedback on the services provided.   

4.7 The majority of the work carried out within the Social Services Representations and 
Complaints Procedure is undertaken in consultation with either the Monitoring 
Officer and/or Legal Services.

5      Effect upon Policy Framework and Procedure Rules

5.1      There is no impact on the Policy Framework and Procedure Rules.

6    Equality Impact Assessment

6.1 A screening for equality impact has been carried out in relation to the 
Representations and Complaints Procedure.  There is no negative impact on the 
protected equality characteristics.

6.2 Complainants are welcome to submit complaints in the Welsh language; complaints 
leaflets are bilingual.  The complaint forms have recently been produced bilingually 
and are available for use by complainants. 

6.3 There have been no complaints received in relation to equality issues during the 
reporting period.  

Page 139



7 Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 Implications

7.1 The implementation of the duties and responsibilities under the Social Services and 
Wellbeing Act (Wales) (SSWBA) 2014, in turn, supports the promotion of two of the 
seven goals of the Well-Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 within the 
County Borough of Bridgend.  By promoting an environment that maximises 
people’s physical and mental well-being and by supporting children, young people, 
adults and their carers and families to fulfil their potential no matter what their 
circumstances, the wellbeing goals of a Healthier and more equal Bridgend and 
Wales are supported.

7.2 The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 provides the basis for 
driving a different kind of public service in Wales.  Promoting the right of an 
individual to be involved in the development and provision of support and services, 
to encourage feedback and to enable a person to make a complaint about the 
support or services they receive contributes to ensuring the Authority works to 
deliver wellbeing outcomes for people. 

8     Financial Implications

8.1 There are no financial implications associated with this report.

9        Recommendation

9.1    Cabinet is recommended to note the Annual Report for 2017/18.

Susan Cooper
Corporate Director Social Services and Wellbeing
July 2018

10 Contact Officer
Ros Woods, Designated Complaints Officer,
Social Services and Wellbeing Directorate
Tel: 01656 642253
E:mail: Ros.Woods@bridgend.gov.uk 

                       
11 Background Documents

None

Page 140



 Appendix 1

BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH 
COUNCIL

SOCIAL SERVICES 
REPRESENTATIONS AND

COMPLAINTS 

ANNUAL REPORT
2017 / 2018

July 2018

Page 141



Page 2 of 15

SOCIAL SERVICES 
REPRESENTATIONS AND COMPLAINTS 2017/18

CONTENTS

1. Introduction

2. Summary of the complaints procedure

3. The Public Services Ombudsman for Wales

4. Member referrals

5. Engagement and Feedback 

6. Statistical information 2017/2018

7. How complaints were resolved and lessons   
learned

8. Customer feedback – Their experience of the 
complaints procedure

9. Achievements in 2017/2018

10.   Objectives for 2018/2019

11.   Equalities

Page 142



Page 3 of 15

1. INTRODUCTION

This report covers the period 1st April 2017 to 31st March 2018 and relates to 
representations and complaints received by the Social Services and Wellbeing 
Directorate regarding services and support provided by Adult Social Care and 
Children’s Social Care.  

Social Services Authorities are required to maintain a procedure for considering 
complaints and representations (comments and compliments).  Any member of 
the public, including a child who has received or was entitled to receive a service 
from social services may make a complaint.  The purpose of this report is to 
provide a review and statistical analysis of the complaints, comments and 
compliments received by Social Services during the reporting period.  

This is the fourth Annual Report relating to representations and complaints 
received by the Directorate which have been handled in accordance with the 
revised Welsh Government Complaint Guidelines “A Guide to Handling 
Complaints and Representations by Local Authority Social Services” which came 
into effect on 1st August 2014. The guidance supports the implementation of the 
Social Services Complaints Procedure (Wales) Regulations 2014 and the 
Representations Procedure (Wales) Regulations 2014. The Regulations 
introduced a new two stage process which replaced the previous three stages and 
also brings the process for social services into line with the NHS Complaints 
Procedure.

2.       SUMMARY OF THE STATUTORY COMPLAINTS PROCEDURE

“A Guide to handling complaints and representations by local authority 
social services” (Welsh Government). 

Stage 1 – Local Resolution: As with the previous guidelines, particular emphasis 
is placed upon swift resolution of the majority of complaints.  An offer to discuss 
the complaint with the complainant must therefore be made to attempt to resolve 
matters.  This discussion must take place within 10 working days of the date of 
acknowledgement of the complaint.  Where this approach leads to mutually 
acceptable resolution, the local authority must write to the complainant with details 
of the terms of the resolution within 5 working days of the date on which the 
complaint or representation was resolved.

Stage 2 – Formal Investigation: Appointment of an Independent Investigator is 
made and, as with the previous guidelines an Independent Person must also be 
appointed to oversee the investigation process (children’s complaints).  
Collaborative arrangements have now been established (on a reciprocal basis) 
with neighbouring Local Authorities to share staff to undertake investigations

The Investigation must be completed and a full written response issued to the 
complainant within 25 working days.  Where this is not possible, the Authority 
must write to the complainant to explain the reason for the delay and ensure the 
response is issued as soon as possible and no later than 6 months from the date 
of receipt of the complaint.

Page 143



Page 4 of 15

3. THE PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR WALES

Where complainants have exhausted the complaints procedure, the complainant 
has the right to refer their concern for consideration by the Public Services 
Ombudsman for Wales.  

The Public Services Ombudsman for Wales provides an external independent 
service for the purpose of considering complaints made by members of the public 
in relation to all local authority services, including social services.  The Public 
Services Ombudsman also has jurisdiction to examine and determine complaints 
of injustice as a result of maladministration on the part of the local authority.

The Ombudsman will normally require complainants to have sought redress, in the 
first instance, via the local authority’s complaints procedure prior to accepting and 
investigating a complaint of maladministration on the part of the local authority.

During 2017/18, two complaints were received by the Public Services 
Ombudsman’s Office, one of which related to Children’s Social Care whereby the 
Ombudsman recommended that the Local Authority commission a Stage 2 
independent investigation which was commissioned in September 2017.  The 
second complaint related to shortcomings with the handling of a complaint, as a 
result of which learning outcomes have been identified and implemented.

4.         MEMBER REFERRALS

The Representations and Complaints Procedure does not preclude the right of an 
individual to approach their Local Councillor, Assembly Member or Member of 
Parliament.  They undertake an important role in handling concerns and queries 
that individual constituents may have. Collectively, these are called Member 
referrals and can range from comments and queries to complaints.

If an elected Member considers it to be inappropriate to deal with a concern, the 
matter can be referred for consideration under the Complaints Procedure.  With 
effect from 2017 only those referrals received from Elected Members have been 
recorded by Democratic Services.  Cabinet Members may liaise with Assembly 
Members and Members of Parliament to complete referrals but this data is no 
longer recorded.

During 2017/18, Member referrals were received as follows:-  

Table A
2017/2018 Adult Social Care
Wellbeing: Adult Social Care 81
Wellbeing: Children’s Social Care 28

TOTAL 109

5. ENGAGEMENT AND FEEDBACK
           
In addition to receiving comments and compliments from service users and their 
relatives/carers, the Directorate also issues a range of feedback questionnaires 
from across service areas.  A cross-section of the feedback generated from 
user/carer feedback surveys undertaken during 2017/18 is set out below:-

Page 144



Page 5 of 15

Adult Social Care: 

The Homecare survey is forwarded to all people who have accessed a Local 
Authority Domiciliary Care Service and have an active Care and Support Plan. 
Between 1st April 2017 and 31st March 2018, 162 surveys were distributed, 72 
were returned completed (44%). 97% of respondents confirmed they were either 
very/quite satisfied with the service they receive. General comments provided 
include:-

“Just wanted to compliment all of the staff that visits me day and night.”
“I must say that I am very satisfied with the help we receive and appreciate the 
help we receive.”
“All carers we have had have been excellent.”

The Bridgestart service provides short term (usually 6 weeks) personal care to 
service users in their homes. 76.5% of respondents indicated that the service they 
received was very good, whilst the remaining 23.5% did not answer. Comments 
provided include:-

“I found all of the carers very nice as all doing an excellent job.  I shall miss them 
all as I always had a nice chat with each one of them.  Hope they carry on the 
good work for all other people.”
“Due to other commitments on the service, the majority of the last 6 weeks no-one 
has been here at the time needed.”
“Excellent service and wonderful staff.  Through having the team I feel it prevented 
an admission to hospital.  I would like to thank all team members for all the help 
and making all the difference.  Keep up the good work.”

The Bridgeway service provides an enabling service for people with dementia and 
their families, comments include:-

“Without the support of the staff I would not be able to cope.  The staff have all 
been very kind and caring.”
“The team are outstanding.  They make ‘X’ feel special and it is clear that they all 
treat caring as a vocation and not just a job.”

The Reablement Service provides support to service users usually following 
hospital admission to help them regain their independence to remain living in their 
own home. Comments received on feedback questionnaires include:-   

“I can only say this is an excellent service in every respect.  Everyone concerned 
is very caring and works hard to aid your recovery…I would say you have a first 
class team working together to provide a first class service aiming towards speedy 
recovery.”
“My only criticism is small – I did not always receive adequate notice of each new 
week’s rota so did not always know what time to expect the visit. With hospital 
visits occurring at different times it did occasionally feel stressful not knowing if 
either my appointment would be missed or the carer finding me not at home and 
become concerned…”
“I could not possibly have coped without the expertise and plan that the carers 
gave me…I cannot think of one concern.  I shall always be grateful for their 
friendly and caring manner.”

Page 145



Page 6 of 15

Telecare/Mobile Response: Provides a support service within the home (also in 
emergency situations), via use of wireless technology and sensors/pendant 
buttons. The Early Response Service links into the 24/7 mobile personal care 
service provided as part of the Telecare service and provides emergency 
assistance to service users in their home.  Comments received about the service 
include:- 

“I would very much like to thank everybody that I have spoken to in regards my 
father. The staff have been tremendous and the equipment has kept my mind at 
rest as my father wanted to be at home as long as possible.  It enabled me to 
worry less knowing that if need be there was help within a short space of time.”
“Just to “leave as you found” e.g. the bathroom – dry edges of the bath with towel 
and that’s really all I would do as the 24 hour carer.”

Contract Monitoring and Commissioning: 

Rota Visits to residential care settings and other services have been undertaken 
by Elected Members (including independent providers). Members’ observations 
included:-
 
Ty Cwm Ogwr: “The home has a warm and friendly feel with all staff, residents and 
family members happy and content…”  “The building is tired and in need of some 
renovation” 
Hyfrydol: “Home in pristine order as usual.  All residents spoken with speak highly 
of home…I was impressed with the thought given to residents such as the area 
decorated in a male décor.  Very clean throughout.”
 Glyncynffig: To conclude, we were very happy with the quality of service at 
Glyncynffig and are even happier to confirm that there appears to be a 
comfortable, nurturing environment there where members of staff have a real 
genuine connection with service users.”
Serendipity – Bellwave House, Porthcawl – “Bellware House is an 8 bedroom, 
high dependency residence for people with complex mental health needs.  We 
met ‘X’, a resident who expressed his happiness of being a resident”
Anwen Care Home, Blackmill – “The Manageress …..requested a directional sign 
be placed on the main road indicating the way to the Home’s entrance.  A referral 
has been submitted”. We spoke to residents and relatives, all of whom were 
complimentary about the treatment and services received.  The building was warm 
and spotlessly clean.  The staff appeared very happy in their work with a very 
positive attitude…”  
Treetops, Brynmenyn: “…The atmosphere at Treetops is one of a very large 
family.  All the residents and care staff seemed to be very happy.  I had a long 
conversation with ‘Y’ who said she is very happy at Treetops…and enjoyed the 
friendships she’s made, the homeliness and variety of food…”
Glanffrwd Nursing Home, Pencoed: “Glanffrwd is a reasonably high dependence 
and palliative nursing home.  We met the manager and talked to staff and 8 
residents.  We were very impressed with the quality of care and approachability of 
all staff members.  Residents were talkative and praised their care and attention to 
needs.”

Page 146



Page 7 of 15

Adult Social Care - Advocacy Arrangements

Bridgend continues to work with the Golden Thread Advocacy Project (GTAP) in 
order to build the advocacy support available for people who find it difficult to 
understand information or communicate their wishes. An independent advocacy 
service (IPA) has been commissioned and during the year the IPA service 
received 50 referrals and at March 2018 they were supporting 37 people. 

Children’s Social Care:  

Rota visits are undertaken by Elected Members to the Department’s residential 
homes (children’s), following which a report is submitted which focusses on the 
quality of care provided to service users.  Feedback for visits undertaken during 
this reporting period included:-   

Sunny Bank Community Home is considered as one of the first options of 
accommodation for children/young people who have complex needs and require 
intensive work being undertaken to stabilise their behaviour to allow them to move 
on and settle into a suitable permanent or long term placement. Sunny Bank is 
committed to offering a stimulating, safe caring environment that promotes a 
holistic approach to all aspects of the child/young person’s life. 

“…The only other requirement made …. was for the installation of WiFi…Very 
impressed with visit; a small complex needs residence.  We had a long 
conversation with a member of staff who demonstrated the individualised care 
framework.  We met 2 residents and discussed their interests and development; 
both were very happy and clear about progress made and to be made.  This 
residence was welcoming and at ease.”
 
Bakers Way provides a short breaks service which provides regular planned short 
break stays for disabled children and young people ages 0-18yrs. 

“We were shown the outdoor play area, and noted that some of the play 
equipment needs replacing and that a grass banking needs to be removed to 
extend and improve the children’s play area.…There was a meal being prepared 
in readiness for when the young people return home…there is a range of foods 
that meet the needs of these young people…the building was warm and 
comfortable…we really enjoyed the visit, as the staff team were very warm, 
friendly, but most of all informative.”

Children’s Social Care – Advocacy Arrangements  

All young people wishing to make a complaint are offered the assistance of an 
advocate. 3 young people were supported by an advocate during the reporting 
period.  Advocacy services for all three children were provided via Tros Gynnal.  
All complainants indicated that they were happy with the advocacy service 
provided.

In addition to the above, one complainant raising concerns in respect of her 
children was supported throughout the complaints process by a mental health 
wellbeing advocate.   

Page 147



Page 8 of 15

Social Services and Wellbeing Act (Wales) 2014 - National Performance 
Framework:

As part of the National performance framework (in line with their duties under the 
Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014), Local Authorities are required to 
collect qualitative information annually about people who use their Social Care 
Services. This data is to be collected locally and provided nationally to the Welsh 
Government in relation to the provision of care and support.  Surveys were sent 
out in October 2017 and a range of questions were asked relative to services and 
support provided to adults, children and young people and carers.  Results were 
as follows:-

Adults: A total of 1243 questionnaires were despatched to adults (over 18 years), 
416 were returned, a response rate of 33%.  Some of the comments received 
include:

“Without the help and care I receive I wouldn’t be able to do anything.”

“I feel safe because social services have been very helpful in supplying equipment 
for my safety in my home and support me when needed.”
“Stuck in the ground floor flat.  No rear access.  Unable to be independent.”

“Support received from the Bridgend Social Services and Wellbeing is excellent 
and beyond reproach.”
“My wife wasn’t well and social services stepped in.”

Carers: A total of 49 questionnaires were despatched to adults (over 18 years), 22 
were returned, a response rate of 44%.  Comments received include the following:

“The carers are nice people who treat you politely.”

“We could use a downstairs toilet.”

“More than happy from everyone involved.”

Children:  A total of 430 questionnaires were despatched to children (age 7-17 
years), 90 were returned, a response rate of 21%.  Some of the comments 
received include:

“I have all my family and friends around me.  I really feel I belong here.”

“I love my carers, I could not be happier at all.”

“My social worker takes sides and she listens but not all the time”

“My foster carer is the most nicest person she has taken me in like her own.”

“They are all family even if it isn’t blood.”

     
Overall a total of 528 responses were received.                         

Page 148



Page 9 of 15

                        
6. STATISTICAL INFORMATION 2017/2018

 Number of Representations Received and Timescales

Table 1
No. Representations Received 

Statutory Complaints Procedure – April 2016 to March 2017 

Complaints Compliments
Adult Social Care 14 264
Children’s Social 
Care

13 23

Business Support 
/Finance

0 13

Total Stage 1 27 300
Stage 2 2

*(1 x complaint progressed straight to Stage 2).

Timescales: 100% Stage 1 complaints were resolved within the prescribed 
timescale of 10 working days.  

Timescales: All Stage 1 complaints were acknowledged in writing within 2 
working days of the date of their receipt. 100% were resolved within the prescribed 
timescale of 10 working days and written responses provided within 5 working 
days of the date of resolution. There were no complaints received outside the 12 
month time limit for investigation.

Complaints Resolved Informally (pre-Complaints Procedure Stage 1)

Bridgend County Borough Council complaints processes have, for a number of 
years, involved successful early resolution of complaints wherever possible.  
Recently, the new Complaint Guidelines emphasise that the complaints process 
will provide for a more straightforward and citizen centred approach. Swift and 
effective complaints handling is also encouraged with an expectation that the 
majority of complaints and representations should be resolved by Local 
Resolution. 

Complaints staff therefore undertake a significant amount of work liaising with 
managers to identify and agree swift resolutions to the satisfaction of the 
complainant (by the end of the working day following the day on which the 
complaint was made). 

Table 2
No. Complaints Resolved prior to invoking the formal Complaints 

Procedure(s) 2017/2018
Adult Social Care 57
Children’s Social Care 139
Business/Finance Support 2

Total: 198

Page 149



Page 10 of 15

Corporate Complaints Procedure

There are instances whereby aspects of a complaint do not fall within the remit of 
the social services statutory complaints procedure and, in these instances, the 
Authority’s Corporate Complaints Procedure is utilised. 25 complaints were 
received which were deemed appropriate to be addressed in accordance with the 
Corporate Complaints Procedure during 2017/18.  Three related to Adult Social 
Care and 22 to Children’s Social Care.

Total Representations Received 2017/18

The total number of representations received in relation to Adult Social Care and 
Children’s Social Care is as follows:-  

Table 3
2017/18 - Total No. Representations Handled via:

Complaints Resolved at pre-Complaints stage 198
Statutory Social Services Complaints 27
Ombudsman 2
Corporate Complaints 25

Total: 252

The total number of complaints received and addressed in accordance with the 
Statutory Complaints Procedure by Social Services during 2017/2018 was 27 
compared with 21 in 2016/17.  The number of people receiving a service from 
Adult Social Care during the reporting period was 5631 and 2262 from Children’s 
Social Care.  
Complaint Outcomes (Statutory)

Complaint outcomes are identified within the categories: Upheld, Partially Upheld
and Not Upheld.  Outcomes for each service area have been recorded during 
2017/18 as follows:-

Table 4 – Complaint Outcomes (St. 1 - Statutory Complaints Procedure)

2017/18
Adult Social 
Care

Children’s Social 
Care

Business /Finance 
Support 

Not Upheld 4 6 --
Partially 
Upheld 3 4 --
Upheld 7 2 --

NATURE OF COMPLAINTS

The nature of complaints received varied and included:-

Table 5
2017/18 – Most Common Complaints Received
Quality / Level of Service / Standard of Care
Lack of / Poor Communication
Disagreement with Assessment / Care Plan
Unacceptable Delays
Poor advice / misinformation

Page 150



Page 11 of 15

Staff attitude / conduct
Policy / Procedure Non-compliance
Missed / Late Appointments / Times of Visits
Charges for Care Services 
Disagreement with Policy / Procedure

7.  HOW COMPLAINTS WERE RESOLVED and LESSONS LEARNED

A variety of methods were used to resolve complaints, including:-

 Liaison by complaints officers with senior managers to identify/agree 
immediate/informal resolution;

 Meetings by senior officers with complainants to discuss/resolve their 
concerns;

 Provision of explanation of reasons for decisions (verbal and/or written);
 Provision of an apology (written), where appropriate;
 Corrective actions, e.g. change of decisions, review of procedures;
 Reassessment (independent);
 Advocacy services/support;
 Independent investigation;
 Staff training (E:learning).

Key lessons learned during 2017/18 were as follows:-

Table 6
Service Area Lessons Learned/Actions Implemented

Adult Social Care: 

Breakaway

To prevent exclusion of service users from 
trips out, a more structured arrangement is 
now in place with Porthcawl & Pyle 
Community Hub to borrow/use wheelchair 
accessible transport.
  

Adult Social Care: Provision of contact details of BCBC’s 
Common Access Point to Herefordshire 
Careline (the agency commissioned to 
handle BCBC Telecare calls) to allow them 
to refer callers appropriately in cases where 
they do not have an emergency. 

Children’s Social Care: Reviews of those cases awaiting allocation 
to be undertaken to ensure families are kept 
updated on current status.

Children’s Social Care: Social work staff to ensure that Care & 
Support Plans are factually accurate and 
outcomes shared in a timely manner as 
appropriate.

Welsh Language Standards

Page 151



Page 12 of 15

There have been no complaints received during this reporting period that have 
been communicated via the medium of Welsh. 

To ensure compliance with the requirements of the Welsh Language Standards all 
complaints publicity material, including leaflets and the complaints website have 
been translated and are readily available in the medium of Welsh. Complaints staff 
have also attended basic Welsh Language training.

Compliments

Compliments are regarded as important information which can be used to identify 
good practice. All compliments are therefore recorded centrally and details 
provided in management reports.  As mentioned above, 300 compliments were 
recorded during 2017/18, a selection of which are set out below:-

Table 7
Compliments - Adult Social Care:
Bridgeway: "I would like to thank 'X' and her team for the excellent service they 
provide.  They always go the extra mile caring because they care.  If there as an 
award for them they would most certainly come first."
Bridgestart: "Dear 'X' and team, words cannot express how grateful I am for the 
care that you and your team provided/afforded my father this last few 
months......Your team always treated him with the utmost dignity and respect and 
ensured that I too was always kept fully informed.  Please can you extend my 
sincere thanks to all involved with my father's care.  Many thanks."
Minerva Day Service: "To all the staff at the Day Centre, We will always remember 
and be grateful for the love and kindness you gave to 'X' during the years she was 
with you."
Home Care: "(A thank you to Unsung Heroines).  My sister and I would like to say 
a Huge thank you to the Home Care ladies who throughout the atrocious weather 
last week never missed a call.  My sister requires double handling three times a 
day and with no thought for their own safety these ladies from North Cornelly, 
Pyle, Cefn and Kenfig turned up with the usual smiles and cheerful conversation.  
Thank you all ladies, we are sure everyone else you visit could never manage 
without you."
Telecare: “I have just called ‘X’, daughter of Mr ‘Y’ to arrange collection of 
Telecare equipment.  She said that she would very much like to thank everybody 
that she has spoken to in regards her father.  The staff have been tremendous and 
the equipment kept her mind at rest as he wanted to stay at home as long as 
possible and it enabled her to worry less knowing that if need be there was help 
within a short space of time.”
Common Access Point: “Wow, what a response, thank you so much, I really 
appreciated it.  I live in London and am attempting to get some support for my 
husband’s uncle who lives in Bridgend. I will print out your email and send it to 
him. The last time I contacted Bridgend Social Services to attempt to have a 
handrail fitted for him, I was amazed at how quickly he was offered help.  Once 
again, I have to say how very impressed I am at the level of care shown.  Thank 
you so much.”
Older People Mental Health: "We would like you to know how grateful we are to 'X'  
for the efficient and professional service he has been our mother .This has always 
been done in a warm and friendly way which has added to the whole experience.  
You will know that Mam is now a resident of Bryn y Cae Care Home which we are 
also pleased with.  Please thank 'X' on our behalf."
Brynycae: “X’ stated that he couldn’t have been treated better even if he’d been 

Page 152



Page 13 of 15

royalty. And it would have been impossible to improve the service. 

Compliments – Children’s Social Care:
16 Plus Team: “Throughout the Proceedings the social worker kept in touch with 
me, her written work was excellent and she had a really good understanding of the 
case.”
Safeguarding East Team: The Grandmother of a young person stated the social 
worker “had been off the chart amazing and that the progress that has been 
achieved would not have been possible had it not been for the hard work put in by 
the social worker’.’
16 Plus Team: A young person and family stated “X’ has been the best social 
worker she has had and would like her to remain as her PA… we appreciate all 
the work and input that ‘X’ has given.”  
Adoption Panel: “I was asked to pass on how impressed they (the Panel) were 
with the great work you have undertaken with ‘X’.”
Safeguarding North Team: Following Judgement, Her Honour Judge ‘X’ 
congratulated the family and the Local Authority on their approach to this case and 
personally thanked ‘X’ for all of his hard work, not only on this case but over the 9 
years that she has been encountering him. 
16 Plus Team: Foster Carer stated - “I have been fostering for 15 years and ‘X’ is 
the best social worker I have worked with’.

Compliments - Business Support/Finance:
Non-Residential Charges: "I just wanted to give you some feedback from the son 
of the above service user.  'X' wished me to let you know that he was “more than 
impressed” with the information and level of financial understanding you displayed 
when he contacted you.  He told me that having worked as a Manager for a 
National Bank, (Fraud Department) he felt that the level of competence you 
displayed when providing information to him was at a level some of his staff would 
have struggled with.  In this day and age it is so easy for people to make 
complaints and it is rare that people take the time to give positive feedback.  I will 
copy your line manager into this email."
Residential Charges: “Thank you, and the staff at Bryn y Cae, very much for such 
prompt and efficient action after my mother’s death last week…On a personal 
note, I would again like to thank you for all the help given to me in understanding 
the complex (for me!!) financial processes associated with care and achieving the 
best solution for my mother.”
Deputyship & Safeguarding: “Just wanted to say thanks for all your help on Friday 
and with managing ‘X’s finances. ‘X’ was so excited about getting her new phone, 
she was giggling all the way home!  Having her finances managed by BCBC has 
had a huge impact on her life.  Day Services and her respite carer have described 
her as having more confidence and being much happier.  She is taking pride in 
being able to shop for new clothes and go to the hairdresser.  Things she had 
wanted to do for some time but had not been able to…”

8.     CUSTOMER FEEDBACK – THEIR EXPERIENCE OF THE COMPLAINTS
        PROCEDURE

Questionnaires were forwarded to all complainants (statutory complaints). 
Complainants were provided with various options via which they could submit their 
responses, including, ‘reply paid envelopes’, by email or telephone.  Unfortunately, 
no responses were received for the reporting period. 

Page 153



Page 14 of 15

      
9.       ACHIEVEMENTS IN 2017/2018 

Achievements during 2017/18 include:- 

 Complaints staff have encouraged and worked closely with managers/staff to 
aim to resolve complaints locally and as swiftly as possible.  This is reflected in 
the high number of complaints resolved at the pre-complaints stage (Table 2);

 There was a 15% increase in the number of complaints handled during the 
period. 100% of the Stage 1 statutory complaints were resolved and 
responded to within the statutory timescale;

 There was also a 10% increase in the number of compliments recorded for the 
Directorate;

 On-line complaint information has been updated and included on the Local 
Authority’s website.  The information is also available in the medium of Welsh;

 Complaints information has been uploaded, reviewed and kept up-to-date on 
the Dewis Cymru Information database.  The Dewis Cymru website provides a 
single point of access to information about wellbeing in Wales.  The website 
can be accessed by members of the public as well as social care 
professionals across Wales. 

10.    OBJECTIVES FOR 2018/2019

Plans for 2018/19 include:-

 Continue to encourage and work with managers/staff to aim to resolve 
complaints locally and as swiftly as possible;

 Continue to monitor Stage One timescale compliance rates;

 Work with ICT to develop the use of the Welsh Community Care Information 
System (WCCIS) to record & manage complaints;

 The Complaints Awareness E:learning module developed in 2015/16 (aimed 
at new and existing staff employed by the Directorate) has had a low staff 
take-up.  Consideration will therefore be given to inclusion of this Module 
within the Social Services Induction Programme to ensure that all new starters 
complete it;

 Commence/complete the development of the E:Learning module “Managing  
Complaints Effectively” (aimed at managers responsible for investigating and 
responding to complaints). 

11.   EQUALITIES

A screening for equality impact has been carried out in relation to the 
representation and complaints procedure.  There is no negative impact on the 
protected equality characteristics.

Page 154



Page 15 of 15

There have been no complaints received during the reporting period in relation to 
the Social Services Representations and Complaints Procedure. 

Complainants are now requested to provide information in relation to the Equality 
Act 2010. This data includes information relating to ethnicity, gender, marital 
status and disability. The feedback is currently low, but we will continue to pursue 
this.

Report prepared for Susan Cooper
Statutory Director of Social Services
By the Designated Complaints Officer
July 2018

Page 155



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 157

Agenda Item 12
By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 16 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Cymeradwyaeth Cofnodion
	Cofnodion y Cyfarfod Blaenorol

	4 Monitro'r Gyllideb - Chwarter 1 2018-19
	Appendix 1 Monitoring of 2016-17 and 2017-18 Budget Reductions
	Appendix 2 2018-19 Risk Tracker Budget Reduction Proposals June 18
	Appendix 3 Revenue Budget Monitoring end June 2018
	Appendix 4 Capital Monitoring end June 2018

	5 Ymgynghoriad Gorchymyn Diogelu Mannau Cyhoeddus i Warchod Cwn
	6 Y Strategaeth Ddiwydiannol Yn Ymlaen o'r Chwyldro Ynni
	ISCF introduction
	Prospering from the Energy Revolution Programme

	7 Penodi Llywodraethwyr yr Awdurdod Lleol
	8 Blaenraglen Waith
	180619 Cabinet Forward Work Programme Appendix 1
	180619 Council Forward Work Programme Appendix 2
	Scrutiny Forward Work Programme Appendix 3

	9 Adroddiadau Gwybodaeth i'w Nodi
	Treasury Management Report Qtr1 Cabinet 170718 sent to CabComm 10-7-18
	17.07.18 - Complaints Annual Report
	17.07.18 - Complaints Annual Report 1- Appendix 1

	12 Cymeradwyaeth Cofnodion wedi’u Eithrio

